
 
 

 
 

A G E N D A 
 
 

Carlsbad City Council Regular Meeting  
Municipal Annex 

 114 S. Halagueno Street 
Carlsbad, New Mexico 

 
 

July 23, 2019 at 6:00 p.m. 
    
 
Invocation – Pledge of Allegiance 
  

1. Approval of Agenda 
 

2. Routine and Regular Business 
 
 
 

 
A. Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting held on July 9, 2019 
B. City Personnel Report 
C. Contracts and Agreements 

1) Consider Approval of Renewal Agreement between the City of Carlsbad and 
Creative Carlsbad for Arts and Cultural District Management  
2) Consider Approval of Agreement between the City of Carlsbad and All City 
Management Services (ACMS) for School Crossing Guard Services for FY19-20 

D. Purchasing  
1) Consider Approval to Award Cooperative Education Services Contract to 
Engie Services for the HVAC System Upgrade Project at the Carlsbad Museum 
& Arts Center 

E. Monthly Reports 
1) Community Development Department June 2019  
2) Municipal Services Department June 2019 
3) PER Department June 2019 
4) Utilities Department June 2019 

F. Board Appointments 
1) Carlsbad Cemetery Board Appoint Richard VanDyke, 2 year term, Appoint 
Desiree Kicker, 2 year term 
2) Carlsbad Library Board Appoint Beverly Carrasco, 4 year term, Re-Appoint  
Jo Calvani, 4 year term 
 
 

All matters under this heading are considered routine by the City Council and will be acted upon in one motion.  
 There will be no separate discussion of these items.  If discussion is desired on a particular item, upon request,  

that item may be removed from the Routine and Regular Business and be considered separately. 



Carlsbad City Council 7/23/2019 
114 S. Halagueno St. 6:00 p.m. 

 

 2 

G. Set the Date: September 10, 2019 
1) An Ordinance rezoning part of “C-2” Commercial 2 District to “C-1” 
Commercial 1 District for an approximately 0.115 acre property located at  
701 W Greene Street  
 
2) An Ordinance rezoning part of “C-2” Commercial 2 District to “R-2”  
Residential 2 District for an approximately 0.275 acre property located at  
308 W Rose Street  
 
3) An Ordinance rezoning part of “R-R” Rural Residential District to “C-1”  
Commercial 1 District for an approximately 6.00 acre property, located at  
301 W Chapman Road 
 
4) An Ordinance rezoning part of “C-2” Commercial 2 District to “C-1” 
Commercial 1 District for an approximately 0.43 acre property located at 513, 
515, 517, 519, 521, 523, 525, 527 W Fox Street and 206 S Guadalupe  

 
3.  Consider Approval to Award RFP 2019-13 to Orlando Garza for Cemetery 

Groundskeeping and Grave Digging Services 
 

4.  Infrastructure Capital Improvement Plan Preliminary List Presentation for FY 2021/2025 
for Council Review and recommendations for changes  

 
5.  Consider Approval of Resolution 2019-29, a Resolution adopting certain amendments to 

the City of Carlsbad’s Public Infrastructure Specification Document 
 

6.  Consider Approval of Resolution 2019-30, a Resolution requiring the removal of the trash 
and debris at 612 South Sixth Street Owners: Javier and Veronica Lopez 
 

7.  Consider Approval of Ordinance 2019- 33, an Ordinance rezoning part of  “R-R” Rural 
Residential District to “R-1” Residential 1 District for an approximately 180.88 acre 
property, located along the West Side of Callaway Drive Applicant: Springs Farms 
Subdivision 

A. Public Hearing 
B. Consider Approval of Ordinance 2019-33 

 
8.  Council Committee Reports 

 
9.  Adjourn 

 

 
FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

Agendas and City Council minutes are available on the City web site: cityofcarlsbadnm.com  
 or may be viewed in the Office of the City Clerk during normal and regular business hours. 

 

   CARLSBAD CITY COUNCIL MEETING SCHEDULE 
• Regular meeting - Tuesday, August 13, 2019 at 6:00 p.m. 

• Regular meeting - Tuesday, August 27, 2019 at 6:00 p.m. 
 

If you require hearing interpreter, language interpreters or auxiliary aids in order to attend 
 and participate in the above meeting, please contact the City Administrator’s office at 

 (575) 887-1191 at least 48 hours prior to the scheduled meeting time. 
 
 



 

 1 

LINKED MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF CARLSBAD, NEW MEXICO, HELD IN THE MUNICIPAL ANNEX 

BUILDING ON JULY 9, 2019 AT 6:00 P.M. 
 
 
Present:  Dale Janway    Mayor  
   Lisa A. Anaya Flores  Councilor   
   Edward T. Rodriguez  Councilor 
   Leo B. Estrada   Councilor 
   Jason Shirley    Councilor 
   Judith E. Waters   Councilor 
   Wesley A. Carter   Councilor 
   Mark C. Walterscheid  Councilor       
   
Absent:  Jason O. Chavez   Councilor 
    
Also Present:  John Lowe    Deputy City Administrator 
   Eileen P. Riordan   City Attorney 
   Nadine Mireles   City Clerk 
   Ken Britt    Community Dev. Director 
   Angie Barrios-Testa   Director of Municipal Services 
   KC Cass    Director of Projects 
   Ron Myers    Director of Utilities 
   Wayne Hatfield   IT Director 
   Wendy Austin   Finance Director 
   Richard Lopez   Fire Chief 
   Jeff Patterson    Planning Director 
   Shane Skinner   Police Chief 
   Patrick Cass    Public Works Director 
  
 
Time Stamps and headings below correspond to recording of meeting and the recording 
is hereby made a part of the official record. 
 
0:00:00  Call Meeting to Order  
 
0:00:01 Invocation – Pledge of Allegiance  
 
0:00:32 1.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA  
 
0:00:35 Motion  
The motion was made by Councilor Carter and seconded by Councilor Estrada to 
approve the Agenda 
 



 

 2 

0:00:39 Vote  
The vote was as follows:  Yes - Estrada, Rodriguez, Shirley, Waters, Walterscheid, 
Anaya Flores, Carter; No - None; Absent - Chavez; the motion carried. 
 
0:00:58 2.  ROUTINE AND REGULAR BUSINESS  
A.  Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting held on June 25, 2019  
B.  City Personnel Report  
C.  Contracts and Agreements   

1) Consider Approval of Agreement between the City of Carlsbad and Eddy 
County for Professional Services Agreement for Eddy County Residents for FY 
2019-2020  
2) Consider Approval of Agreement between the City of Carlsbad and NMDFA 
Local Government Division Enhanced 911 ACT Grant Program  
3) Consider Approval of Agreement between the City of Carlsbad and ISC, Inc 
(dba Venture Technologies) to provide proactive support and maintenance for E-
911 Equipment  

D.  Purchasing  
1) Consider Approval to Advertise Request for Proposal for Professional 
Lobbying and Consulting Services for the City with the New Mexico State 
Legislature  

E.  Monthly Reports  
1) Human Resources Department June 2019  
2) Municipal Court June 2019  

F.  Board Appointments  
1) City of Carlsbad Disability Advisory Board Appoint Don Neighbors 
Remainder 4 year term      

 
0:01:20 Mayor Janway asked Mr. Lowe to discuss Item C.1 Consider Approval 
of Agreement between the City of Carlsbad and Eddy County for Professional 
Services Agreement for Eddy County Residents for FY 2019-2020 and Chief Skinner 
to discuss Item C.2 Consider Approval of Agreement between the City of Carlsbad 
and NMDFA Local Government Division Enhanced 911 ACT Grant Program and 
Item C.3 Consider Approval of Agreement between the City of Carlsbad and ISC, 
Inc. (dba Venture Technologies) to provide proactive support and maintenance for E-
911 Equipment.  
Mr. Lowe explained that Item C.1 is an annual PSA agreement with Eddy County.  He 
added the big change this year is the amount the County will pay the City has increased 
from $250,000 to $500,000.   
 
Chief Skinner explained items C.2 and C.3 are basic essentials for our 911 Agreements 
with the State.  He said Item C.2 the 911 telephone emergency system is necessary to 
expand the benefits of the basic 911 emergency telephone number to achieve a faster 
response time which minimizes the loss of life and property.  He added the State Board 
of Finance awarded the City $165,050 for FY2019-2020.   



 

 3 

Chief Skinner explained that C.3 is a Maintenance Agreement with ISC, Inc. and 
Voiance to enhance 911 services.  He said this is a standard agreement that continues to 
give fast and timely response services for 911.   
 
0:04:09 Motion  
The motion was made by Councilor Rodriguez and seconded by Councilor Waters to 
approve Routine and Regular Business 
 
0:04:14 Vote  
The vote was as follows:  Yes - Estrada, Rodriguez, Shirley, Waters, Walterscheid, 
Anaya Flores, Carter; No - None; Absent - Chavez; the motion carried. 
 
0:04:35 3.  CONSIDER APPROVAL OF LIQUOR LICENSE APPLICATION 
FOR A RESTAURANT BEER/WINE LIQUOR LICENSE FOR MIYABI JAPANESE 
STEAKHOUSE & SUSHI BAR FOR PROPOSED LOCATION 1511 S CANAL ST. 
APPLICANT: JIN FENG YE  
 
0:04:56 A.  Public Hearing  
Mr. Lowe explained that a Liquor License Hearing was held on June 26, 2019.  He said 
two people came in support of the License and no one appeared in opposition. 
 
0:05:31 Mayor Janway asked if anyone would like to speak regarding the 
Ordinance.   No one appeared and the Mayor declared the public hearing closed and 
reconvened the Council in regular session   
 
0:05:45 B.  Consider Approval  

 
0:05:49 Motion  
The motion was made by Councilor Shirley and seconded by Councilor Rodriguez to 
approve Liquor License Application for a Restaurant Beer/Wine Liquor License for 
Miyabi Japanese Steakhouse & Sushi Bar for proposed location 1511 S. Canal St., 
Applicant:  Jin Feng Ye 
 
0:05:55 Vote  
The vote was as follows:  Yes - Estrada, Rodriguez, Shirley, Waters, Walterscheid, 
Anaya Flores, Carter; No - None; Absent - Chavez; the motion carried. 
 
0:06:12 4.  CONSIDER APPROVAL OF BUSINESS LICENSE TO 
CONDUCT DOOR TO DOOR SALES AND INSTALLATION OF SMART HOME 
AUTOMATION AND SECURITY SERVICES BY SMART HOME PROS, INC. 
(VIVINT) CONTACT LEXY SWINEHART   
Mr. Patterson explained this is a request to allow door to door sales and installation of 
Smart Home Automation and Security Services by Smart Home Pros Inc. (Vivint).  He 
said Smart Home Pros Inc., has provided all of the required information to obtain the 



 

 4 

license.  He added the Police Department provided a background check with a positive 
review and the Planning Department recommends approval of the request for door to 
door solicitation. 
 
0:07:46 Motion  
The motion was made by Councilor Anaya Flores and seconded by Councilor 
Walterscheid to approve Business License to conduct Door to Door Sales and 
Installation of Smart Home Automation and Security Services by Smart Home Pros, Inc. 
(Vivint) contact Lexy Swinehart 
 
0:07:53 Vote  
The vote was as follows:  Yes - Estrada, Rodriguez, Shirley, Waters, Walterscheid, 
Anaya Flores, Carter; No - None; Absent - Chavez; the motion carried. 
 
0:08:11 5.  CONSIDER APPROVAL OF REQUEST FROM CARLSBAD 
MAINSTREET AND CREATIVE CARLSBAD TO SERVE ALCOHOL (BEER & 
WINE) ON CITY STREETS DURING THE STRANDED CONCERT AT THE 
CAVERN THEATER ON JULY 27, 2019  
Mr. Patterson explained this is a request by the City of Carlsbad in cooperation with 
Carlsbad Mainstreet and Creative Carlsbad to have a Beer Garden provided by a 
licensed alcohol server at the Stranded Concert at the Cavern Theatre on July 27, 2019.     
 
Councilor Shirley asked who would be the server providing the alcohol.  Ms. Hammil 
said they have asked Milton’s because they are in the MainStreet District  
 
0:10:24 Motion  
The motion was made by Councilor Shirley and seconded by Councilor Anaya Flores to 
approve Request from Carlsbad Mainstreet and Creative Carlsbad to serve alcohol (beer 
& wine) on City Streets during the Stranded concert at the Cavern Theater on July 27, 
2019 
 
0:10:31 Vote  
The vote was as follows:  Yes - Estrada, Rodriguez, Shirley, Waters, Walterscheid, 
Anaya Flores, Carter; No - None; Absent - Chavez; the motion carried. 
 
0:10:52 6.  CONSIDER APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 2019-28, A 
RESOLUTION RATIFYING THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 
CARLSBAD AND SOUTHEASTERN NEW MEXICO ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT (SENMEDD) FOR 2019-2020 MEMBERSHIP  
Mr. Lowe explained this request is for approval of Resolution No. 2019-28, an 
agreement between the City and SENMEDD for 2019-2020 membership.  He explained 
the City has an annual membership with SENMEDD for their services.  He added the 
SENMEDD will assist the City with Infrastructure Planning, Coordinate the ICIP 



 

 5 

process and with Capital Outlay.  He said if approved the agreement begins on July 1, 
2019 thru June 30, 2020 for the amount of $7641.00. 
 
0:11:41 Motion  
The motion was made by Councilor Anaya Flores and seconded by Councilor 
Rodriguez to approve Resolution No. 2019-28, a Resolution Ratifying the Agreement 
between the City of Carlsbad and Southeastern New Mexico Economic Development 
District (SENMEDD) for 2019-2020 Membership 
 
0:11:47 Vote  
The vote was as follows:  Yes - Estrada, Rodriguez, Shirley, Waters, Walterscheid, 
Anaya Flores, Carter; No - None; Absent - Chavez; the motion carried. 
 
0:12:05 7.  CONSIDER APPROVAL OF ORDINANCE 2019-30, AN 
ORDINANCE REZONING PART OF “C-1” COMMERCIAL 1 DISTRICT TO “R-2” 
RESIDENTIAL 2 DISTRICT FOR AN APPROXIMATELY 0.34 ACRE PROPERTY, 
LOCATED AT 201 SOUTH GUADALUPE STREET APPLICANT: WINDY 
SHELTON COLE  
Mr. Patterson explained this is a request for a Zone Change from "C-1" Commercial 1 
District to "R-2" Residential 2 District for an approximately 0.34 acre parcel, located at 
201 S. Guadalupe St.  He explained the property surrounding the property is zoned C-2 
to the northeast and zoned R-2 to the south and west and the change will not create a 
spot zone. 
 
0:13:19 A.  Public Hearing  
 
0:13:21 Mayor Janway asked if anyone would like to speak in favor of the 
Ordinance.  
Ms. Windy Cole, property owner, said she is requesting the zone change to sale the 
property. 
 
0:13:51 Mayor Janway asked if anyone would like to speak against the 
Ordinance, no one appeared and the Mayor declared the public hearing closed and 
reconvened the Council into regular session  
 
0:14:00 B.  Consider Approval of Ordinance 2019-30  
 
0:14:05 Motion  
The motion was made by Councilor Carter and seconded by Councilor Rodriguez to 
approve Ordinance No. 2019-30, an Ordinance rezoning part of "C-1" Commercial 1 
District to "R-2" Residential 2 District for an approximately 0.34 acre property, located at 
201 South Guadalupe Street, Applicant:  Windy Shelton Cole 
 
 



 

 6 

0:14:12 Vote  
The vote was as follows:  Yes - Estrada, Rodriguez, Shirley, Waters, Walterscheid, 
Anaya Flores, Carter; No - None; Absent - Chavez; the motion carried. 
 
0:14:33 8.  CONSIDER APPROVAL OF ORDINANCE 2019-31, AN 
ORDINANCE REZONING PART OF “R-R” RURAL RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT TO 
“C-2” COMMERCIAL 2 DISTRICT FOR AN APPROXIMATELY 10.00 ACRE 
PROPERTY, LOCATED ALONG THE EAST SIDE OF CALLAWAY DRIVE 
APPLICANT: SPRINGS FARMS SUBDIVISION INC.  
 
0:15:00 A.  Public Hearing  
Mr. Patterson explained this item is a request for a zone change from "R-R" Industrial 
District to "C-2" Commercial 2 District for approximately 10.00 acres for 5 commercial 
lots located along the east side of Callaway Drive.  He explained the surrounding 
properties are zoned "R-R" and this change would create a spot zone, however, the 
Planning Department understands the nature of the development and recommends 
approval. 
 
0:16:06 Mayor Janway asked if anyone would like to speak in favor of the 
Ordinance  
Mr. Dunagan explained this request is part of a larger scale development.  He said he 
feels there is a need for commercial development along the river.  He said there is not 
enough space along Pierce Street and people are looking for more commercial 
opportunities.     
 
Councilor Carter asked if any deed restrictions or covenants would be included.  Mr. 

Dunagan said there will be deed restrictions that will apply and only allow those type 
of uses in C-2 zone.   
 
0:19:03 Mayor Janway asked if anyone would like to speak against the 
Ordinance, no one appeared and the Mayor declared the public hearing closed and 
reconvened the Council into regular session  
 
0:19:11 B.  Consider Approval of Ordinance 2019-31  
 
0:19:17 Motion  
The motion was made by Councilor Rodriguez and seconded by Councilor Carter to 
approve Ordinance No. 2019-31, an Ordinance rezoning part of "R-R" Rural Residential 
District to "C-2" Commercial 2 District for an approximately 10.00 acre property, located 
along the East Side of Callaway Drive, Applicant:  Springs Farms Subdivision, Inc. 
 
0:19:23 Vote  
The vote was as follows:  Yes - Estrada, Rodriguez, Shirley, Waters, Walterscheid, 
Anaya Flores, Carter; No - None; Absent - Chavez; the motion carried. 



 

 7 

0:19:41 9.  CONSIDER APPROVAL OF ORDINANCE 2019-32, AN 
ORDINANCE REZONING PART OF “R-1” RESIDENTIAL 1 DISTRICT TO “C-1” 
COMMERCIAL 1 DISTRICT FOR AN APPROXIMATELY 0.31 ACRE PROPERTY, 
LOCATED AT 325 NORTH SIXTH STREET APPLICANT: SANDRA JO BALLARD  
 
0:20:08 A.  Public Hearing  
Mr. Patterson explained this a request for a zone change from "R-1" Residential 1 
District to "C-1" Commercial 1 District for an approximately 0.30 acre parcel, located at 
325 N. Sixth St.  He explained the applicant appeared before Council on December 11, 
2018 at that time Council failed to vote on a motion to approve or deny the request.  He 
said the applicant now better understands the process and has produced a plan to not 
allow on street parking.  He said the Planning and Zoning Commission recommend 
approval.   
 
Councilor Walterscheid asked if the applicant feels as though the parking will be 
sufficient.  Mr. Patterson said the applicant meets the parking requirements of the 
Ordinance and the Planning Department has asked the applicant to sign the property 
indicating to customers that there is no on street parking allowed for the business. 
 
0:22:04 Mayor Janway asked if anyone would like to speak in favor of the 
Ordinance  
Ms. Sandra Ballard explained that in December she did not have an official survey of 
the property.  She said the concerns brought up in December were parking and the 
amount of traffic the business would bring.  She said they are requesting to build a 
training center at 325 N. Sixth.  She said normally they have 5 to 8 people per training 
class.  She explained she will post signs stating that all vehicles visiting Mobile Safety 
must be parked inside the fence or they will be towed.  She said she believes she has 
addressed all the previous issues and would take any questions.   
 
Councilor Rodriguez asked Ms. Ballard if the smoking area could be moved as far from 
the school as possible.  Ms. Ballard said she could print signs with designated smoking 
areas away from the school.   
 
0:29:31 Ms. Jessica Haser, Manager and Trainer at Mobile Safety, said she is 
requesting approval of the Ordinance. She said with a new facility she will be able to 
do more hands on training.   
 
Ms. Tiffany Dominguez said she has two children who attend Hillcrest School and she 
doesn't see the new training facility as a problem.  She said she feels it would be better 
to have a business there rather than a vacant lot.   
 
Mr. John Ballard, applicant’s father, said his daughter will do a good job and this will 
be a good service for Carlsbad. 
 



 

 8 

0:31:36 Mayor Janway asked if anyone would like to speak against the 
Ordinance.  No one appeared and the Mayor declared the public hearing closed and 
reconvened the Council into regular session  
 
0:31:45 B.  Consider Approval of Ordinance 2019-32  
 
0:31:51 Motion  
The motion was made by Councilor Carter and seconded by Councilor Shirley to 
approve Ordinance No. 2019-32, an Ordinance rezoning part of "R-1" Residential 1 
District to "C-1" Commercial 1 District for an approximately 0.31 acre property, located 
at 325 North Sixth Street, Applicant:  Sandra Jo Ballard 
 
0:31:57 Vote  
The vote was as follows:  Yes - Estrada, Rodriguez, Shirley, Waters, Walterscheid, 
Carter; No - Anaya Flores; Absent - Chavez; the motion carried. 
 
0:32:26 10.  COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS  
Councilor Walterscheid said the first Carlsbad Clean up Task Force meeting was held 
today.  He explained that Mr. Sepich said this task force is for the citizens of Carlsbad.  
He said it's about the citizens taking care of the community.  He said the Task Force will 
hold a Public Meeting on July 25th at 3:00 p.m.   
 
Mayor Janway commended the Fire Department, Police Department, and the Public 
Works Department for the great job they all did over the 4th of July weekend.     
 
Mr. Lowe also thanked the Lifeguards for the service they provide for the community.  
He thanked all staff and added it takes a team effort for these festivities.     
 
Councilor Rodriguez called attention to the firefighters that were hurt in Roswell and 
encouraged all to drop any spare change into the boots around town and to pray for 
them.   
 
0:36:07 11.  ADJOURN  
 
0:36:12 Motion  
The motion was made by Councilor Anaya Flores and seconded by Councilor Shirley to 
Adjourn 
 
0:36:18 Vote  
The vote was as follows:  Yes - Estrada, Rodriguez, Shirley, Waters, Walterscheid, 
Anaya Flores, Carter; No - None; Absent - Chavez; the motion carried. 
 
 
 



 

 9 

0:36:39 Adjourn 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 6:37 p.m. 
 
 
 

__________________________________ 
Dale Janway, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Nadine Mireles, City Clerk 



CITY OF CARLSBAD 
PERSONNEL REPORT 

July 23, 2019 

 

APPOINTMENTS: 

NAME DATE DEPARTMENT CLASSIFICATION 

Abbi Anderson 07/24/19 Riverwalk Recreation Attendant, on-call 

Anthony Briceno 07/24/19 Fire Firefighter Rookie/EMT-I 

Amber Dugas 07/24/19 Police Corporal 

Auden Escajeda 07/24/19 Fire Firefighter Rookie/EMT-B 

Steven Jimenez 07/24/19 Solid Waste ARC Driver 

Casimiro Hernandez 07/24/19 Sports Complex Recreation Attendant, on-call 

Monica Martinez 07/24/19 Garage Secretary 

Kimberly Morrow 07/24/19 Solid Waste ARC Driver 

Zachary Pifer 07/24/19 Fire Firefighter Rookie/EMT-B 

    

    

    

TERMINATIONS: 

NAME DATE DEPARTMENT CLASSIFICATION REASON 

Jose Gamez 07/16/19 Solid Waste ARC Driver Declined job offer 

Aldyn Hutchins 07/12/19 Fire Firefighter Rookie/EMT-B Resigned 

Joshua Raygoza 07/16/19 Solid Waste ARC Driver Declined job offer 

Elizabeth Sanchez 07/16/19 Transit Transit Driver, part-time Resigned 

     

     

     

INTERNAL TRANSFERS AND PROMOTIONS: 

NAME DATE DEPARTMENT CLASSIFICATION 

Alena Lopez 07/15/19 Facility Maintenance Facility Maintenance 

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

 





















oeramirez
Typewritten Text
/s/ Michael A. Hernandez                                        07-18-19





















CITY OF CARLSBAD 

AGENDA BRIEFING MEMORANDUM 

Council MeetinQ Date: 07/23/19 

DEPARTMENT: Police l BY: Shane Skinner I DATE: 07/12/19 

SUBJECT: Consider approval of FY 19/20 annual contract with All City Management Services (ACMS) 
for school crossing guard services. 

BACKGROUND, ANALYSIS AND IMPACT: (Safety and Welfare/Financial/Personnel/Infrastructure/etc.) 

For the 2019-20 School Year, the City of Carlsbad has allocated monies for outsourcing school 
crossing guard services. All City Management Services (ACMS) was the only professional company 
able to provide such services for the City of Carlsbad, therefore are to be considered a "sole source" 
provider. ACMS submitted a contract for services. The contract includes the definitions of terms, scope 
of work, responsibilities, code of conduct, compensation and agreeing to a Megan's Law compliant 
background check on those employed by ACMS. 

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION: Approval of the proposed contract for services. 

BOARD/COMMISSIONICOMMITIEE ACTION: 

0 P&Z 

0 Museum Board 
0 Library Board 

Reviewed by: 
City Administrator: 

ATIACHMENT(S): 

ABM Fonnwpd 

0 Lodgers Tax Board 

0 San Jose Board 
0 N. Mesa Board 

0 Cemetery Board 

0 Water Board 

0 

Date: 

Committee 

} 0 APPROVED 
) 

) O DISAPPROVEO 

7/17/19 

oeramirez
Typewritten Text
/s/ Michael A. Hernandez                                     07-18-19























 

CITY OF CARLSBAD 
 

AGENDA BRIEFING MEMORANDUM 
 
                       Council Meeting Date: 7-23-2019 

DEPARTMENT:  Municipal Services  BY:  Angie Barrios-Testa, Director DATE:  7-17-2019 

 
SUBJECT: Approve Cooperative Educational Services Contract for the HVAC System Upgrade 
Project at the Carlsbad Museum & Arts Center    
 

BACKGROUND, ANALYSIS AND IMPACT: (Safety and Welfare/Financial/Personnel/Infrastructure/etc.) 
 
This request is to award a Cooperative Educational Services Contract to Engie 
Services U.S. for the HVAC System Upgrade Project at the Carlsbad Museum & Arts 
Center. The enclosed proposal from Engie Services U.S. under Cooperative 
Educational Services Contract#19-010B-C-101-ALL is for the amount of $556,389. 
The proposed project to replace and upgrade the HVAC System includes (3) new 
highly efficient Rooftop Units (RTU’s) with Humidification added to the (3) units. There 
will be (2) new Humidifiers with (5) dispersion stations to serve the areas as outlined 
in the enclosed proposal. The project will require a water treatment system to serve 
the makeup water to the steam generators of the new proposed Humidifiers. This 
water treatment system is a complete system with Reverse Osmosis (RO), Water 
Softening, and Dichlorination components. The proposed new HVAC system, as well 
as the existing RTU #4 (Atrium), will be controlled with a new Delta ControlsTM 
Building Automation System. This new Delta Control TM system will tie into a citywide 
Facility Management System. The proposal also includes electrical upgrades to 
correct and address electrical deficiencies required by the HVAC upgrades.  
 
Engie Services U.S. is a reputable vendor with experience in HVAC upgrades for 
museums and other art related facilities. The upgraded system will help bring the 
interior environment up to museum standards and thus will help to preserve art and 
artifacts. As part of their scope of work, Engie Services U.S. will provide training of 
City personnel on the maintenance of the New HVAC equipment as well as support 
on the Facility Management System.  
 
  

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION: If it is the pleasure of the City Council, staff recommends that 
this project use the Cooperative Educational Services contract with Engie Services U.S.  
 

BOARD/COMMISSION/COMMITTEE ACTION: 
     P & Z 
     Museum Board 
    Library Board 

    Lodgers Tax Board 
    San Jose Board 
    N. Mesa Board 

    Riverwalk Rec Center Board 
    Water Board 
    Beautification Committee 

      APPROVED 
 

       DISAPPROVED 

 
Reviewed by: 
City Administrator:              Date:    

oeramirez
Typewritten Text

oeramirez
Typewritten Text
/s/ Michael A. Hernandez

oeramirez
Typewritten Text
07/18/19



1 | P a g e  

 

 

    July 14, 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Job: City of Carlsbad Museum HVAC Upgrades & Addition of Humidifiers  
Customer Name: City of Carlsbad, NM – Attention: Angelica Barrios Testa 
ENGIE SERVICES U.S. Contact:   Patrick J. Gibson or Scott Stevens – 505-890-2888 
 
Engie Services U.S. is pleased to provide the following proposal to replace and upgrade the HVAC (Heating 
Ventilation and Air-conditioning) System with (3) new highly efficient Rooftop Units (RTU’s). Per the City’s request 
we propose to add Humidification to the (3) new RTU’s. There will be (2) new Humidifiers with (5) dispersion 
stations to serve the areas outlined below. We also propose a complete water treatment system to serve the 
makeup water to the steam generators of the new proposed Humidifiers. This water treatment system is complete 
system with Reverse Osmosis (RO), Water Softening, and Dichlorination components. The proposed new HVAC 
system as well as the existing RTU #4 (Atrium) will be controlled with a new Delta Controls™ Building Automation 
System. This new Delta Control™ system will tie into the City’s existing district wide Facility Management System.  
 
This Proposal by and between ENGIE SERVICES U.S. and the Customer shall become a binding contract 
(“Contract”) when executed by ENGIE SERVICES U.S. and the Customer. 
 
1. TERM: The term of the Contract shall be for the period necessary to complete the Scope of Work followed by a 
twelve (12) month warranty period (warranty shall start at Substantial Completion).  

 
2. SCOPE OF WORK:  
 

 (1) New Roof Top Unit (RTU#1) - York™ Millennium 25 Ton Single Package, R-410A 
refringent, with Four Stage Cooling and Natural Gas Heat (533 MBH). RTU #1 serving west 
half of the building.  

 (2) New Roof Top Units (RTU#2 & #3) – York™ 5 Ton Sigle Package, R-410A refringent, 
with Two Stage Cooling and Natural Gas Heat. RTU#2 & #3 serving east half of the building.  

 Reclaim old refrigerant and remove old RTU’s #1, #2, & #3. City has right of first refusal.  
 Coordinate Crane lifts for new RTU’s and removal of old HVAC equipment on roof.  
 Reutilize existing (3) above mentioned RTU roof curbs to minimize roof exposure.  
 Disconnect and reconnect existing gas line for above mentioned RTU’s.  
 General Contracting work – Demo existing kitchenette cabinet and sink in area just north of 

the Hall of Fame Gallery for “Water Treatment Center”.  
 Install new driSteem™ “Water Treatment Center” that includes Reverse Osmosis, Water 

Softening, and Dichlorination components. Reutilize the old kitchenette sinks water makeup 
and sewer line (mentioned above).  

 Install and run new Polybutylene pipe for treated water makeup to (2) new driSteem™ Steam 
Generators. (1) to RTU#1 and the other to both RTU#2 & RTU#3.  

 Install new driSteem™ Humidifier (H1) for RTU#1 and pipe to (3) Rapid-sorb™ steam 
dispersion stations locate in main duct distribution.  

 Modify main duct to accommodate these (3) dispersion stations in Art classroom #111.  
 Install new driSteem™ Humidifier (H2) for RTU#2 and RTU#3 and pipe to (2) Rapid-sorb™ 

steam dispersion stations locate in main duct distribution for each unit.  
 General Contracting work – Remove enough ceiling in the Hall of Fame Gallery (west side of 

room) to accommodate installation of steam dispersion stations. 

ENGIE Services U.S. Proposal to City of Carlsbad 
Museum HVAC Upgrades 

Number of Pages - 7 



2 | P a g e  

 

 Run new electrical conduits and add new 480VAC circuit from new proposed load center 
(*see below) to the (3) new RTU’s.  

 Run new electrical conduits and add new 480VAC circuit from new proposed load center to 
the (2) new Humidifiers (H1 & H2). (*see below). 

 Locate existing 120VAC power for new “Water Treatment Center”.  
 Install new Delta Controls™ Building Automation System, with remote access supplied by the 

City’s IT department.  
 Project Management and coordination of different trades.  
 Commissioning and testing of the overall system functionality from Engie Technicians.   
 Engineering and development for permit and construction drawings, and specifications.   
 Training of City personal on the Maintenance of New HVAC equipment. 
 Training and support of City personal on the Facility Management System.  

 
CONTRACT PRICE INCLUDING NMGRT AND P&P BOND: 
 
Subtotal for above work………………………………………………………….…... $472,937.58 
New Mexico Gross Receipt Tax (7.6458%) ……………………………….…….….  $36,159.86 
 
Total for above HVAC project …………………………………...……………...……$509,097.43*** 
---HVAC Renovation Preliminary Budget Estimate (presented early in March) …. $520,000.00 ---     
 
 
Electrical Safety and Code Deficiencies Upgrades: 
 
Engie Services US. Is please to provide the following price to repair and fix the electrical code deficiencies 
to accommodate the above HVAC & Humidification Project. Please reference the Survey & Report 
performed by Peak Power Engineering Inc. dated June 26, 2019.  
 
Scope of Work to correct Electrical Deficiencies for the above HVAC project:  
 

 Replace existing 480V feeder to Storage Rm. 110 Electrical disconnect. 
 Remove existing 480V disconnect in Storage Rm. 110. 
 Supply and install new 200A 480V load center in Storage Rm 110. 
 Refeed new load center from existing MCC located near front entrance of building. 
 Supply and install new 75KVA 480V to 120/208V floor mount/Dry type transformer. 
 Supply and install new 42 circuit lighting panel to serve existing branch circuits.  

 
Total for above Electrical improvements ……………………………………………$47,290.95*** 
 

***CES Contract:  # 19-010B-C101-ALL*** 
 

The above pricing has been established using the discounted pricing schedule through 
Cooperative Educational Services and is not meant for direct sale to the end user. 
 
Above Prices Exclude: 

1) Moving of items in museum. It is the City/Museums responsibility to remove such items.  
2) The addition and or replacement of any equipment not mentioned above. 
3) The removal of materials containing Asbestos. Any Asbestos abatement is excluded. 
4) Temporary Heating/Cooling.  
5) Temporary power, power conditioning and or back up power.  



3 | P a g e  

 

6) Backup of system configuration and profiles storage.  
7) Existing electrical code violation repairs or replacement not mentioned above.   
8) Utility service upgrades.  
9) Fire alarm systems.  
10) IT switches and or the management of the IT systems.  
11) Repair or replacement any existing IT network cabling.  
12) IT Network/Equipment room conditioning of temperature.  

 
Warranty: 
 

- ENGIE Services U.S. covers labor and parts for 1 year following installation.  Non-Emergency warranty 
work shall be conducted during normal working hours Monday thru Friday, 8AM to 5:00PM, not including 
weekend and/or Holidays. 

- Manufacturer’s warranty extends to materials installed and is included in this proposal. 
 

 
3. LIMITED WARRANTY 

a. With respect to the Scope of Work herein, ENGIE SERVICES U.S. warrants that its workmanship shall be free of 
material defects for a period of one (1) year from the date the Scope of Work is properly installed, operational and is 
being used for its intended purpose (“Substantial Completion”).  During such period, ENGIE SERVICES U.S. will repair 
or replace any defective part of the Scope of Work without charge to Customer.  

 
b. WHAT IS NOT INCLUDED: ENGIE SERVICES U.S. makes no other express warranty including any warranty of 

merchantability of the system or its fitness for any special purpose. This warranty does not cover repairs that are needed 
because of an accident, vandalism, Customer’s failure to properly use the system, or if someone other than ENGIE 
SERVICES U.S. attempts to repair or change the system, or any other reason except a defect in the equipment or our 
installation. ENGIE SERVICES U.S. is not liable for consequential or incidental damages. The Customer agrees that 
this is ENGIE SERVICES U.S.’s only warranty and ENGIE SERVICES U.S. has given no other warranty for the system. 

 
 
4. EXECUTABLE CONTRACT:  This Proposal shall create a binding Contract between ENGIE SERVICES U.S. and the 
Customer upon its execution by both party’s authorized representatives below. 
 
This proposal expires on: 08/31/19 
 
The Terms and Conditions set forth on the following pages and are expressly incorporated herein and form an integral 
part of this Contract. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, and intending to be legally bound, the parties hereto subscribe their names to this Contract by their duly 
authorized representatives on the date(s) set forth below. 

Accepted: Submitted by: Patrick J. Gibson 
 
_____________________________________ ENGIE Services U.S. 
 (Full legal name of Customer) 

        Patrick J. Gibson   
______________________________________  ________________________________ 
  Signature          Signature 
   Director of Project Development  
______________________________________  ________________________________ 
  Title Title 
 
Date _________________________________         Date: July 14, 2019 
 
Address City of Carlsbad, NM ENGIE Services U.S. 
 101 N. Halagueno St. 2600 American Road SE 
 Carlsbad, NM 8820 Rio Rancho, NM 87124 
  505-890-2888 
  
 



4 | P a g e  

 

ENGIE Services U.S. 
Terms and Conditions 

 
ENGIE SERVICES U.S. and Customer hereby agree to the following Terms and Conditions which are hereby incorporated into 
the Contract between ENGIE SERVICES U.S. and Customer.  Customer and ENGIE SERVICES U.S. are each a “Party”, 
together the “Parties”. When duly executed by the Parties, the Contract, along with its exhibits and attachments, and these Terms 
and Conditions, shall constitute the complete, exclusive, and binding agreement between the Parties (the “Contract”). The Parties 
hereto agree as follows: 
 
ARTICLE A.  IMPLEMENTATION OF THE PROJECT 
1.  Upon the execution of this Contract, ENGIE SERVICES U.S. will perform the Scope of Work set forth herein. 
2. The Contract Price set forth herein is predicated on the fact that all work will be done during regular working hours of regular 
working days unless otherwise specified. If for any reason Customer requests that work be performed other than during regular 
working hours or outside the Scope of Work hereunder, Customer agrees to pay ENGIE SERVICES U.S. any additional charges 
arising from such additional services, including but not limited to, premium pay, special freight or other fees or costs associated 
therewith. 
3.  ENGIE SERVICES U.S. reserves the right to engage others in a subcontractor status to perform the work hereunder. 
 
ARTICLE B.  PURCHASE PRICE 
1.  The total price for the Scope of Work is detailed in the Proposal at Section 2 (“Contract Price”). 
2.  The Customer agrees to compensate the ENGIE SERVICES U.S. in the form of progress payments as specifically set forth 
herein and are payable thirty (30) days after receipt of invoice. 
3.  Customer shall pay ENGIE SERVICES U.S., in addition to the Contract Price, the amount of all excise, sales, use, privilege, 
occupation or other similar taxes imposed by the United States Government or any other national, state or local government 
authority, which ENGIE SERVICES U.S. is required to pay in connection with the Scope of Work, services or materials furnished 
hereunder. 
 
 
4. ENGIE SERVICES U.S. reserves the right to add to any account outstanding more than 30 days interest at 1% per month or 
the highest rate allowed by law. Customer agrees to pay all costs of collection incurred by ENGIE SERVICES U.S. including, 
but not limited to, collection agency fees, attorneys' fees and court costs. Additional services may be performed upon request at 
a price to be determined, subject to these Terms and Conditions. 
 
ARTICLE C.  WARRANTY 
ENGIE SERVICES U.S. warrants its workmanship provided hereunder shall be free of material defects for a period of one (1) 
year from the date of Substantial Completion (“ENGIE SERVICES U.S. Warranty”).  All warranties hereunder, including 
without limitation those for defects, whether latent or patent, in design, engineering or construction, shall terminate one (1) year 
from Substantial Completion; and thereafter, ENGIE SERVICES U.S. will have no liability for breach of any warranty or for 
any latent or patent defect of any kind.  Equipment and material warranties that exceed the one (1) year ENGIE SERVICES U.S. 
Warranty period shall be provided directly by the equipment and/or material manufacturers and such warranties shall be assigned 
directly to the Customer, after the one (1) year period.  During the one (1) year ENGIE SERVICES U.S. Warranty period, ENGIE 
SERVICES U.S. shall be the Customer’s agent in working with the equipment and material manufacturers in resolving any 
equipment or material warranty issues.  Other than for lamps and ballasts, any material defects that are discovered within the one 
(1) year ENGIE SERVICES U.S. Warranty period, ENGIE SERVICES U.S., or ENGIE SERVICES U.S.’ subcontractors, will 
correct its defects, and/or ENGIE SERVICES U.S. will work with the equipment or material manufacturer as the Customer’s 
agent to facilitate the manufacturer’s correction of the equipment or material defect. Such warranty services shall be performed 
in a timely manner and at the reasonable convenience of the Customer.  This warranty expressly excludes any remedy for damage 
or defect caused by improper use, improper or inadequate maintenance, operations of the installed equipment by users other than 
ENGIE SERVICES U.S. or its subcontractors, corrosion, erosion, deterioration, abuse, modifications or repairs not performed 
by an authorized ENGIE SERVICES U.S. subcontractor, improper operation, or normal wear and tear under normal usage.  If a 
warranty issue arises on any equipment or material installed after the one (1) year ENGIE SERVICES U.S. Warranty period, and 
the equipment or material has a warranty period that exceeds one (1) year, the Customer shall contact the manufacturer directly 
to resolve such warranty issues and Customer acknowledges that the manufacturer shall have sole responsibility for such issues.  
Except for the Warranty provided in Article C herein, Customer expressly agrees that ENGIE SERVICES U.S. makes no other 
warranties and assumes no other liabilities, whether in contract or in negligence, in connection with the sale and installation of 
equipment and materials provided hereunder, whether express or implied, in law or in communication between ENGIE 
SERVICES U.S. and Customer.  ENGIE SERVICES U.S. specifically disclaims any implied warranties of merchantability or 
fitness for a purpose. Customer shall have no remedies against ENGIE SERVICES U.S. for any defective work installed except 
for the repair or replacement of such equipment in accordance with the Warranty indicated above.  Specifically, ENGIE 



5 | P a g e  

 

SERVICES U.S. shall not be liable to Customer for loss of profits or for any special, indirect, incidental, consequential or punitive 
damages, however caused and on any theory of liability. 
 
ARTICLE D. WASTE DISPOSAL/HAZARDOUS MATERIALS 
The ENGIE SERVICES U.S. agrees to legally dispose of all removed fixtures, lamps and ballasts. Removed fixtures and non-
PCB ballasts shall be disposed of in ENGIE SERVICES U.S.’s designated waste container. The ENGIE SERVICES U.S. shall 
dispose of hazardous waste such as PCB ballasts, MH lamps and fluorescent lamps by recycling through a State certified recycler. 
Documents of such disposal will be provided to the Customer.  ENGIE SERVICES U.S. shall also dispose of any hazardous 
waste that it brings to the Project site.   
Customer recognizes that in connection with the installation of the Scope of Work at Customer’s Project site(s), ENGIE 
SERVICES U.S. may encounter, but is not responsible for, any work relating to (i) asbestos, materials containing asbestos, or 
the existence, use, detection, removal, containment or treatment thereof, (ii) fungus (any type of form of fungi, including mold 
or mildew, and mycotoxins, spores, scents or by-products produced or released by fungi), (iii) incomplete or damaged work or 
systems or code violations that may be discovered during or prior to the work of this Contract, or (iv) pollutants, hazardous 
wastes, hazardous materials, contaminants other than those described in this Section above (collectively “Hazardous Materials”), 
or the storage, handling, use, transportation, treatment, or the disposal, discharge, leakage, detection, removal, or containment 
thereof.  The materials and activities listed in the foregoing sentence are referred to as “Excluded Materials and Activities”.  
Customer agrees that if during the performance of the Scope of Work ENGIE SERVICES U.S. encounters any Excluded 
Materials and Activities, Customer will perform or arrange for the performance of such remediation work and shall bear the sole 
risk, cost and responsibility therefore.  In the event ENGIE SERVICES U.S. discovers Hazardous or Excluded Materials, ENGIE 
SERVICES U.S. shall immediately cease work, remove all ENGIE SERVICES U.S. personnel or subcontractors from the 
affected area(s), and notify the Customer.  The Customer shall be responsible to handle/remediate such Materials at its expense.   
 
ARTICLE E.  INDEMNIFICATION 
To the full extent permitted by law, each Party shall indemnify, hold harmless, release and defend the other Party, its officers, 
employees, and agents from and against any and all actions, claims, demands, damages, disability, losses, expenses including 
attorney's fees and other defense costs and liabilities of any nature that may be asserted by any person or entity in whole or in 
part, arising out of that Party’s activities hereunder, including the activities of other persons employed or utilized by that Party 
in the performance of this Contract, excepting liabilities due to the negligence or willful misconduct of the indemnified Party.  
This indemnification obligation is not limited in any way by any limitations of any insurance held or provided by ENGIE 
SERVICES U.S. and shall continue to bind the parties after termination/completion of this Contract. 
 
Under no circumstances will either Party be liable to the other Party for any special, indirect, incidental, consequential or punitive 
damages, however caused and on any theory of liability.  "Consequential damages" includes, but is not limited to, operational 
losses in the performance of business including lost revenues and any increase in operating expense, and any lost profits.  It is 
expressly understood and agreed to by both Parties that each Party's liability to the other shall be limited to reimbursement of 
only those Losses arising solely from a Party's breach of this Contract, negligence or willful misconduct.  "Losses" means claims, 
actions, direct damages, liabilities, costs and/or expenses (including reasonable attorneys' fees). 
 
 
ARTICLE F.  TERMINATION/DEFAULT 
Each of the following events or conditions shall constitute an "Event of Default" by the Parties: 
(i)  any failure by either Party to perform or comply with the terms and conditions of this Contract, including breach of any 
covenant contained herein, and such failure continues for three (3) business days after written notice to the defaulting Party 
demanding that such failure to perform be cured; provided that (i) such failure to perform shall not deemed a default hereunder 
if it is due to causes beyond the Party’s control of pursuant to Article H; and (ii) if such cure cannot be effected in three (3) 
business days, the Party  shall be deemed to have cured the default upon the commencement of a cure within three (3) business 
days and diligent subsequent completion thereof; or 
(ii)  any representation or warranty furnished by either Party in this Contract which was false or misleading in any material 
respect when made; or 
(iii)  any failure by Customer to pay any amount to ENGIE SERVICES U.S. which is not paid within ten (10) calendar days of 
written notice from ENGIE SERVICES U.S. that the amount is past due. 
 
If an Event of Default occurs, the non-defaulting Party will be entitled to obtain any available legal or equitable remedies through 
arbitration proceedings instituted pursuant to Article I below including, without limitation, terminating this Contract and 
recovering amounts due and unpaid by Customer, and/or damages which shall include reasonable, actual, direct out-of-pocket 
losses incurred by reason of such Event of Default; legal fees and arbitration costs; and losses and costs incurred as a result of 
terminating this Contract, and all costs and expenses reasonably incurred in exercising the foregoing remedies.  Additionally, 
ENGIE SERVICES U.S. may stop the performance of its work or services herein in the event of non-payment by Customer and 
will resume such work or services when Customer has made full payment. 



6 | P a g e  

 

 
ARTICLE G. INSURANCE 
ENGIE SERVICES U.S. will maintain, or cause to be maintained, for the duration of this Contract, the insurance coverage 
outlined in (a) through (f) below, and all such other insurance as required by applicable law. Evidence of coverage will be 
provided to Customer via an insurance certificate. 
(i) Workers’ Compensation/Employers Liability for states in which ENGIE SERVICES U.S. is not a qualified self-insured.  
Limits as follows: 
            *    Workers’ Compensation:  Statutory 
            *    Employers Liability:         Bodily Injury by accident $1,000,000 each accident 
                                                            Bodily Injury by disease $1,000,000 each employee 
                                                            Bodily Injury by disease $1,000,000 policy limit 
(ii) Commercial General Liability insurance with limits of: 
           *  $2,000,000 each occurrence for Bodily Injury and Property Damage 
           *  $4,000,000 General Aggregate - other than Products/Completed Operations 
           *  $4,000,000 Products/Completed Operations Aggregate 
           *  $2,000,000 Personal and Advertising Injury 
           *  $100,000 Damage to premises rented to ENGIE SERVICES U.S. 
Coverage to be written on an occurrence form.  Coverage to be at least as broad as ISO form CG 0001 (04/13) or its equivalent 
forms, without endorsements that limit the policy terms with respect to: (1) provisions for severability of interest or (2) explosion, 
collapse, underground hazard. 
(iii) Auto Liability insurance for owned, hired and non-owned vehicles with limits of $1,000,000 per accident.   
Coverage to be written on an occurrence form. 
 
 
(iv) Professional Liability insurance with limits of: 
           *  $1,000,000 per occurrence 
           *  $1,000,000 aggregate 
Coverage to be written on a claims-made form. 
(v) Umbrella/Excess Liability Insurance.  Limits as follows: 
           *  $1,000,000 each occurrence 
           *  $1,000,000 aggregate 
Coverage terms and limits to apply excess of the per occurrence and/or aggregate limits provided for Commercial General 
Liability and Professional Liability written on a claims made form.  Coverage terms and limits also to apply in excess of those 
required for Employers Liability and Auto Liability written on an occurrence form. 
(vi) Policy Endorsements. 
           *  The insurance provided for Workers’ Compensation and Employers’ Liability above will contain waivers of subrogation 
rights against Customer, but only to the extent of the indemnity obligations contained in this Contract. 
           *  The insurance provided for Commercial General Liability and Auto Liability above will: 

(a)  include Customer as an additional insured with respect to Work performed under this Contract, but only to the extent 
of the indemnity obligations contained in this Contract, and 
(b)  provide that the insurance is primary coverage with respect to all insureds, but only to the extent of the indemnity 
obligations contained in this Contract. 

 
ARTICLE H.  FORCE MAJEURE 
If a Party shall be unable to reasonably perform any of its obligations under this Contract due to a Force Majeure event (other 
than the obligation to make payments hereunder), this Contract shall, at the other Party's option, (i) remain in effect but said 
Party's obligations shall be suspended until the said events shall have ended; or, (ii) be terminated upon ten (10) days written 
notice to the Party, in which event neither Party shall have any further liability to the other, except that Customer shall pay 
ENGIE SERVICES U.S. for all work completed up to the date of termination of this Contract.  “Force Majeure” shall mean those 
events caused beyond the control of the affected Party and which by the exercise of due diligence such Party could not reasonably 
have been expected to avoid and which it has been unable to overcome, including acts of God and the public enemy; relocation 
or construction of transmission facilities or the shutdown of such facilities for the purpose of necessary repairs; work by local 
Utility; flood, earthquake, tornado, storm, fire; civil disobedience, labor disputes, strikes, labor or material shortages, delay in 
manufacturing and deliveries of equipment; sabotage; restraint by court order or public authority (whether valid or invalid), 
and/or inability to obtain or keep in force the necessary governmental authorizations, permits, licenses, certificates or approvals 
if not caused by the fault of the Party asserting the Force Majeure. 
 
ARTICLE I.  DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
In the event of a dispute, claim, or controversy arising out of or in connection with this Contract, the Parties through their 
designated representatives/program managers agree to confer and attempt to resolve the matter informally. If the matter cannot 



7 | P a g e  

 

be resolved, the matter shall be arbitrated and either Party may file a written demand for arbitration with the American Arbitration 
Association ("AAA") and shall send a copy of such demand to the other Party.  The arbitration shall be conducted pursuant to 
the appropriate AAA Arbitration Rules in effect at the time the arbitration is commenced.  The award rendered by the arbitrator 
shall be final and binding on the Parties and shall be deemed enforceable in any court having jurisdiction thereof and of the 
Parties.  The arbitration shall be heard by one arbitrator, who shall have experience in the general subject matter to which the 
dispute relates.  The arbitration shall take place at the AAA office in Albuquerque, New Mexico.  The arbitrator does not have 
the power to award, and may not award, any punitive, indirect or consequential damages (however denominated).  All arbitration 
fees and costs are to be shared equally by the Parties, regardless of which Party prevails. Each Party will pay its own costs of 
legal representation and witness expenses. 
 
 
ARTICLE J. ENTIRE CONTRACT 
This Contract, when executed, together with all Schedules attached hereto or to be attached hereto, as provided for by this 
Contract shall constitute the entire Contract between both Parties and this Contract may not be amended, modified, or terminated 
except by a written consent, signed by the Parties. 
 
ARTICLE K.  ASSIGNMENT 
This Contract may be assigned by either Party upon written notice to the other Party. This Contract will be binding on, enforceable 
by, and inure to the benefit of, the parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns. 
 
ARTICLE L.  GOVERNING LAW 
This Contract and the construction and enforceability thereof shall be interpreted under the laws of the State of New Mexico, 
without regard to conflicts of laws principles. 
 
ARTICLE M.   INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
The Parties hereto agree that ENGIE SERVICES U.S., and any agents and employees of ENGIE SERVICES U.S., its 
subcontractors and/or consultants, in the performance of this Contract, shall act in an independent capacity and not as officers, 
employees, or agents of Customer. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 



TEMPORARY GALLERY
104

FEEZER 
GALLERY

105106

McADOO
GALLERY

107

MCADOO
GALLERY

108
STORE

100
ENTRY

102
HISTORICAL

103
ATRIUM

114
OFFICE

111
CLASSROOM

109
WORK

110
STOR

112
CORRIDOR

FAME
HALL OF

101
PIONEER GALLERY

113
STOR

118
CORRIDOR

MEN

WOMEN

DISPLAY

DISPLAY

TOOLS

T

T

TT

T

T

TT

T

TT

H

H

3T

5T5T

25T

ELECT

EXT
ELECT

NEW LIGHTING PANEL 120V

NEW 480V PANEL FOR HVAC EQUIPMENT

EXISTING HUMIDIFIER TO BE REMOVED

117

ARCH

BREAK
ROOM

KITCHEN

NEW RO AND WATER SOFTENER
SYSTEM FOR HUMIDIFIERS

NEW HUMIDIFIER FOR 25T UNIT

EXISTING TO REMAIN

MAIN ELECTRICAL 
DISTRIBUTION CENTER

NEW HUMIDIFIER FOR 5 TON UNITS

NEW 480V TO 120V TRANSFORMER

STEAM DISPERSION STATION
3 FOR RTU #1

STEAM DISPERSION STATION
1 FOR EACH RTU #2 AND #3



















  

  



CARLSBAD MUSEUM
1/16" = 1'

N

C
AR

LS
BA

D
 M

U
SE

U
M

41
8 

W
 F

ox
 S

t, 
C

ar
ls

ba
d,

 N
M

 8
82

20

HVAC FLOOR
PLAN



 MONTHLY REPORT:     

Ken Britt 
Director 

Total Patrons Served: 

June 2019

34,355



MONTHLY WORK REPORT 
 

 

DEPARTMENT: GOLF COURSE 
 

MONTH: JUNE 
 

NO. OF EMPLOYEES: 5  FULL TIME 1 SEA 
 

NO. OF DAYS IN MONTH: 30 
 

HOLIDAYS THIS MONTH: 0  
 

NO. OF WORK DAYS THIS MONTH: 20 
    
 
     ROUNDS PLAYED: JUNE 2019: 3,110 DOWN 9 ROUNDS OVER JUNE 2018 
  

ROUTINE TASKS NON-ROUTINE TASKS 
TASK HOURS TASK HOURS 

Mowing Fairways 109 Clean Riverwalk 16 
Mowing Greens 84   

Mowing Tees 72   
Mowing Fringes 28   
Mowing Roughs 113   

Setting Up 42   

Mower Maint. and Minor Repair 22   
Watering Trees 0   

Irrigation System Maintenance 179   
Manual Watering 0   

Shop Housekeeping 12   
Hand Mowing and Trimming 105   

Roll Greens 75   
Blow debris off greens, pick up 

branches 
32   

Clean bathrooms, empty trash, 
move tee markers, fill water 

cans, check ball washers 

100   

    
TOTAL HOURS SPENT ON 

ROUTINE TASKS 
973 TOTAL HOURS SPENT ON NON- 

ROUTINE TASKS 
16 

 
    

TOTAL GOLF COURSE 
HOURS 

989   

 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by:    
 

Kyle Boatman, Golf Course Superintendent 
 
 
 
 
 



Monthly Report-June 2019 
 

AIRPORT 
 

Attendance-2000 
 

 
 

 
Daily-Monday-Friday 
 
Daylight and Nighttime Airfield documented inspections followed by corrective actions. 
Perimeter check of all gates and for intrusion of wildlife. 
Cleaning terminal daily. Restock sanitary items. 
Maintain vehicles and equipment. 
Removal of trash in Parking lot, Entrance and on Airfield. 
Open Terminal at 5:00am and lock Terminal at 5:00pm. Monday-Friday and 5:00am-1:30pm 
Saturday and Sunday. 
 
 
 

Weekends 
 

 
Open Terminal at 5:00 am and close Terminal at 1:30 pm. Boutique Airlines will lock last 
doors and turn off lights when all passengers are gone. 

 

 
Airfield Inspections are completed on both Saturday and Sunday by doing a nighttime and 
daytime Inspection. 

 

 
Cleaning duties and other assigned duties on a as need basis are done. 

 

 
 

 

 
Weekly 
 
F.O.D. removal on Runways, Taxiways and Ramp. 
Check generators for fuel and oil. Operate if not on weekly cycle. 
Continue to weed-eat needed areas. 
Continue mowing Airfield Safety areas. 



Continue raking around lights and signs.  
Continue trapping gophers. 
Fuel all vehicles, cans and diesel reserve tank. 
Water plants in Terminal building. 
Mow, edge and prune front entrance lawn. 
Clean entire Terminal 
 

 
Significant non-routine 
Although all weekly and daily work is ongoing, much time is being spent controlling air traffic 
and providing escorts to construction personal.  In addition, we are providing and 
accomplishing a seven-day a week operation with one Airport Operations Specialist and one 
Foreman.  Also, as of June 17 the position of Airport Operations Specialist (#2) was filled and  
Training has been on-going. 
Projects 
 
1.  The card reader controller is in full operation as of June 30, 2019. 
 
2.  Construction on Taxiway C Relocation is on-going and progress is being made.  

 
 
 
 
 



Boutiqueair Delays and Cancellations 
 

 
 
Boutiqueair Traffic Report: 
Here's the traffic report for Boutique Air at CNM for last month: 
 

 
Flights 

Scheduled 
Flights 
Flown 

Cancelled 
Weather 

Cancelled 
other 

Revenue 
Passengers 

June 
2019 

6/1 to 
6/30 

Enplaned 
CNM ABQ 50 43 1 6 245 

Deplaned 
CNM ABQ 50 43 1 6 236 

Enplaned 
CNM DFW 25 24 0 1 168 

Deplaned 
CNM DFW 25 22 0 3 153 

 
 

FLIGHTS/Passenger Revenue UP DOWN 
 Enplaned CNM to ALB  37 
Deplaned CNM to ALB  24 
Enplaned CNM to DFW 3  
Deplaned CNM to DFW   16 

 

DATE-2019-JUNE 651-CNM-ABQ 654-ABQ-CNM 554-CNM-DFW 553-DFW-CNM 653-CNM-ABQ 652-ABQ-CNM WEATHER?
1-Jun
2-Jun 30min.-delay 1hr.-delay
3-Jun Canceled Canceled canceled canceled yes
4-Jun 1hr.-delay 1hr.-delay
5-Jun 1hr.-delay 1hr.-delay 1hr.-delay
6-Jun 35min.-delay 30min.-delay
7-Jun 2hr.-delay 2hr.-delay 2hr.-delay
8-Jun
9-Jun Canceled Canceled Canceled

10-Jun Canceled Canceled Canceled
11-Jun
12-Jun
13-Jun 40min-delay
14-Jun
15-Jun
16-Jun 3hr.-delay 3hr.-delay 3hr.-delay yes
17-Jun 3hr.-delay 3hr.-delay 3hr.-delay 1hr.-delay 1hr.-delay 13hr.-delay
18-Jun 2hr.-delay 2hr.-delay 2hr.-delay
19-Jun Canceled Canceled Canceled
20-Jun Canceled Canceled 3hr.-delay 1hr.-delay 1hr.-delay 1hr.-delay
21-Jun
22-Jun
23-Jun
24-Jun 2hr.-delay 2hr.-delay 2hr.-delay
25-Jun
26-Jun
27-Jun 4hr.-delay 3hr.-delay 3hr.-delay
28-Jun 3hr.-delay 3hr.-delay 2hr.-delay
29-Jun
30-Jun Canceled canceled canceled



AIRPORT RAINFALL--2019 
Month Rainfall=Inches 
January .0 
February Trace 
March .7 
April .8 
May .4 
June 1.8 
July  
August  
September  
October  
November  
December  

 
TOTAL INCHES TO DATE— 3.7 



June 18

June 25

Rentals
Number of Rentals (50 to 100 patrons each)
Party Revenue
Concession Sales Gross Total

CCarlsbad Water Park
June 2019

June 1-June 30
Patrons Served 15,245
Paid Admission 12,045

The Carlsbad Water Park Introduced Special Evening Hours for the first time. The Water Park was 
open from 11 a.m. to 9 p.m.

The Carlsbad Water Park hosted another "Stars on the Water" event with hours of operation from 11 
a.m. to 9 p.m.

2300

Paid Admission Total

Tuesday -Sunday: 11am-6pm
Facility Use Summary

Under 4 691
Over 61 208
Pre-Purchased Passes Used 401

29
$11,150.00

$6,888.00
$60,225.00





  

 

 

Angelica Barrios Testa — Director 

MUNICIPAL SERVICES 
June 2019

29,462



 
 

MONTHLY REPORT 
FOR JUNE 2019 

 
Department:                             Municipal Services 

         Riverwalk Recreation Complex 
 
No. of Rental Events:                 14 
No. of Incidents/Complaints:     
   
Activities No. of Events No. of Patrons Total 
English Class 12 10 120  
Dance Class 2 8 16 
Loving School 4 100 400 
Home School Group 4 20 80 
Karate 9 8 72 
Carlsbad Yoga Barre 16 15 240 
Basketball Practice 16 8 128 
Fitness Class 20 8 160 
Coffee Drinkers 20 6 120 
Hockey Park 6 20 120 
Skate Park 30 50 1,500 
Racquet Ball Players 30 14 420 
Pickle Ball                    12 8  96 
Skate Night                       1 50 50 
Walk In Attendance                    30 300 9,000 
Rentals:                         
Birthday Parties                      9   65 585 
Baby Shower 5 60 300 
Attendance for the month was 30  13,407 
Average for the day was                    447  
 
Problem/Complaint Resolution:   
                                    
Minutes Attached: Yes   ___   No _X__ 
 
 
 
Signed:____________________________ 







                             

 Monthly Report June 2019 
 

Patrons Served:  761 
 
Public Programming & Events: 

 June 2 – Movie in the Park “Moana” – Postponed due to weather 
 June 3 – Historical Society monthly meeting held in the Hall of Fame 
 June 8 – Run! Super-Athletes of the Sierra Madre exhibit opening reception 
 June 9 – Adventures in the Sierra Madre presentation with Run exhibit curator 

Diana Molina 
 June 9 – Movie showing and question and answer session with Run Free 

documentary director in the Hall of Fame 
 June 10, 11, 12 – Creative Writing workshops held in the Hall of Fame by NM 

School of Arts 
 June 17 – Creative Carlsbad public meeting held in the Hall of Fame 
 June 27, 28, 29 – Photography Workshops held in the museum by Diana Molina 

 
Exhibitions: 

 June 8 - Run! Super-Athletes of the Sierra Madre exhibit opened 
 June 10 – Installation completed of Local Hangout exhibit Tom Kubriak – My 

Point of View 
Staff Activities: 

 June 12 – Dave Morgan and Edward VanScotter attended city procurement 
training 

 June 13 – Dave attended an ICIP meeting with Angie Barrios-Testa 
 June 14 – Dave Morgan went to the residence of Lori Aho to receive a donated 

collection of paintings of Carlsbad by Lori’s husband, Dr. Aho 
 June 20 – Dave Morgan met with the Engie company at the museum to discuss 

the upcoming HVAC project 
Collections: 

 A collection of paintings of Carlsbad by Dr. Aho was donated by Lori Aho 
Facility: 
 
Purchasing: 

 1 PO Approved 



 
MONTHLY REPORT 

JUNE 2019 
SAN JOSE SENIOR CENTER 

 
Number of Patrons Served: 2,959 (meals 1,195) 
New Members:  6 
Number of Incidents/Complaints:  0 
Date of Next Board Meeting:  July 3, 2019  
 
Activities/Projects:                                                    
  
 June 3rd – CCVN Advisory Board Meeting 
 
 June 5th – San Jose Advisory Board Meeting 
 
 June 12th – Police Advisory Committee Presentation -10:45 am 
 
 June 13th – Father’s Day Coffee – 9:30 am 
 
 June 14th – Father’s Day Dance – 6:00 pm – 10:00 pm 
 
 June 28th – June Birthdays Celebration – 10:30 am 
 
Upcoming Events: 

 July 1st – CCVN Advisory Board Meeting 

 July 3rd – Fourth of July Celebration 

 July 3rd – San Jose Advisory Board Meeting 

 July 9th – HUD Representative – 10:30 am 

 July 13th – Crafts, Bake, Garage Sale – 8:00 am-2:00 pm 

 July 19th – Dance – 6:00 pm – 10:00 pm 

 July 31st – Birthdays Celebration 
 
  



                     Months Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Grand Total
Amateur Hour 30 27 29 26 21 19 0 0 0 0 0 0 152
Arts & Crafts 15 1 7 8 6 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 44
Bingo 236 243 242 323 255 287 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,586
Puzzles 0 0 0 0 30 22 0 0 0 0 0 0 52
Crochet Class 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Computer Classes 32 37 42 33 40 27 0 0 0 0 0 0 211
Birthday Party (Monthly) 86 76 70 0 58 47 0 0 0 0 0 0 337
Dominos 43 33 36 33 31 32 0 0 0 0 0 0 208
Exercise Equipment 277 284 280 263 243 284 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,631
Creative Coloring Class 10 15 28 28 7 12 0 0 0 0 0 0 100
Line Dancing 38 40 41 56 38 39 0 0 0 0 0 0 252
Flu Shots 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Mexican BINGO 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
NM State Tax filing 0 132 61 34 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 227
Pool 158 156 177 171 167 169 0 0 0 0 0 0 998
Quilters 1 4 8 7 6 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 30
Sing - Along 95 76 160 0 58 47 0 0 0 0 0 0 436
Low Impact Exer. Class 47 37 78 13 0 36 0 0 0 0 0 0 211
Vitals (BP/Sugar/Oxygen) 84 84 91 91 63 84 0 0 0 0 0 0 497
NMLong Term Ag. (MCR) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Special Events 66 85 90 80 96 117 0 0 0 0 0 0 534
Dances 50 75 0 50 55 68 0 0 0 0 0 0 298
Activities/Projects Total = 1,268 1,405 1,440 1,216 1,174 1,301 0 0 0 0 0 0 7,804
Announcements 30 24 25 10 25 20 0 0 0 0 0 0 134
Copies 10 264 122 4 7 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 415
Forms 4 2 15 80 15 20 0 0 0 0 0 0 136
In-coming calls 412 413 456 443 437 349 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,510
Notaries 0 0 0 0 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 3
Referrals (Walk-ins) 3 20 10 18 8 12 0 0 0 0 0 0 71
Transportation 4 4 8 4 4 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 28
Services Total = 463 727 636 559 498 414 0 0 0 0 0 0 3,297
Training Class 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Safety Huddle/Safety 15 15 15 15 15 15 0 0 0 0 0 0 90
Foster Grandparents 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Lawyer Referral 4 0 2 0 2 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 12
Leadership Carlsbad 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Public Meeting 0 0 3 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 9
CCVN Advisory Board 5 5 5 7 7 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 36
SENMCA Meetings 4 5 0 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 0 0 24
San Jose Advisory Board 7 7 8 9 9 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 48
Meetings Total = 35 32 33 31 39 49 0 0 0 0 0 0 219
Patrons served - w/o meals 1,766 3,807 2,109 1,806 1,711 1,764 0 0 0 0 0 0 12,963
Nutritional (Meals) 1,778 1,643 1,836 1,689 1,444 1,195 0 0 0 0 0 0 9,585
Total Patrons served 3,544 3,807 3,945 3,495 3,155 2,959 0 0 0 0 0 0 20,905
Out of city limits served 223 225 250 265 245 217 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,425
Incidents/Complaints 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

San Jose Senior Center - 2019 Year to Date Report



MONTHLY REPORT 

                                                                               June 2019  

Department:  CCVN (Carlsbad Community Volunteer Network) 

 

No. of New Registered Volunteers:                   2 

No. of Active Volunteers:   284 

No. of Work Stations:      23 

No. of Volunteer Hours for June 2019:                3603             

Activities for the Month of June 2019  

CCVN Advisory Board Meeting was scheduled for June 3, 2019. The meeting was rescheduled due to no 
quorum.  The next regular board meeting is scheduled for July 1, 2019. 

 CCVN Volunteer Program continues to provide computer classes throughout the month at the 
San Jose Senior Center. 

 CCVN Volunteers continue to assist the community on a daily basis with distribution of 
commodities at Jonah’s House, Outreach Center, Community Kitchen, and San Jose Senior 
Center. 

 The CCVN Staff continues to focus on recruitment of volunteers for the various volunteer 
stations.                                              

 CCVN Staff meets with volunteer station managers once a month to collect volunteer hours. The 
Volunteer Coordinators continues to assure that volunteers are at their assigned station and 
encourage them to consider volunteering at other stations. 

 CCVN Staff have started making plans for the Annual Recognition Dinner. 

 

   

 

 

 

 



Station  January  February   March   April   May   June   July   August   September   October   November   December
  Current 

Total
Carlsbad Museum 20 25 30 25 25 15 140
Carlsbad Outreach 159 137 150 159 154 170 929
Cat's Meow 232 220 215 308 274 245 1494
CCVN Board Members 18 25 41 12 27 24 147
Christmas Anonymous 0
Community - General 175 307 311 346 332 295 1766
Community Kitchen 335 467 327 153 292 323 1897
Honor Guard 146 155 118 112 148 68 747
Hope Center 164 231 201 232 243 187 1258
Hospital Auxiliary 238 292 311 311 273 204 1629
Jonah's House 363 343 321 280 339 325 1970
Lakeview 15 25 54 60 55 60 269
Line Dancers 32 59 37 135 128 111 502
Living Desert State Park 159 251 210 245 222 222 1309
Meal site & Senior Center 521 538 553 709 808 592 3721
North Mesa Center 136 135 136 131 148 138 824
Prayer Group at Lakeview 63 124 80 76 76 80 499
San Jose Caring Hands 105 153 255 202 287 228 1230
Tai- Chi Instructor 31 18 6 55
Tran. Housing 162 180 25 83 153 117 720
Working with Homeless 77 152 152 170 73 90 714
Working with VA 45 59 67 74 89 52 386
Wounded Warrior Ouilts 16 43 54 65 70 57 305
Grand Total 3181 3921 3679 3906 4222 3603 22511

CCVN Volunteer Hours

2019 Summary Sheet



Monthly Report 
 June 2019 

NORTH MESA SENIOR RECREATION CENTER 
 
Number of Patrons Served:  2791 
New Members:  34 
Number of Incidents/Complaints:  0 
Date of Next Board Meeting:  July 10, 2019 
 
Activities/Projects/Attendance 

 
June 3rd   AARP Board meeting.  Eight members attended. 
 
June 4th  Hear On Earth Hearing aid care & repair assisted 7 members.  
  Encompass Health provided blood pressure and pulse/oxygen monitoring for 19   
  members. 
 
June 6th   Member Karen Gentry began a beginner’s iPhone class.  This ran for 3 consecutive   
  Thursdays and was well received with a total of 17 attending. 
  NMSRC staff members were certified in CPR 
 
June 7th   The Disability group met with 5 in attendance. 
 
June 8th  Disability & Networking group meeting on Saturday with 4 in attendance. 
 
June 10th The center began Salad Bar in a Jar. Monday 9:00 a.m. and Tuesdays at 5:15. This will  
  be a weekly activity. 
 
June 11th  Encompass Health provided health check services for 21 members. 
 
June 14th AARP Defensive Driving class was held with 5 people receiving certification. 
 
June 17th AARP held their monthly meeting at the center.  Nineteen members listened to Robert  
  Defer, Chief Executive Officer of the Chamber of Commerce.  
 
June 18th The center’s ACBL club held their “Longest Day” fund raiser for Alzheimer’s research.  
  Bridge games started at 8:00 a.m. continuing to 7:30 p.m. 38 members participated in the  
  marathon.  Hear On Earth assisted 6 members and Encompass Health provided 14 members  
  health checks. 
 
June 22nd, 23rd Sixteen Quilters enjoyed a weekend perfecting their craft. 
  
June 24th Line Dancers took their quarterly break Mon., June 24 through Wed., June 26. 
June 25th Encompass Health provided health checks for 13 members.          

 
June 28th Senior Social Potluck was held with 24 enjoying ham, potatoes, cabbage along with the  
  various items that were brought in.  Hosts were Wayne & Imm Hughes. Guests also 
  listened to a very informative talk  from Police Officer Josh Calder and retired Federal 
   Officer Mario Salinas regarding phone, mail, & e-mail scams. 
 



 
June 2019 

NORTH MESA SENIOR RECREATION CENTER 
  

Activity Participation                                                                     
Exercise 1014   
Library/Lapidary 128 
Arts/Crafts 158 
Pool/Ping Pong 465 
Card Games/Dominoes 320 
Western Jam/Bingo 58 
Line Dance 395 
Dance -0- 
Social/Orgs/Events 89 
ACBL Bridge 193 
Health/Wellness 80 
Visitors/Guests 0 
Total 2900  
 
 
Deposits 
Date Cash Checks   Total 

6/4/2019 52.50 7.50 60.00 

6/6/2019 63.78 22.56 86.34 

6/7/2019 45.00  45.00 

6/12/2019 30.00 7.50 37.50 

6/14/2019 45.00  45.00 

6/19/2019 60.00                        15.00 75.00  

6/25/2019 82.50 7.50 90.00      

Total 378.78 60.06 438.84 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Incidents/Complaints:  None 



MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT
Planning, Engineering, & Regulation Department

June 2019

ACTIVITY SUMMARY

1.  Business Activity:

New Businesses:  27 Temporary Businesses: 15 Business Renewals: 32

2.  Miscellaneous Permits:

Pavilions: 9 Facility Requests: 18 Other: 3 (Parade)

3. Code Enforcement:

Letters/Door Hangers Delivered: 51 Complied: 18 Referred for Condemnation: 5

4. Planning & Engineering activities for the month of June 2019:

NEW

Nine Planning & Zoning Applications Received for June Meeting
Code Enforcement - Concentrating on Condemnations
Census 2020 - Underway
Community Housing - Under Review
Asset Management Plan - Phase 3 Final Stages

ONGOING
Infrastructure Mapping (GIS)
Development Review
Subdivision Review and Approvals
Infrastructure Specification Document - Under Review
Code Enforcement - Respond to 311’s and Ordinance Enforcement
Carlsbad Comprehensive Plan - Update Underway

5. 311:
311s Submitted:  883

6 - 311 Customer Service
11 - Code Enforcement
12 - Public Works
0 - Water Department
8 - Illegal Dumping

311s Resolved:  800

0 – Administration (Clerk)
1 – Water Warehouse 
0 - IT
2 - PERD 
6 - Police          

837 - Solid Waste

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
Meets the first Monday of each month at 5 p.m. in the City Annex Planning Room, 114 S. Halagueno.

Signed: _________________________________
Trysha Carrasco, Deputy Planning Director

Digitally signed by Trysha Carrasco 
DN: cn=Trysha Carrasco, o=City of Carlsbad, ou=Planning and 
Zoning, email=pacarrasco@cityofcarlsbadnm.com, c=US 
Date: 2019.07.05 11:18:32 -06'00'



CEMETERY MONTHLY REPORT 

JUNE, 2019 

 

          Carlsbad          Santa   Sunset              

                                               Cemetery       Catarina       Gardens            Total 
 
Number of Interments: 27 1 5 33 
 
    Cremations  

    (Columbarium,  included)  

 
10 (0 ) 0 2(0) 12(0) 

 
     Babyland 0 0 0 0 
 
     Indigent 0 0 0 

 
0 

 
     Saturday 6 0 2 

 
8 

 
     Double Depth 

 
1 

 
0  

 
0 

 
1 

 
     SUNDAY/Holiday 0 

 
0 

 
0   

 
0 

 
     Disinterment: 0 

 
0  

 
0 

 
0 

 
Sale of Lots:  

    (Columbaria, included) 
6(0) 

 

0 

 

0    6 (0) 

 
     On Payment Plan: 1 

 
0 

 
0  

1 

 
     Pre-Need:  

    (Columbaria, included) 

 
1(0) 0 

 
          0 

 
1(0) 

 
Meetings: 0 

 
0 

 
0 0 

 
Monument Permits: 0 (0) 0      0 0 
 
Complaint/Incident Reports: 0   0 

 
     Vandalism  

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
     Damaged Stone   

 
 

 
 

 
     Sunken Grave  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
     Sunken Marker   

 
  

 
     Theft   

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
     Flowers     

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
     Maintenance   

 
  

 
 

 
     Other 4    

 
3 

 

7 
 
Correspondence:   

 
   

 
 

 



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FY 2018-2019 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

June 2019 
 

 

 

Ron Myers, Director of Utilities   



Current Previous Calendar

Environmental Services:  Month Month Year to Date

State and Federal Environmental Violations by City 0 0 0

Environmental Assessments (CDBG, P&Z, Drilling) 0 0 4

Environmental Compliance Inspections 0 0 0

Criminal Complaints Filed 0 0 0

Environmental Projects or Programs 0 0 1

Grease Interceptors Inspections 0 0 1

Laboratory: Current Previous Calendar

Municipal Water Sampling/Analysis:  Month Month Year to Date

Wellfield Chemical Characteristic Analysis               36 36 222

Partial Wellfield Chemical Characteristics 26 29 167

Monitoring Wells Chemical Analysis 9 8 53

Total Coliform Analysis 40 40 210

Fecal Coliform Analysis 0 0 0

Chlorine Residual Tests (DE) 20 23 129

Special Chemicals (BTEX, Ammonia, Nitrite) 0 0 0

Current Previous Calendar

Municipal Wastewater Sampling/Analysis (Reads):  Month Month Year to Date

Chemical Oxygen Demand Tests 0 0 0

Biochemical Oxygen Demand 12 15 78

Total Suspended Solids Tests 12 15 78

Volatile Alkalinity Tests 2 5 24

E-Coli on Effluent 12 15 78

Metals/TCLP/PCB/M2 Sampling on Sludge 0 0 0

Fecal Coliform Analysis on Sludge 0 0 0

Effluent Chemical Characteristic Analysis 1 1 6

Current Previous Calendar

DMR Bench Sheet:  Month Month Year to Date

Influent BOD Avg. (Lbs.) 5,533 5,627 33,382

Effluent BOD Avg. (Lbs.) 32.26 23.12 224.51

BOD Removal (%) 99.42 99.59 595.98

Influent TSS Avg. (Lbs.) 6,215 4,660 29,639

Effluent TSS Avg. (Lbs.) 39.97 31.37 319.32

TSS Removal (%) 99.36 99.33 593.39

ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES REPORT
JUNE 2019

7/9/2019 Pg. 1











ACRE 

FEET

1
4540 4496 17,600 449782 441429 8,353,000 26 18678 18587 91 1650

2
1479 1440 15,600 652086 646698 5,388,000 17 10541 10454 87 1250

3
3356 3207 59,600 118897 96173 22,724,000 70 34310 34073 237 1600

4
11932 11732 80,000 2905286 2873052 32,234,000 99 34096 33666 430 1400

5
7596 7180 166,400 4123212 4056615 66,597,000 204 41696 41020 676 1650

6
9811 8847 385,600 692502 625525 66,977,000 206 0 1750 391.5

7
31047 30777 108,000 3941927 3894581 47,346,000 145 107750 107262 488 1650

8
23724 23408 126,400 771410 721457 49,953,000 153 18828 18266 562 1550

9
0 0

10
401.40

959,200 2,571

299,572,000 919.36

346,112,000 1062.18

(46,540,000) (142.82)
Well #6 running as of 6/1/18.

6

CARLSBAD WATER SYSTEM WELL OPERATION

Jun-19

WELL

POWER CONSUMPTION X 400 WATER PRODUCTION X 1000 ENGINE HOUR CLOCK WATER LEVELS

GPM STATIC
CURRENT 

MONTH

LAST 

MONTH

KWH 

CONSUMED

CURRENT 

MONTH

LAST 

MONTH

GALLONS 

PUMPED

CURRENT 

MONTH

LAST 

MONTH

HOURS 

RUN
PUMPING

DRAW 

DOWN

Reservoir No. 4 Meter Total Gallons Pumped Comparison Total Rainfall
Notes

TOTAL KWH CONSUMED TOTAL PUMPED 299,572,000 919.36 TOTAL HOURS RUN

7,050,896

LAST YEAR, SAME MONTH

TOTAL CHLORINE USED

70.25 Gallons 2010 lbs.

OIL

DIFFERENCE

Total Inlet (x 1000) 288,942,000

Inlet This Month X 1000 7,339,838 THIS MONTH

 0 Inches

Wells #4 and #5 on State Trust Land

Inlet Last Month X 1000



Sheep Draw Water Pumped - Acre Feet 9867 Acre Feet Available Per Year

January February March April May June July August September October November December Total

1999 259.97 275.11 485.12 694.64 798.54 839.80 903.86 1,102.11 751.40 534.43 395.59 253.70 7,294.27

Total 535.08 1,020.20 1,714.84 2,513.38 3,353.18 4,257.04 5,359.15 6,110.55 6,644.98 7,040.57 7,294.27

2000 303.85 377.05 592.71 710.82 1,063.12 1,168.66 1,072.41 1,134.64 886.90 487.13 260.33 278.46 8,336.08

Total 680.90 1,273.61 1,984.43 3,047.55 4,216.21 5,288.62 6,423.26 7,310.16 7,797.29 8,057.62 8,336.08

2001 379.10 340.60 389.50 714.80 1,129.68 1,083.53 1,341.71 1,074.96 612.54 662.35 356.80 276.27 8,361.84

Total 719.70 1,109.20 1,824.00 2,953.68 4,037.21 5,378.92 6,453.88 7,066.42 7,728.77 8,085.57 8,361.84

2002 297.16 268.70 440.91 704.96 958.06 1,066.88 1,341.56 1,074.79 774.52 485.05 280.99 155.99 7,849.57

Total 565.86 1,006.77 1,711.73 2,669.79 3,736.67 5,078.23 6,153.02 6,927.54 7,412.59 7,693.58 7,849.57

2003 270.84 203.99 505.94 1,064.03 1,206.94 1,122.78 1,343.98 1,076.39 775.41 685.53 305.27 409.57 8,970.67

Total 474.83 980.77 2,044.80 3,251.74 4,374.52 5,718.50 6,794.89 7,570.30 8,255.83 8,561.10 8,970.67

2004 385.42 439.36 489.06 680.19 948.71 1,063.84 1,068.05 798.52 772.40 451.14 364.15 414.64 7,875.48

Total 824.78 1,313.84 1,994.03 2,942.74 4,006.58 5,074.63 5,873.15 6,645.55 7,096.69 7,460.84 7,875.48

2005 332.30 318.24 425.71 655.91 878.61 1,123.12 1,338.81 773.36 830.12 609.54 478.07 445.90 8,209.69

Total 650.54 1,076.25 1,732.16 2,610.77 3,733.89 5,072.70 5,846.06 6,676.18 7,285.72 7,763.79 8,209.69

2006 395.24 416.50 606.61 799.07 1,145.49 1,165.26 1,141.96 699.68 536.40 574.84 453.79 372.30 8,307.14

Total 811.74 1,418.35 2,217.42 3,362.91 4,528.17 5,670.13 6,369.81 6,906.21 7,481.05 7,934.84 8,307.14

2007 386.96 350.66 480.44 665.57 629.51 1,062.65 841.31 964.52 740.42 672.37 485.02 446.90 7,726.33

Total 737.62 1,218.06 1,883.63 2,513.14 3,575.79 4,417.10 5,381.62 6,122.04 6,794.41 7,279.43 7,726.33

2008 452.24 668.55 705.91 934.92 1,060.06 1,454.74 1,040.96 900.29 768.43 684.45 505.09 456.16 9,631.80

Total 1,120.79 1,826.70 2,761.62 3,821.68 5,276.42 6,317.38 7,217.67 7,986.10 8,670.55 9,175.64 9,631.80

2009 458.70 519.36 694.55 871.85 1,095.02 1,202.19 951.06 980.82 809.14 666.16 529.67 420.61 9,199.13

Total 978.06 1,672.61 2,544.46 3,639.48 4,841.67 5,792.73 6,773.55 7,582.69 8,248.85 8,778.52 9,199.13



Sheep Draw Water Pumped - Acre Feet 9867 Acre Feet Available Per Year

January February March April May June July August September October November December Total

2010 422.56 352.26 539.69 327.39 1,150.19 1,219.15 848.31 1,057.28 738.68 677.68 503.09 461.84 8,298.12

Total 774.82 1,314.51 1,641.90 2,792.09 4,011.24 4,859.55 5,916.83 6,655.51 7,333.19 7,836.28 8,298.12

2011 474.73 536.44 800.88 973.90 1,238.89 1,355.98 1,423.54 1,226.62 886.11 776.71 540.43 454.95 10,689.18

Total 1,011.17 1,812.05 2,785.95 4,024.84 5,380.82 6,804.36 8,030.98 8,917.09 9,693.80 10,234.23 10,689.18

2012 466.85 431.44 701.69 810.10 828.11 1,185.27 901.47 1,013.28 806.85 652.17 480.34 461.15 8,738.72

Total 898.29 1,599.98 2,410.08 3,238.19 4,423.46 5,324.93 6,338.21 7,145.06 7,797.23 8,277.57 8,738.72

2013 423.91 412.36 633.53 822.91 947.12 1,047.09 800.86 925.05 727.29 611.46 451.84 377.93 8,181.35

Total 836.27 1,469.80 2,292.71 3,239.83 4,286.92 5,087.78 6,012.83 6,740.12 7,351.58 7,803.42 8,181.35

2014 388.31 383.82 557.69 701.51 872.84 1,031.98 1,122.07 893.82 552.90 541.69 414.16 391.00 7,851.79

Total 772.13 1,329.82 2,031.33 2,904.17 3,936.15 5,058.22 5,952.04 6,504.94 7,046.63 7,460.79 7,851.79

2015 482.54 369.38 490.96 711.13 732.60 903.17 919.01 994.43 789.98 522.56 432.59 418.96 7,767.31

Total 851.92 1,342.88 2,054.01 2,786.61 3,689.78 4,608.79 5,603.22 6,393.20 6,915.76 7,348.35 7,767.31

2016 408.24 364.58 449.03 573.56 672.93 921.77 1,157.49 791.59 541.42 587.72 443.39 442.94 7,354.66

Total 772.82 1,221.85 1,795.41 2,468.34 3,390.11 4,547.60 5,339.19 5,880.61 6,468.33 6,911.72 7,354.66

2017 394.41 415.24 615.73 768.14 921.14 883.20 1,007.00 726.66 715.10 536.59 482.95 484.39 7,950.55

Total 809.65 1,425.38 2,193.52 3,114.66 3,997.86 5,004.86 5,731.52 6,446.62 6,983.21 7,466.16 7,950.55

2018 484.78 402.92 640.20 750.65 991.56 1,023.15 954.69 853.04 684.90 530.89 386.73 404.76 8,108.27

Total 887.70 1,527.90 2,278.55 3,270.11 4,293.26 5,247.95 6,100.99 6,785.89 7,316.78 7,703.51 8,108.27

2019 392.03 408.30 501.88 712.74 920.31 919.37 3,854.63

Total 800.33 1,302.21 2,014.95 2,935.26 3,854.63 3,854.63 3,854.63 3,854.63 3,854.63 3,854.63 3,854.63



YEAR JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC TOTAL

1998 426.17 385.79 554.45 826.67 1094.81 1420.73 1272.89 948.07 922.2 572.16 293.30 244.59 8961.83

1999 259.97 275.11 485.12 694.64 798.54 839.8 903.86 1,102.11 751.4 534.43 395.59 253.70 7294.27

2000 303.85 377.05 592.71 710.82 1,063.12 1,168.66 1,072.41 1,134.64 886.9 487.13 260.33 278.46 8336.08

2001 379.10 340.60 389.50 714.8 1,129.68 1,083.53 1,341.71 1,074.96 612.54 662.35 356.80 276.27 8361.84

2002 297.16 268.70 440.91 704.96 958.06 1,066.88 1,341.56 1,074.79 774.52 485.05 280.99 155.99 7849.57

2003 270.84 203.99 505.94 1,064.03 1,206.94 1,122.78 1,343.98 1,076.39 775.41 685.53 305.27 409.57 8970.67

2004 385.42 439.36 489.06 680.19 948.71 1,063.84 1,068.05 798.52 772.40 451.14 364.15 414.64 7875.48

2005 332.30 318.24 425.71 655.91 878.61 1,123.12 1,338.81 773.36 830.12 609.54 478.07 445.90 8209.69

2006 395.24 416.50 606.61 799.07 1,145.49 1,165.26 1,141.96 699.68 536.40 574.84 453.79 372.30 8307.14

2007 386.96 350.66 480.44 665.57 629.51 1,062.65 841.31 964.52 740.42 672.37 485.02 446.90 7726.33

2008 452.24 668.55 705.92 934.92 1,060.06 1,454.74 1,040.96 900.29 768.43 684.45 505.09 456.16 9631.81

2009 458.70 519.36 694.55 871.85 1,095.02 1,202.19 951.06 980.82 809.14 666.16 529.67 420.61 9199.13

2010 422.56 352.26 539.69 327.39 1,150.19 1,219.15 848.31 1,057.28 738.68 677.68 503.09 461.84 8298.12

2011 474.73 536.44 800.88 973.90 1,238.89 1,355.98 1,423.54 1,226.62 886.11 776.71 540.43 454.95 10689.18

2012 466.85 431.44 701.69 810.10 828.11 1,185.27 901.47 1,013.28 806.85 652.17 480.34 461.15 8738.72

2013 423.91 412.36 633.53 822.91 947.12 1,047.09 800.86 925.05 727.29 611.46 451.84 377.93 8,181.35

2014 388.31 383.82 557.69 701.51 872.84 1,031.98 1,122.07 893.82 552.90 541.69 414.16 391.00 7,851.79

2015 428.54 369.38 490.96 711.13 732.60 903.17 919.01 994.43 789.98 522.56 432.59 418.96 7,713.31

2016 408.24 364.58 449.03 573.56 672.93 921.77 1,157.49 791.59 541.42 587.72 443.39 442.94 7,354.66

2017 394.41 415.24 615.73 768.14 921.14 883.20 1,007.00 726.66 715.10 536.59 482.95 484.39 7,950.55

2018 484.78 402.92 640.20 750.65 991.56 1,023.15 954.69 853.04 684.90 530.89 386.73 404.76 8,108.27

2019 392.03 408.30 501.88 712.74 920.31 919.36 3,854.62

7

MUNICIPAL WATER SYSTEM
WATER RIGHTS PUMPED (C-76)

ACRE FEET

(9867 Acre Ft. Available Per Year)

7/9/2019



YEAR JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC TOTAL

1998 380.65 332.18 418.14 613.32 1057.78 1043.25 1511.13 1220.90 964.15 816.10 544.73 365.24 9267.57

1999 350.77 374.47 397.90 656.23 911.43 4297.85 920.96 1014.63 905.42 728.53 529.12 405.76 11493.08

2000 373.25 650.60 546.39 773.25 931.39 1142.12 887.46 1038.70 1263.06 789.03 390.59 337.31 9123.16

2001 359.22 321.33 350.51 521.39 826.57 1078.63 3129.89 1129.37 1153.48 696.13 620.56 508.76 10695.82

2002 361.07 373.67 374.24 527.03 956.91 1164.77 996.81 977.93 1153.18 607.92 431.21 301.17 8225.93

2003 391.07 304.91 404.05 598.44 999.69 1030.55 1061.59 1169.02 1046.52 731.67 559.33 342.90 8639.75

2004 418.82 310.23 337.47 479.72 685.58 983.31 984.35 814.65 763.90 475.02 413.97 302.17 6969.19

2005 368.27 275.02 299.95 503.81 693.61 840.97 1296.63 886.95 754.89 658.48 468.42 377.74 7424.74

2006 414.11 677.07 450.26 678.99 725.58 1280.61 1083.09 705.47 564.79 572.49 430.08 334.08 7916.62

2007 354.13 318.22 380.07 437.50 653.63 756.31 899.69 774.47 896.99 541.76 530.36 344.60 6887.72

2008 326.32 375.13 413.71 627.22 842.55 1025.43 943.54 855.66 605.32 559.79 494.03 0.00 7068.68

2009 439.03 352.25 614.56 2321.13 1268.55 1211.80 1099.85 927.66 1030.30 765.46 976.92 564.86 11572.39

2010 567.77 471.98 547.89 757.41 1272.59 1066.67 1081.09 913.03 1105.63 1031.30 950.35 786.38 10552.09

2011 444.27 760.40 774.56 1233.94 1338.54 1352.52 1717.55 1405.40 1347.32 924.66 874.25 677.51 12850.91

2012 565.38 642.97 581.75 926.04 848.01 1000.31 1440.24 1151.94 1237.78 866.01 865.02 670.56 10796.01

2013 616.99 671.05 645.27 975.32 1,049.04 1,249.35 944.16 951.65 1,058.15 785.76 592.98 469.93 10009.65

2014 475.55 470.88 507.96 653.04 920.21 1,041.43 1,157.15 978.54 953.20 558.14 550.55 417.07 8683.72

2015 554.03 282.77 520.21 624.18 758.14 800.23 985.58 863.21 1,068.91 639.91 478.42 448.68 8024.27

2016 456.11 302.09 482.13 615.67 708.66 828.42 1,071.60 820.33 623.25 460.13 368.12 305.64 7042.15

2017 389.78 306.60 440.10 639.30 654.47 838.50 1,049.46 698.97 675.47 504.34 369.98 684.50 7251.47

2018 422.34 332.74 345.80 670.09 971.05 975.33 966.38 858.30 871.28 451.67 438.60 355.77 7659.35

2019 393.08 359.27 350.49 565.35 639.70 890.80 3198.69

8

MUNICIPAL WATER SYSTEM
WATER SOLD

ACRE FEET

7/9/2019



YEAR JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

1998 10,356 10,389 10,391 10,433 10,468 10,485 10,519 10,509 10,481 10,487 10,410 10,396

1999 10,394 10,420 10,425 10,474 10,473 10,509 10,490 10,523 10,483 10,466 10,431 10,352

2000 10,378 10,370 10,365 10,394 10,450 10,468 10,490 10,479 10,517 10,456 10,368 10,318

2001 10,350 10,344 10,315 10,376 10,497 10,460 10,442 10,462 10,449 10,484 10,401 10,354

2002 10,385 10,398 10,360 10,396 10,485 10,486 10,492 10,479 10,512 10,468 10,448 10,534

2003 10,453 10,420 10,550 10,505 10,549 10,682 10,604 10,670 10,688 10,631 10,586 10,606

2004 10,608 10,541 10,617 10,624 10,627 10,678 10,700 10,730 10,671 10,672 10,684 10,597

2005 10,581 10,552 10,635 10,618 10,645 10,733 10,757 10,747 10,725 10,695 10,692 10,669

2006 10,676 10,669 10,663 10,704 10,687 10,759 10,720 10,746 10,739 10,711 10,670 10,645

2007 10,633 10,661 10,679 10,717 10,726 10,814 10,801 10,786 10,740 10,735 10,761 10,753

2008 10,804 10,784 10,809 10,826 10,836 10,880 10,861 10,875 10,820 10,758 10,713

2009 10,747 10,881 11,126 11,179 11,156 11,232 11,160 11,184 11,158 11,169 11,182 11,107

2010 11,132 11,105 11,201 11,157 11,208 11,221 11,216 11,225 11,201 11,205 11,184 11,165

2011 11,271 11,292 11,256 11,270 11,281 11,349 11,331 11,333 11,327 11,300 11,267 11,224

2012 11,249 11,229 11,277 11,305 11,333 11,353 11,368 11,370 11,319 11,332 11,344 11,321

2013 11,290 11,361 11,415 11,405 11,412 11,450 11,488 11,527 11,507 11,478 11,482 11,442

2014 11,501 11,709 11,803 11,807 11,848 11,893 11,919 11,988 12,001 12,022 11,892 11,993

2015 11,865 11,871 11,916 12,014 11,957 12,153 12,062 12,087 12,020 11,968 11,825 11,978

2016 11,854 12,116 12,166 12,125 12,143 12,224 12,170 12,219 12,162 12,076 11,979 11,948

2017 12,053 12,014 12,173 12,213 12,173 12,223 12,205 12,376 12,213 12,300 12,204 12,288

2018 12,315 12,307 12,329 12,384 12,452 12,531 12,472 12,479 12,467 12,408 12,577 12,352

2019 12,440 12,386 12,556 12,508 12,653 12,656

9

MUNICIPAL WATER SYSTEM
METERS IN SERVICE

7/9/2019



YEAR JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC TOTAL

2007 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

2008 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.01

2009 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.03 0.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.15 0.03 0.02 0.26

2010 0.13 0.02 0.04 0.55 0.18 0.85 0.03 0.10 0.03 0.04 0.19 0.76 2.94

2011 2.10 0.98 0.83 0.38 0.21 1.01 0.59 0.28 0.57 0.42 1.24 0.44 9.05

2012 0.59 0.62 1.08 0.83 1.83 3.64 2.31 3.67 2.27 2.01 1.67 1.87 22.41

2013 0.89 2.32 2.26 1.18 1.28 1.73 1.9 3.69 2.01 2.62 1.99 1.06 22.93

2014 1.86 0.73 1.04 1.55 0.66 0.20 3.17 0.96 0.37 1.89 0.80 0.61 13.84

2015 0.03 0.07 0.03 1.02 1.59 2.47 2.57 2.96 2.13 1.35 2.46 1.57 18.25

2016 1.14 2.21 3.25 3.48 2.43 1.45 0.064 0.031 0.002 0.016 0.00 0.058 14.13

2017 0.07 0 0.16 0.31 0 0.51 0.55 0.022 0.00 0 0.18 0.14 1.94

2018 0.00 0.07 0.06 0.082 0.303 0.00 0.002 0.002 0.002 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.53

2019 0.00 0.023 0.36 0.56 1.17 2.72 4.83

YEAR JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC TOTAL

2007 0.01 0 0 0.09 0.02 0 0 0 0 0.02 0 0 0.14

2008 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2009 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.2 0.2

2010 0.02 0 0 0 1.2 0.08 0.03 0.11 0.04 0.04 0.2 1.53 3.25

2011 1.18 1.09 3.76 3.87 3.32 3.91 3.32 1.69 3.5 3.25 3.99 0.81 33.69

2012 2.36 2.65 3.77 3.84 1.27 3.02 2.66 4.22 2.62 2.3 2.65 1.28 32.64

2013 1.32 1.11 0.88 0.49 0.64 1.67 1.78 2.70 1.22 0.97 1.20 0.95 14.93

2014 1.15 0.05 1.51 0.82 0.07 0 0.44 0.27 0.01 0.02 0.01 0.01 4.36

2015 0.01 0 0 0 0 1.04 1.78 3.12 1.12 1.60 2.07 1.25 11.99

2016 1.4 2.14 2.86 3.35 2.18 1.22 0.04 0.03 0 0.02 0 0 13.235

2017 0 0 0.15 0 0 0.48 0.53 0.00 0 0.00 0.00 0 1.16

2018 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0.00 0 0

2019 0 0 0.33 0.052 0 0.382

YEAR JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC TOTAL

2012 227 231 299 198 270 216 274 219 504 293 408 3139

2013 260 309 321 438 267 362 267 315 236 254 362 291 3682

2014 343 360 433 239 353 185 363 399 288 373 484 307 4127

2015 397 254 252 355 256 273 299 303 266 307 535 3497

2016 414 440 298 297 360 239 345 163 177 212 240 172 3357

2017 268 210 265 279 158 231 170 195 166 228 221 177 2568

2018 241 301 120 139 235 153 227 152 206 216 368 199 2557

2019 257 270 334 143 238 147 1389

10

WATER CUTOFFS

Note: Water Sold Report  is always one month behind.

AIRPORT WELLS
WATER SOLD

ACRE FEET

AIRPORT WELLS
WATER RIGHTS PUMPED

ACRE FEET

(61.24 Acre Ft. Available Per Year)

7/9/2019



YEAR JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC TOTAL

2008 0.16 0.14 0.07 0.12 0.10 0.14 0.26 0.06 0.09 0.07 0.08 0.06 1.34

2009 0.07 0.08 0.10 1.07 0.91 0.02 0.15 0.12 0.18 0.10 0.12 0.08 3.00

2010 0.03 0.03 0.06 0.10 0.10 0.67 0.15 0.13 0.15 0.11 0.09 0.06 1.67

2011 0.04 0.04 0.09 0.22 0.43 0.78 0.67 0.72 0.43 0.35 0.07 0.03 3.88

2012 0.05 0.04 0.08 0.17 0.17 0.31 0.22 0.19 0.09 0.10 0.09 0.03 1.54

2013 0.05 0.03 0.12 0.16 0.18 0.28 0.21 0.32 0.16 0.20 0.08 0.05 1.84

2014 0.07 0.10 0.16 0.10 0.13 0.29 0.34 0.31 0.17 0.18 0.11 0.10 2.06

2015 0.08 0.07 0.12 0.12 0.11 0.12 0.12 0.26 0.21 0.12 0.08 0.09 1.50

2016 0.07 0.08 0.10 0.07 0.10 0.22 0.16 0.09 0.04 0.04 0.037 0.031 1.04

2017 0.009 0.01 0.03 0.02 0.04 0.10 0.04 0.055 0.046 0.05 0.03 0.034 0.47

2018 0.04 0.02 0.04 0.02 0.02 0.03 0.02 0.03 0.025 0.025 0.034 0.058 0.37

2019 0.061 0.05 0.06 0.05 0.03 0.03 0.28

YEAR JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC TOTAL

2012 10.75 0 10.75

2013 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.51 4.53 4.47 2.98 5.09 1.73 0.51 0.00 0.00 20.82

2014 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 6.81 2.58 0.53 0.00 0.00 0.00 9.92

2015 0.00 0.00 0.07 2.68 2.84 1.93 1.13 2.72 4.71 1.47 2.17 0.26 19.98

2016 0.13 1.89 3.37 4.30 4.49 4.11 4.66 0.82 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 23.77

2017 0.00 0.00 2.60 3.92 3.87 3.63 4.18 2.97 0.33 0.00 0.00 1.38 22.88

2018 0.00 0.07 0.00 1.48 3.53 3.74 1.57 3.46 2.79 1.00 0.00 0.00 17.64

2019 0.00 0.00 0.04 2.56 4.36 4.57 11.53

YEAR JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC TOTAL

2008 1.23 4.83 1.99 9.94 8.47 5.77 5.74 9.59 5.04 5.52 2.49 0.50 61.10

2009 2.19 0.66 4.03 10.91 16.08 16.77 14.51 11.66 13.44 8.40 3.00 0.14 101.79

2010 0.02 0.07 1.71 6.32 14.64 17.33 5.79 12.66 6.97 8.66 0.63 1.55 76.36

2011 0.08 0.90 11.80 9.78 22.64 22.54 18.60 19.88 37.60 8.30 2.20 0.02 154.34

2012 0.00 4.81 9.11 11.16 11.79 18.76 10.00 11.69 15.24 1.89 0.05 0.64 95.13

2013 0.35 0.61 7.29 12.51 16.04 16.64 10.62 16.57 8.61 4.90 2.34 0.27 96.75

2014 1.36 1.79 6.64 10.62 16.04 22.07 21.01 13.50 3.31 4.42 0.12 0.25 101.13

2015 0.29 1.31 4.58 13.01 37.20 2.17 11.54 20.96 8.74 1.62 0.44 0.55 102.41

2016 0.27 2.67 14.42 13.03 22.09 30.57 33.17 15.94 8.18 15.31 1.38 1.44 158.47

2017 1.62 0.93 11.50 17.68 24.58 29.33 29.59 11.05 14.91 8.18 1.56 1.43 152.36

2018 5.02 3.40 12.61 15.47 26.22 28.31 27.69 24.12 34.65 5.79 11.50 1.96 196.74

2019 4.11 2.42 0.01 14.42 49.65 0.70 71.31

11

(416 Acre Ft. Available Per Year)

SUNSET GARDEN WELL
WATER RIGHTS PUMPED

ACRE FEET

WOOD FARM WELLS

(28.2 Acre Ft. Available Per Year)

SHOOTING RANGE WELL
WATER RIGHTS PUMPED

ACRE FEET

WATER RIGHTS PUMPED
ACRE FEET

(3 Acre Ft. Available Per Year)

7/9/2019







7/9/2019

Present Previous Present Previous Avg Static Water Pumping

Read Read Gallons Acre Ft. Read Read GPM Elevation Elevation

AMBASSADOR # 1 Neptune/ Trident off

AMBASSADOR # 4 Well Inoperable

AMBASSADOR # 3 Well Inoperable 5,717 5,554 163 off

C-11 McCrometer 344 344 0 0.00 8,975 8,858 117

C-10 McCrometer 915,326 733,457 181,869 0.56 26,295 26,234 61

CAPROCK # 2 Well Inoperable

CAPROCK # 3 Well Inoperable

CAPROCK # 1 Mc Crometer 16,747,423 16,469,594 277,829 0.85 64,422 63,526 896 8,636.6 8,497.8 138.80 30

CAPROCK # 4 McCrometer 19,060,285 18,899,716 160,569 0.49 60,244 59,653 591 8,357.2 8,291.8 65.40 45

CAPROCK # 5 Well Inoperable 0

CAPROCK # 6 Neptune/ Trident 970000 0/85797600 970,000 2.98 277,999 274,455 3,544 11,093.8 10,907.5 186.30 105

C-5 Well Inoperable

C-4 Mc Crometer

CAPROCK # 18 Sensus/ Omni 10,617,125 10,105,521 511,604 1.57 113,552 112,162 1,390 2,170.0 2,065.4 104.60 90

C-7 McCrometer 418,311 418,311 0 0.00 14,324 14,222 102

C-8 McCrometer 1,323,642 1,111,488 212,154 0.65 11,200 10,582 618

CAPROCK # 10 Mc Crometer 70,028,890 68,873,490 1,155,400 3.55 252,606 248,053 4,553 12,694.8 12,488.6 206.20 90

C-3 Mc Crometer

CAPROCK # 20 Sensus/ Omni 14,405,320 14,405,320 0 0.00 271,604 268,882 2,722 15,257.6 15,116.5 141.10 150

C-9 McCrometer 1,239 1,052 187 0.00 30,413 29,819 594

CAPROCK # 17 Mc Crometer 5,093,563 5,093,563 0 0.00 125,902 125,860 42 1,866.6 1,866.6 0.00 80

CAPROCK # 13 Mc Crometer 103,069,800 102,249,800 820,000 2.52 184,872 183,168 1,704 3,975.7 3,890.3 85.40 140

CAPROCK # 19 Mc Crometer Mag 22,098,158 21,958,629 139,529 0.43 26,163 25,769 394 7,588.9 7,481.0 107.90 25

CAPROCK # 16 Mc Crometer off

CAPROCK # 15A Mc Crometer 6,684,774 6,263,105 421,669 1.29 170,488 169,499 989 11,720.0 11,674.1 45.90 130

CAPROCK # 14 Mc Crometer 68,844,150 68,844,150 0 0.00 45,186 45,115 71 9,379.3 9,379.3 0.00 110

HUDSON # 1 Mc Crometer Mag 73,531,673 72,339,992 1,191,681 3.66 112,823 111,245 1,578 2,590.2 2,463.0 127.20 130

CAPROCK # 21 Mc Crometer 21,253,675 20,895,341 358,334 1.10 5,621 4,654 967 4,182.5 4,121.3 61.20 65

C-1 Mc Crometer 30,880,818 30,565,396 315,422 0.97 26,059 25,389 670 10,893.2 10,861.4 31.80 110

C-2 Mc Crometer 81,597,200 81,586,100 11,100 0.03 31,959 31,883 76 4,051.7 4,050.7 1.00 160

Frontier # 1 Sensus/ Omni 18,387,979 18,189,944 198,035 0.61 164,952 164,412 540 16,640.5 16,594.2 46.30 50

Frontier # 2 Mc Crometer 9,227,455 8,932,748 294,707 0.90 44,312 43,561 751 4,253.1 4,131.0 122.10 30

FRONTIER # 3 Mc Crometer 25,625,502 24,979,960 645,542 1.98 226,623 225,244 1,379 4,316.2 4,246.6 69.60 140

C-6 Mc Crometer 31,880,043 30,777,845 1,102,198 3.38 339,282 336,293 2,989 14,731.2 14,628.7 102.50 140

Boosters 272,625 272,625 0 19,329.0 19,329.0 0.00

2 MG RESERVOIR 19,111 19,090 21

Totals 8,967,829 27.52 27,522 1643.30

Meter Reads In Barrells 13

Ambassadors #1 &  # 3 - Wells Inoperable

C-3, & Caprock #16 - Wells Inoperable

Meter changed out by Xcel.

Hours RunWell Status

Water Pumped

KWH Current Previous

Double Eagle Well Operation

Jun-19

Water Production Power Consumption Motor Hours Well Information



7/11/2019

Present Previous Present Previous Avg Static Water Pumping

Read Read Gallons Acre Ft. Read Read GPM Elevation Elevation

AMBASSADOR # 1 Neptune/ Trident off

AMBASSADOR # 4 Well Inoperable

AMBASSADOR # 3 Well Inoperable 5,554 5,314 240 off

C-11 McCrometer 344 344 0 0.00 8,858 8,702 156

C-10 McCrometer 733,457 733,457 0 0.00 26,234 25,962 272

CAPROCK # 2 Well Inoperable

CAPROCK # 3 Well Inoperable

CAPROCK # 1 Mc Crometer 16,469,594 16,469,594 0 0.00 63,526 63,371 155 8,497.8 8,497.8 0.00 30

CAPROCK # 4 McCrometer 18,899,716 18,007,729 891,987 2.74 59,653 56,679 2,974 8,291.8 7,922.0 369.80 45

CAPROCK # 5 Well Inoperable 0

CAPROCK # 6 Neptune/ Trident 85797600 85797600 0 0.00 274,455 270,241 4,214 10,907.5 10,687.3 220.20 105

C-5 Well Inoperable

C-4 Mc Crometer

CAPROCK # 18 Sensus/ Omni 10,105,521 8,543,639 1,561,882 4.79 112,162 108,136 4,026 2,065.4 1,758.1 307.30 90

C-7 McCrometer 418,311 418,311 0 0.00 14,222 14,048 174

C-8 McCrometer 1,111,488 849,003 262,485 0.81 10,582 9,789 793

CAPROCK # 10 Mc Crometer 68,873,490 67,712,680 1,160,810 3.56 248,053 243,590 4,463 12,488.6 12,281.8 206.80 90

C-3 Mc Crometer

CAPROCK # 20 Sensus/ Omni 14,405,320 14,398,088 7,232 0.02 268,882 265,279 3,603 15,116.5 14,931.8 184.70 150

C-9 McCrometer 1,052 741 311 0.00 29,819 28,661 1,158

CAPROCK # 17 Mc Crometer 5,093,563 5,093,563 0 0.00 125,860 125,745 115 1,866.6 1,866.6 0.00 80

CAPROCK # 13 Mc Crometer 102,249,800 99,257,900 2,991,900 9.18 183,168 177,111 6,057 3,890.3 3,579.5 310.80 140

CAPROCK # 19 Mc Crometer Mag 21,958,629 21,650,402 308,227 0.95 25,769 24,940 829 7,481.0 7,245.4 235.60 25

CAPROCK # 16 Mc Crometer off

CAPROCK # 15A Mc Crometer 6,263,105 5,423,606 839,499 2.58 169,499 167,562 1,937 11,674.1 11,582.1 92.00 130

CAPROCK # 14 Mc Crometer 68,844,150 68,844,150 0 0.00 45,115 45,030 85 9,379.3 9,379.3 0.00 110

HUDSON # 1 Mc Crometer Mag 72,339,992 71,260,329 1,079,663 3.31 111,245 109,761 1,484 2,463.0 2,347.1 115.90 130

CAPROCK # 21 Mc Crometer 20,895,341 20,548,607 346,734 1.06 4,654 3,639 1,015 4,121.3 4,061.8 59.50 65

C-1 Mc Crometer 30,565,396 29,929,526 635,870 1.95 25,389 24,028 1,361 10,861.4 10,794.8 66.60 110

C-2 Mc Crometer 81,586,100 80,644,800 941,300 2.89 31,883 30,363 1,520 4,050.7 3,965.4 85.30 160

Frontier # 1 Sensus/ Omni 18,189,944 17,313,718 876,226 2.69 164,412 162,219 2,193 16,594.2 16,387.9 206.30 50

Frontier # 2 Mc Crometer 8,932,748 8,545,163 387,585 1.19 43,561 42,533 1,028 4,131.0 3,970.3 160.70 30

FRONTIER # 3 Mc Crometer 24,979,960 23,881,559 1,098,401 3.37 225,244 222,902 2,342 4,246.6 4,127.3 119.30 140

C-6 Mc Crometer 30,777,845 28,543,709 2,234,136 6.86 336,293 330,212 6,081 14,628.7 14,416.7 212.00 140

Boosters 272,625 272,625 0 19,329.0 19,329.0 0.00

2 MG RESERVOIR 19,090 19,058 32

Totals 15,624,248 47.95 48,307 2952.80

Meter Reads In Barrells 13

Ambassadors #1 &  # 3 - Wells Inoperable

C-3, & Caprock #16 - Wells Inoperable

Meter changed out by Xcel.

Corrections

Hours RunWell Status

Water Pumped

KWH Current Previous

Double Eagle Well Operation

May-19

Water Production Power Consumption Motor Hours Well Information



YEAR JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC TOTAL

1993 127.26 125.49 102.69 115.96 103.63 136.57 140.64 145.47 95.59 115.61 125.89 112.29 1,447.09

1994 124.08 119.20 113.05 145.59 105.80 110.30 94.00 149.20 112.90 111.90 146.80 78.10 1,410.92

1995 90.90 128.40 89.40 89.10 98.80 140.90 125.90 106.80 133.80 161.70 97.50 99.20 1,362.40

1996 111.80 77.60 100.00 151.20 133.20 117.70 205.40 158.80 164.10 136.10 120.70 112.20 1,588.80

1997 132.10 154.30 111.60 155.20 123.50 161.90 170.90 132.77 105.89 111.54 110.91 129.78 1,600.39

1998 130.83 155.18 113.30 131.10 152.43 119.88 130.83 112.66 116.60 121.75 95.89 118.50 1,498.95

1999 78.68 71.70 77.54 114.55 109.99 98.33 160.17 127.84 99.14 97.14 106.14 130.77 1,271.99

2000 113.29 117.02 135.80 108.22 147.45 140.18 132.03 130.61 164.64 123.90 119.08 109.78 1,542.00

2001 146.50 99.75 131.68 126.49 119.52 134.26 156.98 177.92 88.05 121.14 132.68 97.17 1,532.14

2002 110.71 96.18 114.93 131.16 117.33 107.38 108.68 108.99 171.67 130.89 132.41 115.11 1,445.44

2003 122.27 104.02 106.63 131.16 131.94 108.31 137.27 122.89 129.50 122.80 83.40 125.20 1,425.39

2004 94.10 99.14 108.96 88.59 85.29 104.91 80.47 96.62 108.99 99.07 84.00 132.98 1,183.12

2005 81.06 73.83 91.00 90.00 110.71 129.71 103.80 125.81 89.55 91.54 92.55 103.75 1,183.31

2006 99.66 92.01 109.29 75.35 137.85 132.18 86.22 98.53 96.51 96.88 103.45 82.69 1,210.62

2007 73.12 78.65 99.85 73.60 97.46 93.25 114.77 141.58 113.26 111.06 98.79 109.92 1,205.31

2008 108.28 117.41 93.89 110.54 91.87 107.59 103.60 134.80 114.37 126.79 119.45 139.80 1,368.39

2009 115.53 83.87 105.70 112.09 109.80 124.02 128.01 105.62 101.64 134.59 96.48 98.93 1,316.28

2010 98.23 113.03 134.55 139.75 121.56 152.79 139.33 180.08 160.27 158.58 167.75 151.88 1,717.80

2011 171.89 131.01 144.73 160.28 185.57 170.30 157.83 137.34 139.25 135.26 137.58 117.98 1,789.02

2012 112.77 108.16 110.15 110.62 111.76 186.92 141.80 163.02 72.61 134.45 161.72 175.64 1,589.62

2013 164.38 146.44 142.20 145.50 142.80 124.28 97.54 94.88 109.18 103.89 93.63 85.58 1,450.30

2014 85.93 86.42 87.69 97.98 125.16 108.77 144.13 120.58 98.47 114.24 102.38 107.72 1,279.47

2015 89.83 63.29 89.61 87.98 64.58 50.44 70.24 51.81 37.52 33.59 30.08 30.07 699.04

2016 30.64 38.22 36.18 26.75 28.85 34.75 32.22 33.35 23.61 26.72 29.06 31.03 371.38

2017 25.7 35.61 28.01 23.74 32.89 38.88 31.35 39.17 34.97 35.18 35.9 30.94 392.34

2018 40.13 23.75 34.02 35.14 39.33 42.3 31.46 43.72 38.41 37.23 35.01 31.7 432.20

2019 38.5 31.43 38.88 47.10 47.95 27.52 231.38

14

DOUBLE EAGLE WATER SYSTEM
WATER RIGHTS PUMPED

ACRE FEET
7648 Acre Ft. Available Per Year

7/9/2019



YEAR JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC TOTAL

1997 164.98 142.78 141.45 164.01 136.07 198.32 223.12 182.77 187.52 170.22 197.76 1,909           

1998 200.04 159.87 122.00 121.08 125.87 196.82 157.93 150.40 118.47 117.29 121.67 102.30 1,694           

1999 106.42 73.98 68.12 86.24 93.07 85.15 95.56 100.62 95.88 74.37 101.29 99.00 1,080           

2000 137.51 122.38 127.96 110.84 90.93 110.81 111.90 82.50 89.49 45.71 60.36 45.43 1,136           

2001 75.00 65.55 45.53 81.43 74.79 103.72 71.29 139.47 65.07 36.06 50.18 61.96 870              

2002 43.84 82.83 80.26 161.21 93.23 113.19 96.36 119.52 105.17 96.72 77.40 111.07 1,181           

2003 103.16 118.81 92.16 100.16 106.02 121.98 117.48 118.48 96.98 96.27 117.92 65.14 1,255           

2004 77.06 132.54 98.28 113.37 95.77 156.29 95.71 102.28 75.52 133.76 82.88 78.70 1,242           

2005 95.53 53.68 62.88 76.56 70.95 68.86 107.91 88.42 76.59 66.83 88.31 60.69 917              

2006 68.06 68.09 64.04 74.07 54.60 73.13 70.56 65.77 63.28 71.94 70.15 67.72 811              

2007 63.47 71.20 43.33 64.06 81.36 83.03 80.18 72.46 89.35 38.88 49.77 115.89 853              

2008 73.31 54.99 170.85 58.17 113.89 87.58 112.17 93.30 54.07 113.46 87.57 0.00 1,019           

2009 133.68 134.89 193.91 128.57 124.42 147.29 149.87 144.41 403.39 204.34 216.64 205.47 2,187           

2010 166.20 147.23 156.74 206.90 262.81 159.74 235.21 209.27 261.26 289.04 249.98 202.71 2,547           

2011 273.88 296.83 197.17 305.62 293.17 356.46 306.39 341.59 373.96 299.28 332.79 115.34 3,492           

2012 70.53 108.07 365.95 127.64 147.59 169.53 110.81 151.82 168.33 94.88 158.73 145.76 1,820           

2013 304.62 105.90 114.03 89.49 91.59 72.45 66.60 67.58 58.66 52.40 62.94 49.32 1,136           

2014 60.02 54.78 73.24 66.94 80.62 76.05 68.73 80.55 75.86 58.67 67.36 63.32 826              

2015 59.07 47.81 31.75 28.16 38.17 18.94 17.79 19.48 17.51 11.21 9.04 8.54 307              

2016 11.61 8.13 9.02 7.07 5.58 4.20 7.95 6.37 7.11 4.21 3.57 3.61 78                

2017 4.28 4.14 3.55 4.95 3.85 8.38 7.79 4.46 4.83 3.69 4.76 7.98 63                

2018 6.59 9.34 3.65 6.59 7.74 7.76 11.90 10.94 10.64 4.89 8.53 4.29 93                

2019 8.82 6.04 3.21 5.81 9.53 6.98 40                

Note: Free Stock Included 15

DOUBLE EAGLE WATER SYSTEM
WATER SOLD

ACRE FEET

7/9/2019







YEAR JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC TOTAL

1999 321.96 281.14 277.87 284.86 325.79 338.14 368.30 364.52 353.57 350.40 329.14 305.76 3,901.45

2000 275.31 248.42 260.88 233.80 316.16 282.37 276.77 278.69 311.94 258.03 349.52 325.73 3,417.62

2001 272.21 204.60 217.67 191.40 142.09 236.98 244.68 224.77 225.64 195.79 254.84 265.78 2,676.45

2002 266.35 232.01 263.62 256.99 225.81 190.74 250.02 214.79 206.30 244.07 207.28 239.84 2,797.82

2003 195.98 143.44 168.79 155.94 169.64 151.16 185.64 183.40 174.65 209.24 209.88 236.34 2,184.10

2004 232.32 213.56 223.88 291.51 274.82 213.81 209.05 186.17 199.53 241.73 280.59 208.26 2,775.23

2005 184.13 164.12 178.11 168.66 206.41 168.17 167.37 181.58 157.77 173.60 147.12 169.92 2,066.96

2006 141.87 127.02 172.99 140.40 140.92 169.70 174.86 188.76 197.39 185.97 178.88 182.23 2,000.99

2007 175.29 153.32 169.55 166.88 207.94 153.26 271.96 303.14 316.00 351.48 364.76 305.84 2,939.42

2008 259.44 239.22 252.53 246.40 228.69 180.08 206.35 210.09 240.35 261.89 258.89 171.21 2,755.14

2009 358.99 231.11 189.22 175.11 196.47 196.37 167.43 158.99 147.30 182.56 165.29 186.18 2,355.02

2010 179.80 164.40 171.85 172.47 136.28 138.37 220.04 174.07 196.08 190.49 192.02 181.35 2,117.22

2011 177.75 161.00 153.44 128.22 131.87 132.52 140.71 144.86 149.98 149.77 158.14 176.47 1,804.73

2012 177.26 133.35 158.96 132.17 197.54 139.17 163.09 149.43 143.97 124.39 140.86 183.20 1,843.39

2013 174.54 155.21 161.36 131.65 121.07 133.60 175.46 164.14 177.28 206.07 240.30 209.81 2,050.49

2014 210.63 150.47 156.04 153.06 160.67 157.52 218.21 280.09 284.34 255.76 244.57 224.53 2,495.89

2015 251.82 212.71 212.94 169.98 208.69 201.13 216.44 237.77 198.80 221.07 202.61 233.28 2,567.24

2016 250.84 215.81 203.86 199.36 220.94 213.33 202.97 238.61 251.05 230.03 217.11 202.17 2,646.08

2017 226.02 195.23 190.92 172.18 121.62 114.39 132.83 166.44 166.80 172.02 164.66 171.59 1,994.70

2018 180.72 134.33 132.78 116.31 115.83 119.59 129.91 152.77 160.73 184.72 166.96 175.48 1,770.13

2019 187.77 147.18 151.39 141.14 122.93 147.25 897.66

EFFLUENT DISCHARGE TO PECOS RIVER
ACRE / FEET

7/9/2019 Pg. 18



YEAR JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC TOTAL

1999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

2000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

2001 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

2002 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

2003 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

2004 18.94 15.45 17.52 25.36 40.46 43.55 50.58 38.81 31.31 20.14 7.82 8.08 318.02

2005 6.96 5.99 14.35 35.49 31.91 43.54 45.14 30.45 37.52 25.95 25.12 20.74 323.16

2006 22.68 22.17 23.21 37.40 49.95 99.47 207.81 72.92 23.20 34.28 20.50 17.75 631.34

2007 13.63 13.91 24.14 31.79 27.52 49.34 36.59 38.53 32.68 25.42 12.77 13.64 319.96

2008 15.06 20.54 21.83 41.29 46.49 48.50 35.56 40.95 22.85 38.63 26.92 7.18 365.80

2009 16.77 20.71 26.54 40.51 39.84 41.08 44.08 51.38 49.33 43.70 27.62 11.71 413.27

2010 16.58 8.89 23.08 31.79 62.07 61.63 15.10 49.33 28.02 29.55 21.36 18.51 365.91

2011 14.69 8.13 38.05 54.54 56.44 52.72 55.45 50.42 49.73 44.67 23.78 7.38 456.00

2012 5.82 10.40 24.91 46.25 37.18 50.67 42.51 59.86 50.03 26.67 15.56 8.15 378.01

2013 8.68 7.48 21.68 38.81 58.76 53.68 37.15 36.50 21.42 29.52 12.20 14.36 340.24

2014 19.88 23.44 34.05 32.20 47.27 54.26 67.18 45.85 21.00 32.05 19.69 28.04 424.91

2015 7.33 13.31 21.93 47.89 49.49 75.50 63.51 46.70 44.23 16.48 17.41 12.08 415.86

2016 7.43 17.65 41.85 42.00 37.41 34.82 53.26 35.94 29.90 29.75 21.56 18.97 370.54

2017 10.85 15.78 32.93 38.92 58.76 70.39 69.88 42.35 41.26 32.46 17.40 10.48 441.46

2018 25.29 45.73 62.15 81.04 88.81 83.84 93.81 74.15 55.54 42.74 34.22 15.62 702.94

2019 18.09 35.37 50.54 63.17 87.76 78.14 333.07

EFFLUENT REUSE 
ACRE / FEET

7/9/2019 Pg. 19



YEAR JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

2000 9,208 9,177 9,197 9,203 9,234 9,240 9,228 9,159 9,115

2001 9,108 9,126 9,227 9,178 9,227 9,208 9,210 9,166 9,103

2002 9,111 9,123 9,132 9,156 9,207 9,202 9,202 9,179 9,210 9,162 9,170 9,142

2003 9,114 9,130 9,173 9,172 9,198 9,253 9,251 9,278 9,272 9,236

2004 9,205 9,203 9,233 9,242 9,276 9,259 9,283 9,255 9,256 9,224 9,182

2005 9,225 9,238 9,305 9,325 9,263 9,238

2006 9,226 9,235 9,240 9,283 9,290 9,313 9,357 9,419 9,306 9,295 9,275 9,274

2007 9,265 9,282 9,298 9,302 9,366 9,400 9,389 9,356 9,343 9,379 9,340 9,343

2008 9,367 9,383 9,383 9,389 9,414 9,420 9,438 9,302 9,258 9,441

2009 9,337 9,453 9,485 9,533 9,579 9,533 9,502 9,518 9,493 9,458

2010 9,469 9,466 9,517 9,486 9,506 9,532 9,524 9,527 9,530

2011 9,578 9,595 9,536 9,609 9,589 9,613 9,627 9,660 9,629 9,603

2012 9,650 9,626 9,669 9,680 9,694 9,706 9,714 9,710 9,674 9,695 9,672

2013 9,672 9,696 9,754 9,720 9,715 9,759 9,796 9,807 9,804 9,786 9,806 9,765

2014 9,800 9,787 9,830 9,843 9,855 9,891 9,895 9,941 9,945 9,943 9,931 9,943

2015 9,892 9,908 9,911 9,953 9,958 10,007 9,969 10,003 9,968 9,990 9,935 9,975

2016 9,924 10,026 10,054 10,061 10,033 10,062 10,054 10,063 10,020 9,982 9,954 9,966

2017 9,994 10,002 10,060 10,108 10,107 10,167 10,151 10,197 10,182 10,213 10,196 10,235

2018 10,241 10,234 10,241 10,265 10,290 10,337 10,352 10,362 10,385 10,344 10,415 10,330

2019 10,381 10,380 10,426 10,418 10,458 10,466

20

MUNICIPAL SEWER SYSTEM
ACTIVE SERVICES

7/9/2019 



 
 

 
 

 
 CITY OF CARLSBAD 
 
 INTER-OFFICE MEMORANDUM  
Dale Janway, Mayor Mike Hernandez, City Administrator 
 
 

July 16, 2019 
 

 
TO:  Council Members 
 
FROM: Mayor Janway 
 
RE:  Board, Commission and Committee Appointments 
  
 
Subject to the approval of the Governing Body, I would like to appoint the following: 
 

 
Carlsbad Cemetery Board 
 
Appoint:  Richard VanDyke 2 year term 
Appoint: Desiree Kicker 2 year term 
Appoint: Amy Calderon Remander 2 year term   
 
Carlsbad Library Board  
 
Appoint  Beverly Carrasco  4 year term  
Reappoint:  Jo Calvani   4 year term  
   
 
 
  
Thank you. 
 
DJ/cm 
 
 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 2019-____

AN ORDINANCE REZONING PART OF “C-2”
COMMERCIAL 2 DISTRICT TO "C-1"
COMMERCIAL 1 DISTRICT FOR AN
APPROXIMATELY 0.115 ACRE PROPERTY,
LOCATED AT 701 W. GREENE ST., LEGALLY 
DESCRIBED AS LOT B, BLOCK 164, 
WOODARDS SUBDIVISION REPLAT, PURSUANT 
TO SECTION 3-21-1 ET. SEQ. NMSA 1978 AND 
SECTIONS 56-150(B) AND 56-140(I), CARLSBAD 
CODE OF ORDINANCES.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF CARLSBAD, 

EDDY COUNTY, NEW MEXICO, that: 

The official zoning map of the City is hereby amended to rezone part of "C-2" Commercial 2 District 

to "C-1" Commercial 1 District, for an approximately 0.115 acre property, located at 701 W. Greene 

St., Carlsbad, NM, legally described as: 

LOT B, BLOCK 164, WOODARDS SUBDIVISION REPLAT

INTRODUCED, PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED this 10TH day of September, 2019.

____________________________________
DALE JANWAY, MAYOR 

ATTEST:

__________________________________
CITY CLERK



ORDINANCE NO. 2019-____

AN ORDINANCE REZONING PART OF “C-2”
COMMERCIAL 2 DISTRICT TO "R-2"
RESIDENTIAL 2 DISTRICT FOR AN
APPROXIMATELY 0.275 ACRE PROPERTY,
LOCATED AT 308 W. ROSE ST., LEGALLY 
DESCRIBED AS LOT 5,  BLOCK 1, MURRAY 
SUBDIVISION, PURSUANT TO SECTION 3-21-1
ET. SEQ. NMSA 1978 AND SECTIONS 56-150(B) 
AND 56-140(I), CARLSBAD CODE OF 
ORDINANCES.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF CARLSBAD, 

EDDY COUNTY, NEW MEXICO, that: 

The official zoning map of the City is hereby amended to rezone part of "C-2" Commercial 2 District 

to "R-2" Residential 2 District, for an approximately 0.275 acre property, located at 308 W. Rose 

St., Carlsbad, NM, legally described as: 

LOT 5, BLOCK 1, MURRAY SUBDIVISION

INTRODUCED, PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED this 10TH day of September, 2019.

____________________________________
DALE JANWAY, MAYOR 

ATTEST:

__________________________________
CITY CLERK



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE REZONING PART OF “R-R” 
RURAL RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT TO "C-1" 
COMMERCIAL 1 DISTRICT  FOR AN 
APPROXIMATELY 6.00 ACRE PROPERTY, 
LOCATED AT 301 W. CHAPMAN RD., LEGALLY 
DESCRIBED AS  TRACT B, COX TRACTS 5, 
PURSUANT TO SECTION 3-21-1 ET. SEQ. NMSA 
1978 AND SECTIONS 56-150(B) AND 56-140(I), 
CARLSBAD CODE OF ORDINANCES. 
 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF CARLSBAD, 

EDDY COUNTY, NEW MEXICO, that:  

The official zoning map of the City is hereby amended to rezone part of "R-R" Rural Residential 

District to "C-1" Commercial 1 District, for an approximately 6.00 acre property, located at 301 W. 

Chapman Rd., Carlsbad, NM, legally described as:  

TRACT B, COX TRACTS 5 

INTRODUCED, PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED this 10TH day of September, 2019. 

 
 
____________________________________ 
DALE JANWAY, MAYOR  

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
CITY CLERK 



ORDINANCE NO. 2019-____

AN ORDINANCE REZONING PART OF “C-2”
COMMERCIAL 2 DISTRICT TO "C-1"
COMMERCIAL 1 DISTRICT FOR AN
APPROXIMATELY 0.43 ACRE PROPERTY,
LOCATED AT 513, 515, 517, 519, 521, 523, 525, 527
WEST FOX STREET AND 206 SOUTH 
GUADALUPE STREET, LEGALLY DESCRIBED 
AS SUBD: STEVENS LOT: 2 BLOCK: 45 
QUARTER: SW S: 6 T: 22S R: 27E, SUBD: 
STEVENS LOT: 4 BLOCK: 45 LOT 4 LESS BEG 
SW COR LT 6 N 33.34' TO POB; E 65.2', N 60.7', W 
18.07', N 2', W 47.13', S 62.7' TO POB, AND SUBD: 
STEVENS LOT: 6 BLOCK: 45 LOT 6 LESS BEG 
SW COR LT 6 N 33.34' TO POB; E 65.2', N 60.7', W 
18.07', N 2', W 47.13', S 62.7' TO POB, PURSUANT 
TO SECTION 3-21-1 ET. SEQ. NMSA 1978 AND 
SECTIONS 56-150(B) AND 56-140(I), CARLSBAD 
CODE OF ORDINANCES.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF CARLSBAD, 

EDDY COUNTY, NEW MEXICO, that: 

The official zoning map of the City is hereby amended to rezone part of "C-2" Commercial 2 District 

to "C-1" Commercial 1 District, for an approximately 0.43 acre property, located at 513, 515, 517, 

519, 521, 523, 525, 527 W. Fox St. and 206 S. Guadalupe St., Carlsbad, NM, legally described as: 

SUBD: STEVENS LOT: 2 BLOCK: 45 QUARTER: SW S: 6 T: 22S R: 27E, 

SUBD: STEVENS LOT: 4 BLOCK: 45 LOT 4 LESS BEG SW COR LT 6 N 

33.34' TO POB; E 65.2', N 60.7', W 18.07', N 2', W 47.13', S 62.7' TO POB, 

AND SUBD: STEVENS LOT: 6 BLOCK: 45 LOT 6 LESS BEG SW COR LT

6 N 33.34' TO POB; E 65.2', N 60.7', W 18.07', N 2', W 47.13', S 62.7' TO POB

INTRODUCED, PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED this 10TH day of September, 2019.



____________________________________
DALE JANWAY, MAYOR 

ATTEST:

__________________________________
CITY CLERK



oeramirez
Typewritten Text
/s/ Michael A. Hernandez                                      07-18-19





oeramirez
Typewritten Text

oeramirez
Typewritten Text
/s/ Michael A. Hernandez                                         07-18-19



CITY OF CARLSBAD 

ICIP FY2021-2025 



CITY OF CARLSBAD
INFRUSTRUCTURE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (ICIP)  SCHEDULE/PROCESS

ICIP PROCESS

City Departments Review Prior Yr List

Public Meeting Series

Departments Meet to Review Public Comments

Executive Department Review/Approve Applications 

Project Applications Evaluated and Ranked  

City Council: Preliminary Project List and Ranking 

Revisions to Project Applications, List, and Ranking

City Council: Final Project List and Ranking

2020 2021

NM LEGISLATIVE PROCESS (and Funding)

City Council Begins Preparation for Legislative Session 2020 Session 2021 Session

NM Legislative Session

2019 List 2020 List

OTHER FUNDING SOURCES

Ju
n

e

Benchmarks

F
eb

ru
ar

y

M
ar

ch

A
p

ri
l

M
ay

2019 Calendar Year

Ju
ly

O
ct

o
b

er

N
o

ve
m

b
er

D
ec

em
b

er

O
ct

o
b

er

Ju
n

e

Ju
ly

A
u

g
u

st

S
ep

te
m

b
er

Legislation Acted Upon or Pocket Vetoed (Capital Outlay Funding)

City Seeks Funding for Projects through Other Funding Sources (e.g. 

Grants)

Final Project List Submitted to the State of New Mexico

City Council Receives Capital Outlay Funding for Approved Projects 

2020 Calendar Year

S
ep

te
m

b
er

A
u

g
u

st

Ja
n

u
ar

y

Departments Complete Internal Project Applications for Capital Projects

Ja
n

u
ar

y

F
eb

ru
ar

y

M
ar

ch

A
p

ri
l

M
ay

N
o

ve
m

b
er

D
ec

em
b

er

Preliminary Schedule 5.7.2019 ICIP Public Meeting Series Calender Year 2019



City of Carlsbad 
Infrastructure Capital Improvement Plan (ICIP) FY2021-2025 

Recommended Priority List 
 

ICIP FY2021-2025 (55 Projects) 

1. Radio Blvd.  
2. Airport Runway Lighting Upgrades 
3. Old Cavern Hwy Sewer 
4. Bataan Sanitary Sewer Lift Station 
5. Heavy Rescue Truck 
6. PD Evidence Holding and Processing Facility 
7. PD In-Car Video System 
8. New Fire Station - North Ph1-3 
9. Old Cavern Hwy Road 
10. Repair Riverwalk Recreation Center 
11. East Bypass Road 
12. Water System Improvements 
13. Double Eagle Waterline Improvements 
14. Cavern Theater Rehab 
15. Carlsbad Church Street Improvements 
16. Double Eagle Waterline Replacement 
17. Fixed Base Radios Read Water Meter System 
18. Sheep’s Draw Reservoir 5 
19. Dark Canyon Bridge 
20. National Parks Hwy Sewer 
21. Standpipe Road Sewer Improv Ph1-2 
22. South Carlsbad Sewer Imp 
23. Carlsbad Sewer Improvements 
24. Sewer Line Rehab Program 
25. Traffic Signalization Improvements 
26. Effluent Reuse Project Ph 5-B 
27. Mesa Street Improvements 
28. PD vehicle fleet replacement 
29. Extend Storm Drain to Greene Street 
30. New Main Fire Station 
31. Civic Center Improvements 
32. Extend Storm Drain to Lea Street 
33. MainStreet Pedestrian Safety and Alley Connection 
34. MainStreet Signage 
35. Reconstruction Improvements for Algerita Street 
36. Extend Storm Drain to Stevens Street 
37. Emergency/Homeless Shelter 



38. Extend Storm Drain Mermod St. 
39. Carlsbad Cemetery Fencing 
40. Softball Complex Improvements_Will Merchant 
41. Fire Station 2 Remodel 
42. Golf Course Irrigation 
43. Halagueno Arts Park 
44. Museum Archives/Collections Annex 
45. Repairs to CID Bridges 
46. Davis Street Reconstruction 
47. Library Archive Digitization 
48. Lazy River Expansion Water Park 
49. Purchase Land for Affordable Housing Project 
50. Potash park Train Project 
51. Potash Museum New Building 
52. Library Shelving 
53. Bujac Historical Museum Complex 
54. Recycle Program Improvements 
55. McMillan Dam Tenders House 

 

ICIP - Senior Citizen Facilities (2 Projects) 

1. San Jose Senior Center - Building Renovations 
2. Senior Center Transportation Vehicle 



CITY OF CARLSBAD 

PROJECT DEVELOPMENT 



 
Page 1 of 8 – PROJECT SUMMARIES 

 

ICIP FY 2021-2025 (55 Projects) 

PROJECT SUMMARIES 

 

1. Radio Blvd - $1,500,000 
Reconstruction of Radio Blvd. from Standpipe to city limits. 
 

2. Airport Runway Lighting Upgrades - $480,000 
To repair/replace electric wiring, equip and furnish airport runway lighting system so the lights are reliable for 
both daytime and nighttime landing and take-off. 
 

3. Old Cavern Hwy Sewer - $2,698,401 
To design and construct a sewer line along Old Cavern Highway from Farris Street to Chapman Road. Design and 
construct includes the extension of sewer interceptor 219 along Old Cavern Hwy., from Ferris Drive south to 
Chapman Road.  Project also includes a sewer collector lines, and to serve adjacent streets.  This area does not 
have any sanitary sewer and could develop very rapidly. 
 

4. Bataan Sanitary Sewer Lift Station & FM rehab - $1,500,000 
To plan, design, and rebuild the Bataan Sanitary Sewer Lift Station and Force Main for the City of Carlsbad, 
Carlsbad, New Mexico, in Eddy County. This project will plan, design, and rebuild the Bataan Lift Station and 
associated sewer force main line. The City will secure engineering reports, plans, and identify a qualified 
contractor to rehabilitate existing facilities. 
 

5. Heavy Rescue Truck - $1,200,000       
To purchase and equip a Heavy Rescue Truck for Fire & EMS Services. This truck will be equipped to handle auto 
extrications, structure instabilities, lifting capabilities and many other technical rescue operations.  New truck for 
major vehicle crashes involving extrication. The current truck is a medium duty rescue truck and is over 10 years 
old. In 2018 we have had the truck fail on us multiple times. Considering the distances that we must travel, 
having the truck fail is not acceptable. Also, as we continue to grow we need a heavy rescue.  
 

6. PD Evidence Holding and Processing Facility - $650,000 
To plan, design and construct a Vehicle Evidence Storage and Processing Facility for the Police Department. To 
plan, design and construct additional bays to house a holding facility for vehicles and offices for processing. The 
City plans to renovate an old fire station to become a substation located on the south portion of the City. 
 

7. PD In-Car Video System - $348,000 
To purchase, furnish and equip all new vehicles with an in-car camera system and accompanying body worn 
cameras. The PD needs to place in-car videos and accompanying body cameras into all marked patrol units. This 
is not only industry wide best practice, but it also provides for crucial prosecutorial evidence as well as 
significant administrative assistance. 
 

8. New Fire Station-North Ph. 1-3 - $1,500,000 
To acquire the land, plan, design, construct, furnish and equip a new fire station north of the Pecos River in 
Carlsbad, NM, Eddy County. Plan and acquire property (Ph.1), design (Ph.2), and construct, equip (Ph.3) a new 
6,400 sq. foot Fire Station Facility-North of the Pecos River, including parking lot, storage and landscaping etc. 



 
Page 2 of 8 – PROJECT SUMMARIES 

 

This area is secluded from the rest of the City. Floods and frequent railway traffic impede and often totally block 
access to this area from existing emergency facilities. The Insurance Services Organization (ISO) standards 
describe the need for a fire station to serve this area.   
 

9. Old Cavern Hwy Reconstruct - $3,000,000 
Reconstruct Old Cavern Hwy. from National Parks Hwy. to Chapman including the intersection.  Complete 
reconstruction of Old Cavern Hwy from Nat'l Parks Hwy to Chapman Rd.    
 

10. Repair Riverwalk Recreation Center – ($1,672,000 - $118,000 funded) $1,554,000 
To plan, design, equip, furnish and construct improvements to the Riverwalk Recreation Center. Improvements 
include exterior painting and re-stucco, painting and remodeling of interior spaces, new ventilation and HVAC 
system, security system for doors and camera, and new plumbing fixtures. 
 

11. East Bypass Hobbs Hwy - $1,000,000 (City Contribution – Joint project)  
East Bypass - Derrick Road North, Grandi across the Pecos River to Shoop Bypass on Hobbs Hwy East Bypass - 
This is a joint City/County project. The City has committed $1 million in funds for Engineering. Scope of work 
recommended by public input: Derrick Road North, Grandi across the Pecos River to Shoop Bypass on Hobbs 
Hwy. Removes heavy commercial truck traffic from city streets by completing the loop relief route.    
 

12. Water System Improvements - $16,474,350   (FY2021 Phase $4,574,600)  
To plan, design and construct system wide waterline improvements.  Plan, design and construct improvements 
to the Municipal Water System including waterline extensions as identified in projects section below, waterline 
replacement, minor repairs to booster and pressure reducing stations, repairs to reservoirs, fire lines and dead 
end lines.  
 

13. Double Eagle Waterline Improvements - $10,103,587 (FY2021 $1,431,100) 
To plan, design and construct and acquire easements and ROW for Double Eagle waterline improvements.  To 
plan, design and construct waterline Phase 3 improvements to the Double Eagle Water System to increase water 
production and delivery of water to Carlsbad and adjacent communities.  This secondary water source could 
serve approximately 40,000 residents of Southern Eddy Co. This project includes the acquisition of needed 
easements, ROW's, and completion of necessary environmental studies. This project will assess the existing 
water lines and identify those lines that need to be replaced. These water lines run mostly in the unincorporated 
areas to the north of Carlsbad, up to the Tatum well fields. Ph. 1 included improving the wells in the Tatum well 
field, and Ph. 2 included installation of a High Pressure Loop water line to the north of Carlsbad.                  
     

14. Cavern Theater Rehabilitation - $5,059,800 for 2021 
Plan, design, construct, equip and furnish total rehabilitation and repairs to the existing historic Cavern Theater 
from a movie palace to a full live performance venue and cultural facility which will also include film and live 
streaming capabilities. Rehabilitation will meet current live performance and video standards as well as ADA 
requirements.  Phase 1 will include the planning and design for electric demo and new electric rough-in and 
rehabilitation of the marquee and blade sign. Phase 2 will consist of plan, design and construction for replacing 
the roof, installation of all HVAC, rehab of plumbing system, construction of an ADA restroom, installation of fire 
suppression and security systems. Phase 3 will include plan, design, construction, equipping and furnishing of a 
full live performance stage with all its standard equipment, wall and ceiling acoustics, lighting and sound 



 
Page 3 of 8 – PROJECT SUMMARIES 

 

equipment, video equipment, seating, lobby and concession area rehab, an annex addition to include, public and 
performer restrooms, dressing rooms, green room, construction room and loading dock. 
 

15. Church Street Improvements - $2,600,000 
To plan, design and construct improvements to Church Street in Carlsbad, NM, Eddy County. To plan, design, 
and construct improvements to Church St. from Riverside Dr. to 8th St. Improvements will include reducing the 
four traffic lanes to two traffic lanes, installing an internal turn lanes, and creating bicycle lanes both east and 
west bound. The City will issue an RFP for the design as well as construction on the job. The City's Projects 
Department will administer the project. 
 

16. Double Eagle Waterline Replacement - $9,146,669 ($988,361 Design, $8,158,308 Const. Phase) 
To plan, design and construct, and replace existing water lines in the Double Eagle water well field in Carlsbad, 
NM, Eddy County. 
 

17. Fixed Base Radios Read Water Meter System - $4,500,000 
To purchase and install a fixed base radio reading system for water meters in Carlsbad, NM, Eddy County. This 
project will consist of the purchasing and installation of radio read meters and collectors for a fixed base reading 
system for the City's water meters.  
 

18. Sheep's Draw Reservoir #5 - $4,593,760 
To plan, design, and construct a new 5 million gallon reservoir tank in the Sheep's Draw water well field in 
Carlsbad, NM, Eddy County. To plan, design, and construct a new 5 Million Gallon Reservoir at the Sheep's Draw 
Wellfield. The City will issue an RFP for the design and engineering of the new reservoir.  
 

19. Dark Canyon Bridge – ($10,100,000-$100,000 funded) $10,000,000 
To plan, design, and construct a bridge at Boyd Dr. and Radio Blvd. crossing Dark Canyon. To plan, design, and 
construct a new bridge at Boyd Dr. and Radio Blvd. crossing Dark Canyon. This will be a phased project, with Ph. 
1 preliminary engineering, Ph. 2 will be professional design and land acquisition, and Ph. 3 construction. 
 

20. National Parks Hwy Sewer - $826,655 
Design and construct a sewer line along National Parks Highway. Design and construct sewer interceptor 222 
along the east side of National Parks Hwy from Chapman Road south to the city limits at Derrick Road. 
 

21. Standpipe Road Sewer Improvements Ph. 1-2 - $1,780,649    
To plan, design and construct Standpipe Road sewer improvements in Carlsbad, NM, Eddy County. Design and 
construct a sewer interceptor along Standpipe Road south to Quay Street and sewer collector lines to serve the 
area east and west of Standpipe Road.  This area is not currently served by city sewer and shallow wells have 
shown high levels of nitrate.  THIS IS A JOINT CITY OF CARLSBAD/COUNTY OF EDDY PROJECT. Eddy County will 
secure the needed easements and rights of way.      
 

22. South Carlsbad Sewer Improvement - $8,719,215 (FY2021 $3,108,300, FY 2022 $2,165,841, FY2023 
$3,445,074)  
To plan, design and construct new sewer improvements for south, Carlsbad, NM in Eddy County. Design and 
construct the expansion of sewer lines to different areas in the south half of Carlsbad where sewer service is not 
currently available. The first phase of the project includes an infrastructure assessment. Once the assessment is 



 
Page 4 of 8 – PROJECT SUMMARIES 

 

complete, extending the sewer lines to areas such as Standpipe Road, Old Cavern Hwy., Chapman Road, Radio 
Blvd., Union Street and Quay will be scheduled for inclusion in the subsequent phases. Phases will be set due to 
need and growth patterns. 
    

23. Carlsbad Sewer Improvement - $14,860,678 (FY2021 $1,778,211) 
To design and construct new sewer line extensions.  Design and construct expansion of sewer lines to different 
areas located north of the Pecos River where sewer service is not currently available.  This project includes the 
unincorporated area of La Huerta.  The project will eliminate the use of septic tanks in an area adjacent to the 
Pecos River.  THIS IS A JOINT CITY OF CARLSBAD/COUNTY OF EDDY PROJECT.   
 

24. Sewer Line Rehab Program - $1,349,774 (FY2021 $349,774 for Design)   
To design a program and purchase or acquire the equipment needed to clean and video tape sewer lines.  
Design a sewer line rehab program consisting of cleaning and video-taping to identify problems and 
implementing repairs to existing clay pipe sewer lines which are more than 40 years old. 
 

25. Traffic Signalization Improvements - $1,050,000 ($350,000 each for 3 years) 
To furnish and replace existing traffic signals with new ones at 2 intersections. Several key intersections lack 
proper traffic signals and most existing signals are old and outdated.  New signals have brighter LED lamps, video 
detection, and upgraded controllers. 
 

26. Effluent Reuse Project Ph. 5-B - $3,706,826  
To design and construct phase 2 of the Golf Course Effluent Reuse Project in Carlsbad, NM, Eddy County. A 
phased project will include design and construct storage capacity, additional pumping transmission facilities and 
water aeration features to complete the irrigation of the 27-hole Municipal Golf Course and to provide reuse 
water for irrigation of other City Parks. Ph.1 designed and constructed pipeline for use in this project. Ph. 2 will 
consist of the design and construction of a storage tank and pipeline to hold and move water to the golf course 
from the treatment plant. Phases 3-5 will complete the pipelines and facilities needed to complete the effluent 
reuse project. 
 

27. Mesa Street Improvements - $4,630,000     
To design and reconstruct Mesa Street.  Widen Mesa Street from Pierce Street to Church Street to allow future 
four lane width or two lanes with center turning lane.  Mesa/Boyd will become a major thoroughfare in the 
future.       
 

28. PD vehicle fleet replacement - $1,200,000 
To purchase and equip new police vehicles. The need exists to continuously upgrade older marked patrol 
vehicles due to excessive use, wear and tear. The necessity to maintain a newer fleet is paramount regarding 
both officer and community safety. A continuous replacement system allows for sustainment of a newer and 
safer fleet. 
 

29. Extend Storm Drain to Greene Street - $3,298,200 
To plan, design, and construct extensions to the Canal Street Storm Drain for the City of Carlsbad, Eddy County, 
NM.  

  



 
Page 5 of 8 – PROJECT SUMMARIES 

 

 
30. New Main Fire Station - $10,350,000 

Plan, design, demolish current station, construct and furnish new Fire Station #1. Plan, design, demolish current 
station, construct and furnish new Fire Station #1. The Carlsbad Fire Department desperately needs a new main 
facility. Expansion of the Fire Department with additional personnel, vehicles, and equipment in response to a 
dramatically increased call volume over the last 20 years has severely impacted our dormitory occupancy, living 
space, training areas, vehicle parking and protection, equipment repair areas, administrative office space, 
storage, and all operational infrastructure. 
 

31. Civic Center Improvements - ($2,550,000 - $550,000 funded) $2,000,000 
The City of Carlsbad is taking a phased approach to complete the improvements at the Walter Gerrells 
Performing Arts Center. The current phase includes a fire suppression sprinkler system to update for fire code 
compliance, and parking lot lighting and security improvements. The City of Carlsbad has budgeted and will 
complete the fire suppression sprinkler system and the parking lot improvements within the next 9-12 months. 
Future funding requests will include the following improvements; ADA compliant entrance lobby, ADA compliant 
seating upgrades, energy efficient HVAC system upgrades, RV hook-ups in the parking area, and auditorium and 
annex wall partitions to allow for multiple conference meeting rooms. 
 

32. Extend Storm Drain to Lea Street - $2,662,400 
To extend the Canal Street Storm Drain to Lea Street. *One of 9 extensions of the Canal St. Storm drain.  
 

33. MainStreet Pedestrian & Alley Connection - $1,000,000 
To plan, Design and Construct alley connections as attractive pedestrian walkways to encourage visitors and 
downtown employees to use them as convenient and safe pedestrian links to downtown.  Provide public 
restrooms for tourists and those using the downtown area. The project will include environmental studies, 
drainage studies, ADA compliance studies, construction of improved walkways and construct a public restroom. 
 

34. MainStreet Signage - $78,000 
To plan, design and install wayfinding signage in downtown Carlsbad as well as surrounding areas. 
 

35. Reconstruction Improvements for Algerita Street - $460,500 
Reconstruct existing street to include new water and sewer mainlines and services curb and gutter with drive 
pads, sidewalk with ADA accessibility, and asphalt paving. Provide design and construction for replacement 
roadway including utilities, curb and gutter, sidewalk and paving. 
 

36. Extend Storm Drain to Stevens Street - $13,040,000 
To design and construct the storm drain to Stevens Street. *One of 9 extensions of the Canal St. Storm drain.             
 

37. Emergency/Homeless Shelter – $550,000 
To purchase and construct a new metal building for use as an emergency shelter and homeless facility. To plan, 
design, purchase and construct a new metal building to house evacuees during in-climate weather events, 
flooding, and other emergency situations. Also, the building will be used as a facility to serve the growing 
homeless population. 

  



 
Page 6 of 8 – PROJECT SUMMARIES 

 

 
38. Extend Storm Drain to Mermod Street - $619,300 

To constuct the storm drain to Mermod Street. *One of 9 extensions of the Canal St. Storm drain.             
 

39. Carlsbad Cemetery Fencing - $350,000 
To purchase and install wrought iron fencing and gates along Boyd Drive and Juarez Street at the Carlsbad 
Cemetery. 
 

40. Softball Complex Improvements (Will Merchant) - $1,049,000 
To repair, replace and add softball fields, concession stand and restrooms at the Will Merchant Softball 
Complex. The complex is now over 20 years old and in need of repairs to or replacement or the addition of some 
of the facilities including fields. 
 

41. Fire Station 2 Remodel - $615,000 
To design and construct a remodel of the existing Fire Station #2.  This project will remodel the entire station, 
add one apparatus bay, and extend the two existing apparatus bays.     
    

42. Golf Course Irrigation System Replacement - $2,000,000 
To design,  replace and upgrade the entire irrigation system at Lake Carlsbad Golf Course for reliability and 
efficiency.   
 

43. Halagueno Arts Parks – $330,000 
To plan, design and construct art exhibits, landscaping, lighting and other improvements to the Halagueno Art 
Park (Phase III and IV). Phase I, II and a portion of III were previously completed and funded with City funds, 
Lodgers Tax, Capital Outlay at a total amount of approximately $600,000. The initial phases completed the basic 
infrastructure, landscape, equipment and art exhibits as they exist today. Phase IIIB was currently budgeted in 
the City's capital project funds. Phase IIIB design will begin early FY20 and anticipated to be complete late FY20. 
Phase IIIB will complete improvements to the promenade to include construction of pathways, signs, planting 
beds, plants, lights, irrigation, seating, and reconfigure the parking area. Phase IV requested now will complete 
the final phase which is to plan, design, equip, and construct an art imaginarium outdoor area which will include 
interactive art exhibits.   
 

44. Museum Archives/Collections Annex - $500,000 
To acquire, plan, design and renovate a facility to be used as an annex to the museum for archives and art 
displays. This will allow the collections currently stored-away to be accessible to the public for research and 
viewing. The City is also exploring the possible alternative of renovating existing space in another City owned 
facility as a viable option. 
 

45. Repairs to CID Bridges - $1,100,000 
The Carlsbad Irrigation District Southern Canal runs through Carlsbad and several major streets cross it on 
concrete bridges.  These bridges are old and some require extensive repair including guard rails, asphalt overlay, 
concrete repair and new deck surface. 

  



 
Page 7 of 8 – PROJECT SUMMARIES 

 

 
46. Davis Street Reconstruction - $1,100,000 

To design and reconstruct Davis Street with new paving, curb, gutter, sidewalk, water and sewer lines and ADA 
curb returns. Phase 1 - Davis Street from Plum Street to Etter Street. Phase 2 - Davis Street from Kircher south to 
the end. 
 

47. Library Archive Digitization - $100,000 
To plan, design, purchase and install a digitized public library archives system. The plan and design phase will 
include hiring a consultant to determine the scope of work and the first implementation phase to digitize 
archives. Once established, the next phase will include digitizing additional portions of the collection. 
 

48. Lazy River Expansion - Water Park - $1,800,000 
To design and construct a separate lazy river feature complete with new support facility for water treatment, 
water pumps, restrooms, and shade structures at the Carlsbad Water Park. 
 

49. Purchase Land for Affordable Housing Project - $5,230,000 
This project will purchase land for affordable housing project, conduct all environmental studies, conduct site 
planning, and solicit RFPs from affordable housing developers. The selected developer and proposal will then be 
contracted to construct an affordable housing product. This project will have two phases. Phase 1 consists of the 
acquisition of property and all studies needed to build on this property. Phase 2 will consist of the RFP, design, 
and construction of the project. 
 

50. Potash Park Train Project - $900,000 ($30,000 in 2021 for design and $870,000 for construction in 
2022) 
This project is intended to plan, design, and construct a facility to house a miniature train attraction as well as 
acquiring a new train. 
 

51. Potash Museum New Building - $5,000,000 
This project is to plan, design and construct a Potash Museum Building in Carlsbad, Eddy County, NM. This 
request will fund the planning and environmental studies, the engineering and designs, and the construction 
costs of building a new museum building for the Potash Industry. 
 

52. Library Shelving - $555,093 
To purchase, equip, and install shelving at the public library. The current phase II includes upgrading shelving for 
the adult, teen and multimedia archives. Upgrading the existing shelving originally installed in 1961 will provide 
a more efficient and modern system.   
 

53. Bujac Historical Museum Complex - $7,750,000 
To acquire property, plan, design and construct a historical complex on Bujac property fronting the Pecos River. 
The historic home and property will be renovated into to a historical museum with a nature trail, and boat dock 
area.  
 

54. Recycling Program Improvements - $150,000 
To plan, design, construct and equip a receiving building for a recycling program. Improvements to the city's 
recycling program include the design and construction of a receiving building and purchasing and installation of 



 
Page 8 of 8 – PROJECT SUMMARIES 

 

conveyance and sorting equipment.  Also included is the purchase of professional services to explore the idea of 
program expansion and the construction of a new recycling material processing facility. 
 

55. McMillan Dam Tender's House - $50,000 
To plan the relocation the McMillan Dam Tender's historical house from its current location in Eddy County to 
another location. This project is to plan for the relocation of the McMillan Dam Tender's historical house from it 
current location to another location in order to preserve its significance to the development of Eddy County.  
The plan will also determine the new location for the house, the cost of moving the house and any other issues 
related to the project.  
 

ICIP - Senior Citizen Facilities (2 Projects) 

56. San Jose Senior Center - Building Renovation - $3,000,000 ($550,000 in 2020, $835,000 in 2021 and, 
$1,615,000 in 2022) 
To plan, design; construct renovations and improvements to the San Jose Senior Center for the City of Carlsbad 
in Eddy County, NM. This project is to pan, design and construct improvements to San Jose Senior Center 
located at 120 Kircher St. in Carlsbad in Eddy County. The City secured CDBG 2018 and local matching funds in 
the amount of $550,000. Phase II includes to plan, design and construct improvements to upgrade and expand 
ADA compliant parking area, ADA compliant entrance to the facility and to upgrade the roof. Phase I 
construction is anticipated to be completed December 2020, and plan & design for Phase II will begin once 
ATLSD funding is secured. Phase II plan and design is anticipated to be completed within 6 months, and 
construction within 12-18 months. Phase III will include; renovations to the existing office areas, additional ADA 
restrooms and classrooms on the east side of the building. 
   

57. Senior Program Transportation Vehicle - $30,000 
To purchase a new vehicle for the senior services program at San Jose Senior Center. This will allow for staff to 
transport seniors for various programs. 



Printed 
7/12/2019

City of Carlsbad 
Infrastructure Capital Improvement Plan FY2021-2025

Unofficial List

ICIP Project List_2021-2025Version_7.12.2019Complete ICIP LIST

Project 
ID

Previous 
Rank 

Project Title Current Scope of Work 
City
Dept

Amount Not Yet 
Funded

Total Project Cost Current Status

15165 1

South Carlsbad Sewer 
Improvements

Design and construct the expansion of sewer lines to different areas 
in the south half of Carlsbad where sewer service is not currently 
available. The first phase of the project include an infrastructure 
assessment by an infrastructure engineering firm. Once the 
assessment is complete, extending the sewer lines to areas such as 
Standpipe Road, Old Cavern Hwy., Chapman Road, Radio Blvd., Union 
Street and Quay will be scheduled for inclusion in the subsequent 
phases. Phases will be set due to need and growth patterns. An RFP 
will be issued for the design, engineering, and construction. 

Utilities 8,719,215.00$        8,719,215.00$        

Priority Old Cavern, 
La Huerta, 
Standpipe, East 
Greene

29674 2

Texas Street 
Reconstruction Ph.1-3

Land Acquisition and Planning (Phase 1), Design (Phase 2) and 
Construct (Phase 3) for approx. 2 miles of a new driving surface, bike 
lanes, curb, gutter, sidewalks and ADA improvements on Texas Street 
from the CID Canal to 12th Street within the existing right-of-way and 
within acquired right-of-way. During Phase I the remaining needed 
ROW will be acquired. Once the funding is in place, the ROW will be 
secured, the design will be finalized, and the construction will begin. Public 

Works

Project funded 
FY19/20

25091 3

Extend Storm Drain to 
Green Street

To plan, design, and construct extensions to the Canal Street Storm 
Drain for the City of Carlsbad, Eddy County, NM. Public 

Works 3,298,200$              3,298,200$              

Partially funded 
Capital Outlay 

22549 4

Church Street 
Improvements

To plan, design, and construct improvements to Church St. from 
Riverside Dr. to 8th St. Improvements will include reducing the four 
traffic lanes to two traffic lanes, installing an internal turn lanes, and 
creating bicycle lanes both east and west bound. Public 

Works 2,600,000$              2,600,000$              

ICIP Updated

22568 5
Sheep's Draw Reservoir

To plan, design, and construct a new 5 million gallon reservoir tank in 
the Sheep's Draw water well field in Carlsbad, NM, Eddy County.

Utilities 4,593,760.00$        4,593,760.00$        

ICIP Updated

35083 6

Generator for Primary 
Lift Station

To plan and purchase a new back up generator to power the City's 
primary lift station.

Utilities

Project Funded 2019 
Capital Outlay-
Pending Agreement

35084 7

Bataan Sanitary Sewer 
Lift Station

To plan, design, and rebuild the Bataan Sanitary Sewer Lift Station 
and Force Main for the City of Carlsbad, Carlsbad, New Mexico, in 
Eddy County. This project will  rebuild the Bataan Lift Station and 
associated sewer force main line. Utilities 1,500,000.00$        1,500,000.00$        

ICIP Updated

30912 8

San Jose Senior Center - 
Building Renovations

Plan, design and construct improvements at the San Jose Senior Ctr 
located at 120 Kircher St. in Carlsbad in Eddy County. The City has 
secured CDBG 2018 and local match funds in the amount of 
$550,000. Phase II is now being requested under ALTSD to complete 
plan, design and construct improvements including; upgrade and 
expand ADA compliant parking area, ADA compliant entrance to the 
facility and to upgrade the roof. Phase I construction will be 
completed by December 2020 and plan & design for Phase II will 
begin as soon as funding is secured. Phase II plan and design is 
anticipated to be completed within 6 months, and construction within 
12-18 months. MS 2,450,000.00$        3,000,000.00$        

The first phase 
funded by CDBG is 
currently under 
design.
Adding to Senior 
Facility ICIP

29671 9

Cavern Theater 
Rehabilitation

To plan, design, construct, equip and furnish the rehabilitation of 
historic Cavern Theater from a movie palace to a full live performance 
venue and cultural facility, which will also include film and live 
streaming in Carlsbad, NM, Eddy County.

CD 5,059,800.00$        6,985,994.00$        

30597 13

Fixed Base Radios Read 
Water Meter System

To purchase and install a fixed base radio reading system for water 
meters in Carlsbad, NM, Eddy County. This will be a single phase 
project. Utilities 4,500,000.00$        4,500,000.00$        

ICIP Updated

21325 15

Golf Course Irrigation

To design,  replace and upgrade the entire irrigation system at Lake 
Carlsbad Golf Course for reliability and efficiency.  The design and 
installation will be implemented by a contractor chosen through the 
RFP process. CD 2,000,000.00$        2,000,000.00$        

Phase 2 - Finish 
design, go to bid, 
compete 
construction 

25098 17

Extend Storm Drain to 
McKay Street

The Canal Street Storm Drain is designed to be extended to cover the 
main part of the City. Each of the nine (9) extensions can be done 
without affecting the others

Public 
Works

Priority Change 

15932 18

Double Eagle Waterline 
Replacement

To plan (including Environmental studies), design and construct, and 
replace existing water lines in the Double Eagle water well field in 
Carlsbad, NM, Eddy County. The lines to be replaced serve as 
gathering lines and transmission lines from the two Well Fields. This 
project will tie into the existing 24 inch water lines that service the 
Tatum well field. Utilities 9,146,669.00$        9,146,669.00$        

ICIP Updated

25099 19

Extend Storm Drain to 
Hagerman

This project will plan, design, and construct storm drains along 
Hagerman St. The Canal Street storm drain is designed to be extended 
to cover the main part of the City. Each nine (9) extensions can be 
done without affecting the others.

Public 
Works

Priority Change



Printed 
7/12/2019

City of Carlsbad 
Infrastructure Capital Improvement Plan FY2021-2025

Unofficial List

ICIP Project List_2021-2025Version_7.12.2019Complete ICIP LIST

Project 
ID

Previous 
Rank 

Project Title Current Scope of Work 
City
Dept

Amount Not Yet 
Funded

Total Project Cost Current Status

28164 21

Library Archive 
Digitization

To plan, design, purchase and install a digitized public library archives 
system. The plan and design phase will include hiring a consultant to 
determine the scope of work and the first implementation phase to 
digitize archives. Once established, the next phase will include 
digitizing additional portions of the collection.   

MS 100,000.00$            100,000.00$            

ICIP Updated

25090 23

Extend Storm Drain to 
Tansill Street

The Canal Street storm drain is designed to be extended to cover the 
main part of the city. Each of the nine (9) extensions can be done 
without effecting the others.

Public 
Works

Priority Change

15936 24

Double Eagle Waterline 
Improvements

To plan (including Environmental Studies), design and construct and 
acquire easements and ROW for Double Eagle waterline 
improvements. This project will assess the existing water lines and 
identify those lines that need to be replaced. These water lines run 
mostly in the unincorporated areas to the north of Carlsbad, up to the 
Tatum well fields. Ph. 1 included improving the wells in the Tatum 
well field, and Ph. 2 included installation of a High Pressure Loop 
water line to the north of Carlsbad. Utilities 9,772,830.00$        10,103,587.00$      

ICIP Updated

25088 25

Extend Storm Drain to 
Lea Street

To extend the Canal Street Storm Drain to Lea Street. The Canal Street 
storm drain is designed to be extended to cover the main part of the 
city. Each of the nine (9) extensions can be done without affecting the 
others. 

Public 
Works 2,662,400$              2,662,400$              

ICIP Updated

26134 28

Solid Waste Roll-off 
Truck

To purchase and equip one new roll-off truck.

Utilities

Project completed.

22550 29

Mesa Street 
Improvements

Widen Mesa Street from Pierce Street to Church Street to allow future 
four lane width or two lanes with center turning lane.  Mesa/Boyd will 
become a major thoroughfare in the future.

Public 
Works 4,630,000$              4,630,000$              

ICIP Updated

19674 30

Carlsbad Sewer 
Improvements

Design and construct expansion of sewer lines to different areas 
located north of the Pecos River where sewer service is not currently 
available.  This project includes the 
unincorporated area of La Huerta.  The project will eliminate the use 
of septic tanks in an area adjacent to the Pecos River.  THIS IS A JOINT 
CITY OF CARLSBAD/COUNTY OF EDDY PROJECT. Utilities 14,260,678.00$      14,860,678.00$      

ICIP Updated

9779 32

Lake Carlsbad Erosion 
Control

Design and construct multi-phased erosion control features along the 
shores of Lake Carlsbad. Public 

Works

Removing-
Maintenance Item 
local budget.

15858 33

South Carlsbad Street 
Drainage

South Carlsbad has many streets that are substandard.  The area 
needs adequate roadways, curb and gutter, sidewalks, and drainage 
systems.

Public 
Works

Priority Change

27549 34

Reconstruction 
Improvements for 

Algerita Street

Reconstruct existing street to include new water and sewer mainlines 
and services curb and gutter with drive pads, sidewalk with ADA 
accessibility, and asphalt paving.

Public 
Works 426,100$                  460,500$                  

ICIP Updated

15917 35

Dark Canyon/Pecos 
River Improvements

To design and construct improvements to the confluence of the Dark 
Canyon Arroyo and the Pecos River. Public 

Works

Priority Change

22545 36

North Carlsbad 
Drainage 

Improvements

The drainage system for storm water run-off must be rebuilt to 
increase the life and to meet current standards of clean water 
discharged into the Pecos River. Throughout the Carlsbad City limits 
and the community of La Huerta located north of Carlsbad.

Public 
Works

Priority Change

18516 38

Halagueno Arts Park

To plan, design, and construct art exhibits, landscaping, lighting and 
other improvements to the Halagueno Art Park (Phase III and IV). 
Phase I, II and a portion of III were previously completed and funded. 
Phase IIIB was currently budgeted in the City's capital project funds. 
Phase IIIB design will begin early FY20 and anticipated to be complete 
late FY20. Phase IV requested now will complete the final phase 
which is to plan, design, equip, and construct an art imaginarium 
outdoor area which will include interactive art exhibits.  

MS 330,000.00$            500,000.00$            

ICIP Updated

25087 40

Extend Storm Drain to 
Normandy Addition

The Canal Street storm drain is design to extended to cover the main 
part of the city. Each of the nine (9) extensions can be done without 
affecting the other.

Public 
Works

Priority Change

22566 45

Sewer Line Rehab 
Program

Design a sewer line rehab program consisting of cleaning and video 
taping to identify problems and implementing repairs to existing clay 
pipe sewer lines which are more than 40 years old.

Utilities 1,349,774.00$        2,349,774.00$        

ICIP Updated

11377 46

Effluent Reuse Project 
Ph 5-B

To design and construct the next phase (phase 2) of the Golf Course 
Effluent Reuse Project in Carlsbad, NM, Eddy County. Ph. 2 will 
consist of the design and construction of a storage tank and pipeline 
to hold and move water to the golf course  from the treatment plant. 
Phases 3-5 will complete the pipelines and facilities needed to 
complete the effluent reuse project. Utilities 3,706,826.00$        4,225,826.00$        

ICIP Updated

25092 48

Extend Storm Drain to 
Mermod St.

To construct the storm drain to Mermod Street. The Canal Street 
storm drain is designed to be extended to cover the main part of The 
City. Each of the nine (9) extensions can be done without affecting the 
other.

Public 
Works 619,300$                  619,300$                  

ICIP Updated



Printed 
7/12/2019

City of Carlsbad 
Infrastructure Capital Improvement Plan FY2021-2025

Unofficial List

ICIP Project List_2021-2025Version_7.12.2019Complete ICIP LIST

Project 
ID

Previous 
Rank 

Project Title Current Scope of Work 
City
Dept

Amount Not Yet 
Funded

Total Project Cost Current Status

33926 52

Expanded pool area - 
Water Park

This project design and build an expanded pool area in the Carlsbad 
Water park.

CD

Project completed - 
Lazy River expansion 
separate next project

26011 57

New Fire Station North 
Ph1-3

Plan and acquire property (Ph.1) , design (Ph.2), and construct, equip 
(Ph.3) a new 6,400 sq. foot Fire Station Facility-North of the Pecos 
River, including parking lot, storage and landscaping etc. This area is 
secluded from the rest of the City. Floods and frequent railway traffic 
impede and often totally block access to this area from existing 
emergency facilities. The Insurance Services Organization (ISO) 
standards describe the need for a fire station to serve this area.

Fire 1,500,000.00$        1,500,000.00$        

15857 58

Hall Addition Street & 
Drainage Imp

Plan, Design and Construct drainage improvements within the Hall 
Addition located in the SE portion of Carlsbad. Public 

Works

Priority Change

32790 59

Main Street Pedestrian 
Safety & Alley 

Connection

Plan, Design and Construct alley connections as attractive pedestrian 
walkways to encourage visitors and downtown employees to use 
them as convenient and safe pedestrian links to downtown.  Provide 
public restrooms for tourists and those using the downtown area.

CD 1,000,000.00$        1,000,000.00$        

Updated ICIP

24132 61

PD Vehicle Fleet 
Replacement

The need to continuously upgrade older marked patrol vehicles due 
to excessive use, wear and tear. The necessity to maintain a newer 
fleet is paramount regarding both officer and community safety. A 
continuous replacement system allows for sustainment of  newer and 
safer fleet. Police 1,000,000.00$        1,200,000.00$        

ICIP Updated

24134 62

PD In-Car Video 
Systems

The PD needs to place in-car videos into all marked patrol units. This 
is not only industry wide best practice, but it also provides for crucial 
prosecutorial evidence as well as significant administrative assistance.

Police 300,000.00$            348,000.00$            

ICIP Updated

33902 66

Smart Transit 
Management System

This project will provide for the purchase and installation of Smart 
Transit Systems for the City's buses and van fleet. Public 

Works

Fully Funded

25093 68

Extend Storm Drain to 
Stevens Street

To design and construct the storm drain to Stevens Street. The Canal 
St. storm drain is designed to be extended to cover the main part of 
the City. Each of the nine (9) extensions can be done without affecting 
the other.

Public 
Works 13,040,000$            13,040,000$            

ICIP Updated

10953 69

New Main Fire Station

Plan, design, demolish current station, construct and furnish new Fire 
Station #1. The Carlsbad Fire Department desperately needs a new 
main facility. Expansion of the Fire Department with additional 
personnel, vehicles, and equipment in response to a dramatically 
increased call volume over the last 20 years has severely impacted 
our dormitory occupancy, living space, training areas, vehicle parking 
and protection, equipment repair areas, administrative office space, 
storage, and all operational infrastructure.

Fire 10,350,000.00$      10,350,000.00$      

12981 70

Dark Canyon Recreation 
Area

Improvements to include a walk/jog trail and natural grasses and 
trees which will not interfere with the watercourse.  The 
improvements will keep the area free of unwanted vegetation and 
eliminate eyesore.

Public 
Works

Priority Change

29672 73

Carlsbad Cemetery 
Fencing

To purchase and install wrought iron fencing and gates along Boyd 
Drive and Juarez Street at the Carlsbad Cemetery.

Plan & Reg 350,000.00$            350,000.00$            

ICIP Updated

13822 76
Trans Vehicles/Transit

New transit vehicles for use by the Carlsbad Municipal Transit to 
replace aging fleet. Public 

Works

Priority Change

14592 77

Traffic Signalization 
Improvements

To furnish and replace existing traffic signals with new ones at 2 
intersections. Several key intersections lack proper traffic signals and 
most existing signals are old and outdated.  New signals have brighter 
LED lamps, video detection, and upgraded controllers. Public 

Works 1,050,000$              1,050,000$              

ICIP Updated

12946 80

Softball Complex 
Improvements

To repair, replace and add softball fields, concession stand and 
restrooms at the Will Merchant Softball Complex. Public 

Works 1,049,000$              1,049,000$              

ICIP Updated

18561 81

Repairs to CID Bridges

The Carlsbad Irrigation District Southern Canal runs through Carlsbad 
and several major streets cross it on concrete bridges.  These bridges 
are old and some require extensive repair including guard rails, 
asphalt overlay, concrete repair and new deck surface. Public 

Works 1,100,000$              1,100,000$              

ICIP Updated

32648 82
Fire Station 2 Remodel

This project will remodel the entire station, add one apparatus bay, 
and extend the two existing apparatus bays.

Fire 615,000.00$            615,000.00$            

ICIP Updated

28178 83

Kircher Street 
Reconstruction

To acquire an additional 20' of right-of-way, design and construct 
Kircher Street with paving, curb, gutter and sidewalk, water line, 
sewer line and ADA curb ramps from Boyd Drive to Canal Street.

Public 
Works

Capital Outlay 
Funded - City - Boyd 
to San Jose/Design 
San Jose to NPH



Printed 
7/12/2019

City of Carlsbad 
Infrastructure Capital Improvement Plan FY2021-2025

Unofficial List

ICIP Project List_2021-2025Version_7.12.2019Complete ICIP LIST

Project 
ID

Previous 
Rank 

Project Title Current Scope of Work 
City
Dept

Amount Not Yet 
Funded

Total Project Cost Current Status

28179 86

Davis Street 
Reconstruction

To design and reconstruct Davis Street with new paving, curb, gutter, 
sidewalk, water and sewer lines and ADA curb returns. Public 

Works 1,100,000$              1,100,000$              

ICIP Updated

22529 91

Recycling Program 
Improvements

To plan, design, construct and equip a receiving building for a 
recycling program.

Utilities 150,000$                  150,000$                  

ICIP Updated

22552 97

Old Cavern Hwy Sewer

To design and construct a sewer line along Old Cavern Highway from 
Farris Street to Chapman Road. Design and construct the extension of 
sewer interceptor 219 along Old Cavern Hwy., from Ferris Drive south 
to Chapman Road.  Project also includes a sewer collector lines, and  
to serve adjacent streets.  This area does not have any sanitary sewer 
and could develop very rapidly. Utilities 2,698,401.00$        2,698,401.00$        

ICIP Updated

12794 98

Riverwalk Recreation 
Center Improvements

Improvements and modifications to the Riverwalk Recreation Center, 
including exterior painting and restucco, painting and remodeling of 
interior spaces, new HVAC, security system for doors and camera, and 
new plumbing fixtures. MS 1,554,000.00$        1,672,000.00$        

ICIP Updated

19547 99

South Carlsbad Storm 
Drain Improvements

The existing dirt drain is inadequate to carry even routine storms.  
Construct a concrete storm drain parallel to the CID South Canal. 
From Church Street to south of Hackberry Draw.

Public 
Works

Priority Change

31165 103

Purchase Land for 
Affordable Housing 

Project

This project will purchase land for affordable housing project, 
conduct all environmental studies, conduct site planning, and solicit 
RFPs from affordable housing developers. The selected developer and 
proposal will then be contracted to construct an affordable housing 
product. This project will have two phases. Phase 1 consist of the 
acquisition of property and all studies needed to build on this 
property. Phase 2 will consist of the RFP, design, and construction of 
the project. Plan & Reg 5,230,000.00$        5,230,000.00$        

ICIP Updated

22551 109

National Parks Hwy 
Sewer

Design and construct a sewer line along National Parks Highway. 
Design and construct 12" diameter sewer interceptor 222 along the 
east side of National Parks Hwy from Chapman Road south to the city 
limits at Derrick Road Utilities 826,655.00$            826,655.00$            

ICIP Updated

31926 112

Residential Treatment 
Facility

This project will provide a residential facility offering mental 
health/addiction rehabilitation services for mothers, with small 
children, in the City of Carlsbad. The plan is to design and rehabilitate 
an existing facility (former reintegration center) to house this 
treatment facility, now to be called Avalon Ranch. Plan, design and 
construct the rehabilitation of the current building.  Services to be 
provided by a separate non-profit. CD

Design completed, 
contractor selected 
via CES. Received 
additional Capital 
Outlay funds.

29718 113

PD Evidence Holding 
and Processing Facility

To plan, design and construct additional bays to house a holding 
facility for vehicles and offices for processing. The City plans to 
renovate a old fire station to become a substation located on the 
south portion of the City. Police 650,000.00$            650,000.00$            

ICIP Updated

25100 114

Extend Storm Drain to 
Church St.

The canal street Storm Drain is designed to be extended to cover the 
main part of the City. Construction of each of the nine (9) extensions 
can be done without affecting the others.

Public 
Works

Priority Change

22553 115

Standpipe Road Sewer 
Imprv Ph1-2

To design and construct Standpipe Road sewer improvements in 
Carlsbad, NM, Eddy County. Design and construct a sewer interceptor 
along Standpipe Road south to Quay Street and sewer collector lines 
to serve the area east and west of Standpipe Road.  This area is not 
currently served by city sewer and shallow wells have shown high 
levels of nitrate.  THIS IS A JOINT CITY OF CARLSBAD/COUNTY OF 
EDDY PROJECT. Utilities 1,780,659.00$        1,780,659.00$        

ICIP Updated

12954 121

Library Shelving

To purchase, equip, and install shelving at the public library. The 
current phase II includes upgrading shelving for the adult, teen and 
multimedia archives. Upgrading the existing shelving originally 
installed in 1961 will provide a more efficient and modern system.  

MS 500,000.00$            555,093.00$            

ICIP Updated

32729 125

Museum 
Archives/Collection 

Annex

To acquire, plan, design and renovate a facility to be used as  an 
annex to the museum for archives and art displays. This will allow the 
collections currently stored-away to be accessible to the public for 
research and viewing. The City is also exploring the possible 
alternative of renovating existing space in another City owned facility 
as a viable option. MS 500,000.00$            500,000.00$            

ICIP Updated

28158 127

Bujac Historical 
Museum Complex

To acquire property, plan, design and construct a historical complex 
on Bujac property fronting the Pecos River. The historic home and 
property will be renovated into to a historical museum with a nature 
trail, and boat dock area. MS $7,750,000.00 $7,750,000.00

Updated ICIP

22563 129

Water System 
Improvements

Plan, design and construct improvements to the Municipal Water 
System including waterline extensions as identified in projects section 
below, waterline replacement, minor repairs to booster and pressure 
reducing stations, repairs to reservoirs, fire lines and dead end lines.

Utilities 16,474,350.00$      16,474,350.00$      

ICIP Updated



Printed 
7/12/2019

City of Carlsbad 
Infrastructure Capital Improvement Plan FY2021-2025

Unofficial List

ICIP Project List_2021-2025Version_7.12.2019Complete ICIP LIST

Project 
ID

Previous 
Rank 

Project Title Current Scope of Work 
City
Dept

Amount Not Yet 
Funded

Total Project Cost Current Status

30932 130

Potash Outdoor 
Equipment Park, 

Museum and Exhibits

Concrete pads to mount/display refurbished Potash mining 
equipment.  Survey area, layout and construct concrete slab and 
metal storage/work shed building.  Install fencing surrounding the 
equipment display area as well as rescue shaft.  Design walkway path 
and install donated (fundraised bricks).   

CD

30934 131

Potash Park Train 
Project

This project is intended to plan, design, and construct a facility to 
house a miniature train attraction as well as acquiring a new train.

CD 900,000.00$            900,000.00$            

Possible add as a 
phase to existing 
project

30936 132

Potash Park Train 
Maintenance 

Building/Tunnel

A new maintenance building will be designed and constructed.

CD

Possible add as a 
phase to existing 
project

33931 136

McMillan Dam Tender's 
House

To plan the relocation the McMillan Dam Tender's historical house  
from its current location in Eddy County to another location.

CD 50,000.00$              50,000.00$              

No pertinent info on 
this project, no plan 
to date

31255 141

Emergency/Homeless 
Shelter

To plan, design, purchase and construct a new metal building to 
house evacuees during in-climate weather events, flooding, and other 
emergency situations. Also, the building will be used as a facility to 
serve the growing homeless population. Plan & Reg 550,000.00$            550,000.00$            

ICIP Updated

12797 142

Parking Lot Rebuild-
Civic Center

Remodel and construct new covered entryway, airlock entry doors for 
the Auditorium and  for the Annex.

MS

Priority Change- New 
project for more 
recent upgrades 
needed. 

18723 144
MainStreet Signage

To plan, design and install wayfinding signage in downtown Carlsbad 
as well as surrounding areas.

CD 78,000.00$              78,000.00$              

Updated ICIP

34354 147
Dark Canyon Bridge

To plan, design, and construct a bridge at Boyd Dr. and Radio Blvd. 
crossing Dark Canyon. Public 

Works 10,000,000$            10,100,000$            

ICIP Updated

32728 148

Potash Museum New 
Building

This project is to plan, design and construct a Potash Museum 
Building in Carlsbad, Eddy County, NM.

CD 5,000,000.00$        5,000,000.00$        

Possible add as a 
phase to existing 
project

33928 2021-002

Lazy River Expansion - 
Water Park

To design and construct a separate lazy river feature complete with 
new support facility for water treatment, water pumps, restrooms, 
and shade structures at the Carlsbad Water Park. CD 1,500,000.00$        1,500,000.00$        

Design in process

35856 New
Old Cavern Hwy

Complete reconstruction of Old Cavern Hwy from Nat'l Parks Hwy to 
Chapman Rd including intersection Public 

Works 3,000,000$              3,000,000$              

ICIP Updated

New

Cherry Lane - 
Legion/Callaway East to 

Park

Cherry Lane Reconstruction from Legion/Callaway East to Park.  Sandy 
Lane to Callaway is funded. Public 

Works

Sandy Lane to 
Callaway funded

35815 New

Heavy Rescue Truck -

New truck for major veh crashes involving extrication. The current 
truck is a medium duty rescue truck and is over 10 years old. In 2018 
we have had the truck fail on us multiple times. Considering the 
distances that we must travel, having the truck fail is not acceptable. 
Also, as we continue to grow we need a heavy rescue.

Fire 1,200,000.00$        1,200,000.00$        

ICIP Updated

35745 New

Airport Runway 
Lighting Upgrades

To repair/replace electric wiring, equip and furnish airport runway 
lighting system so the lights are reliable for both daytime and 
nighttime landing and take-off. CD 480000 480000

ICIP Updated

35857 New
Radio Blvd.

Reconstruct Radio Blvd. from Standpipe to City Limit
Public 
Works 1,500,000$              1,500,000$              

City funded Design

35843 New

Civic Center 
Improvements

To plan, design, equip, install, and construct improvements to the Walter 
Gerrells Performing Arts Center (Civic Center) in the City of Carlsbad in Eddy 
county. The project being phased includes; Fire Suppression Sprinkler System 
to update fire code compliance, ADA compliant entrance lobby and seating 
replacements, upgrade HVAC System, parking improvements including RV 
hook-ups, and auditorium and annex wall partitions. 

MS 2,000,000.00$        2,550,000.00$        

ICIP Updated

New

Senior Program 
Transportation Vehicle

To purchase a new vehicle for the senior services program at San Jose Senior 
Center. This will allow for staff to transport seniors for various programs. 

MS 30,000.00$              30,000.00$              

ICIP Updated

35855 New
East Bypass Hobbs Hwy

East Bypass - Derrick Road North, Grandi across the Pecos River to Shoop 
Bypass on Hobbs Hwy Public 

Works -$                           1,000,000$              

Updated ICIP - Joint 
Project/City Share Amt 
funded

Totals 178,581,617.00$        185,783,061.00$        



CITY OF CARLSBAD 

EVALUATION METHOD & RESULTS 



Risk Matrix

Legal & 
Regulatory

Strategic 
Growth  

Opportunity Valued Added 

Fatality Injury Immediate 1 -Year Moderate High Impact
Medium 
Impact Low Impact Cost Savings

Efficiency 
Effectiveness  

Morale

Points for 
Unique 
Projects

16 15 14 13 12 11 10 9 8 7 6 5 5

Safety / Security Risk of Failure Sustainability Continuous Improvement



1 of 2

Le
ga

l &
 R

eg
ul

at
or

y

Sa
fe

ty
/S

ec
ur

ity

Ri
sk

 o
f F

ail
ur

e

St
ra

te
gi

c G
ro

wt
h

Su
st

ain
ab

lit
ly

Co
nt

in
uo

us
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

Va
lu

e A
dd

ed

TOTAL POINTS (74 
possible)

ICIP - 55 Projects

1 New PW Radio Blvd. 16 15 13 10 9 6 5 74
2 New CD Airport Runway Lighting Upgrades* 16 15 13 10 9 5 5 73
3 22552 Utilities Old Cavern Hwy Sewer* 16 14 12 10 9 6 6 73
4 35084 Utilities Bataan Sanitary Sewer Lift Station* 16 15 13 8 9 6 5 72
5 New Fire Heavy Rescue Truck* 16 15 13 10 8 6 5 73
6 29718 PD PD Evidence Holding and Processing Facility* 16 14 13 10 9 6 5 73
7 24134 PD PD In-Car Video System 16 14 13 10 8 6 5 72
8 26011 Fire New Fire Station - North Ph1-3 16 15 11 10 9 6 5 72
9 New PW Old Cavern Hwy Road 14 15 12 10 9 5 5 70

10 12794 MS Repair Riverwalk Recreation Center 16 14 11 10 9 5 5 70
11 New PW East Bypass Road* 16 15 13 10 9 6 5 74
12 22563 Utilities Water System Improvements 12 12 13 10 9 6 5 67
13 15936 Utilities Double Eagle Waterline Improvements 15 10 12 10 9 6 5 67
14 29671 CD Cavern Theater Rehab 16 10 12 10 8 5 5 66
15 22549 PW Carlsbad Church Street Improvements 10 15 12 10 9 5 5 66
16 15932 Utilities Double Eagle Waterline Replacement 10 10 13 10 9 6 5 63
17 30597 Utilities Fixed Base Radios Read Water Meter System 10 13 11 10 8 6 5 63
18 22568 Utilities Sheeps Draw Reservoir 5 10 14 8 10 9 6 5 62
19 34354 PW Dark Canyon Bridge 5 15 11 10 9 6 5 61
20 22551 Utilities National Parks Hwy Sewer 14 10 5 10 9 6 5 59
21 22553 Utilities Standpipe Road Sewer Improv Ph1-2 14 10 5 10 9 6 5 59
22 15165 Utilities South Carlsbad Sewer Imp 14 10 5 10 9 6 5 59
23 19674 Utilities Carlsbad Sewer Improvements 14 10 5 10 9 6 5 59
24 22566 Utilities Sewer Line Rehab Program 14 10 5 10 9 6 5 59
25 14592 PW Traffic Signalization Improvements 0 15 12 10 9 6 5 57
26 11377 Utilities Effluent Reuse Project Ph 5-B 10 10 10 8 8 6 5 57
27 22550 PW Mesa Street Improvements 0 15 11 10 9 6 5 56
28 24132 PD PD vehicle fleet replacement 0 14 11 10 9 6 5 55
29 25091 PW Extend Storm Drain to Greene Street 0 14 11 10 9 6 5 55
30 10953 Fire New Main Fire Station 0 14 11 10 9 6 5 55
31 New MS Civic Center Improvements 0 14 11 10 9 6 5 55
32 25088 PW Extend Storm Drain to Lea Street 0 14 11 10 8 5 5 53
33 32790 CD MainStreet Pedestrian Safety and Alley Connection 0 10 11 10 7 5 5 48
34 18723 CD MainStreet Signage 0 10 11 10 7 5 5 48
35 27549 PW Reconstruction Improvements for Algerita Street 0 14 11 5 7 5 5 47
36 25093 PW Extend Storm Drain to Stevens Street 0 5 11 10 8 5 5 44
37 31255 Plan&Reg Emergency/Homeless Shelter 10 14 0 5 5 5 5 44
38 25092 PW Extend Storm Drain Mermod St. 0 5 11 10 7 5 5 43
39 29672 Plan&Reg Carlsbad Cemetery Fencing 0 14 11 0 7 6 5 43
40 12946 PW Softball Complex Improvements_Will Merchant 0 5 11 10 7 5 5 43
41 32648 Fire Fire Station 2 Remodel 0 0 13 10 9 5 5 42
42 21325 CD Golf Course Irrigation 0 0 13 10 9 5 5 42
43 18516 MS Halagueno Arts Park 0 0 11 10 7 5 5 38
44 32729 MS Museum Archives/Collections Annex 0 0 13 5 9 5 5 37
45 18561 PW Repairs to CID Bridges 0 7 11 0 7 5 5 35
46 28179 PW Davis Street Reconstruction 0 0 11 5 7 5 5 33
47 28164 MS Library Archive Digitization 0 0 11 10 7 5 0 33
48 33928 CD Lazy River Expansion Water Park 0 0 12 10 0 5 5 32
49 31165 Plan&Reg Purchase Land for Affordable Housing Project 0 0 0 10 9 5 5 29
50 30934 CD Potash park Train Project 0 0 11 5 0 5 5 26
51 32728 CD Potash Museum New Building 0 0 11 5 0 5 5 26
52 12954 MS Library Shelving 0 0 11 5 7 0 0 23
53 28158 MS Bujac Historical Museum Complex 0 0 0 10 7 5 0 22
54 22529 Utilities Recycle Program Improvements 0 0 0 2 4 2 1 9
55 33931 CD McMillan Dam Tenders House 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 5

ICIP EVALUATION SCORE SHEET
57 PROJECT APPLICATIONS



2 of 2

Le
ga

l &
 R

eg
ul

at
or

y

Sa
fe

ty
/S

ec
ur

ity

Ri
sk

 o
f F

ail
ur

e

St
ra

te
gi

c G
ro

wt
h

Su
st

ain
ab

lit
ly

Co
nt

in
uo

us
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

Va
lu

e A
dd

ed

TOTAL POINTS (74 
possible)

ICIP EVALUATION SCORE SHEET
57 PROJECT APPLICATIONS

ICIP - Senior Citizen Facilities - 2 Projects
30912 MS San Jose Senior Center - Building Renovations 16 14 13 10 9 6 5 73
New MS Senior Center Transportation Vehicle 0 0 11 0 9 6 0 26

Note: Prority Changes
*East Bypass - Move out of top ten to #11/city already committed funds
*Airport #2
*Heavy Rescue Truck
*PD Evidence Holding Fac.



CITY OF CARLSBAD 

PUBLIC INPUT PROCESS 



City of Carlsbad - Infrastructure 

Capital Improvement Plan (ICIP) 

Local ICIP is a plan that 

establishes planning prior-

ities for anticipated capital 

projects. Limited funding 

requires phasing of larger 

projects and for the City to 

leverage federal, state and 

local funds.  

Capital Projects include:  

 Street & Road Improvements 

 Water/Sewer Improvements 

 Public Facility Improvements (i.e. pub-

lic parks, recreation,  arts & culture, 

etc.) 

 Public Safety Improvements & Capital 

Equipment (i.e. Police, Fire & EMS) 

 Senior Facilities & Capital Equipment 

 Other Infrastructure Improvements 

Seeking Public Input  
The public is invited to attend one of two dates — Monday, 5/13/2019  at 6 

p.m. or Wednesday, 5/15/2019 at 6:00 p.m.  

Location: City Hall  2nd Floor, Old Council Chambers, 101 N. Halagueno 

If unable to attend the above dates, the City of Carlsbad will hold an open 

comment period from May 13-17, 2019. Written comments may be sub-

mitted via email to: 

abarrios@cityofcarlsbadnm.com or a comment card  

submitted: City Hall—Attn: Angie Barrios-Testa, 101 N.    

Halagueno, Carlsbad, NM 88220 

For additional  

info please feel 

free to call 

(575) 887-1191 

Ext .7963 

If you require hearing interpreters, language interpreters or auxiliary aids in order to 

attend and participate in the above meeting, please contact the City Administrator’s 

office at (575) 887-1191 at least 48 hours  prior to the scheduled meeting time.  



       City of Carlsbad ICIP Comment Card 

  Page 1 of 1 

 

City of Carlsbad – Infrastructure Capital Improvement Plan 
Please use this comment card to provide written input regarding future capital projects.  Feel free to add 

additional sheets as needed. Comments must be postmarked by May 17, 2019; and can be submitted via 

mail, email or fax. 

 

Mail:  City Hall     Email:   abarrios@cityofcarlsbadnm.com 

Attention: Angie Barrios-Testa 

101 N. Halagueno   Fax:   575-887-7191 

Carlsbad, NM 88220     Attention: Angie Barrios-Testa 

 

Contact Information (Optional): 

Name:                  Mailing Address:  

Phone Number:         Email Address:  

 

 

Comments: 

 

mailto:abarrios@cityofcarlsbadnm.com










Project Assigned 
Department

Comment/Question Response Action Item

9- Cavern Theater 
Rehab.

CD Support the Completion of project. Phase 2 of this project is 
anticipated to begin in July 

2019

Finish drawings for final phase of the 
project and develop capital fund 
raising campaign

38- HAP MS Would like to Add an Imaginarium Dept will adding this as a 
future phase to the 
existing ICIP. ABT

MS ICIP Update

59-MainSt. 
Pedestrian Safety & 

Alley Connection

CD Public Restroom Development
Pedestrian Footraffic bridge in the downtown area

This project is part of 
MainStreet Master Plan, 
need funding for design

Establish location and seek design 
funding

144- MainStreet 
Signage

CD Way Finding- Signage This project is part of 
MainStreet Master Plan, 
need funding for design

Establish design plan and seek design 
funding

New- Murals 
Downtown

CD Would like to add Murals to the dowtown area This is a Creative Carlsbad 
project supported by 

MainStreet

City crews are preping electrical boxes 
for artistis

125- Museum 
Archives/Collection 

Annex

MS Developing climate controlled facility for historical 
research storage center.

Bujac Historical Museum Complex as possible option.
Would like a facility to archive & use as a reasearch 

facility. To house Jed Howards collection and others.

Dept will update ICIP 
project for any updates 
and possibly combine to 

one project. ABT

MS ICIP Update

New-Multi Purpose 
Trails

PW Design & Implement trails along CID channels. General

New-Child Safety on 
the Streets

PW Bike trails, walking paths, park areas (add)
North end- Calloway area (New developed areas and 

subdivisions)

General

91-Recycling 
Improvement 

Program.

PW Would like to keep it on current list, was removed. The City will keep on the 
list

Utilities will update ICIP 

4- Church St. 
Improvements

PW Support the Completion of project. PW ICIP Update

New-North Fire 
Station

Fire Aquire property north of the Pecos River.
Plan, design, contrsuct, and equip a new fire station.

Property location is the 
first step in this project. 
We are waiting on new 
development to move 

forward a little more to 
find the proper location. 

Fire Dept ICIP Update

New-Traffic Lights PW Accelerate the scheduled replacement of city traffice 
lights with a better signal light timing system.

General

New-Loop Relief 
Road

PW Remove heavy truck traffic from city streets by 
completing  loop relief road.

134- ICIP 2020-2024 Plan&Reg Cemetery Maint. Building. was removed from list Director reported project 
was completed.

The first new storage building 
placement is complete. Moving 
forward, an additional storage building 
will be placed in the spot of the 
remaining old storage shed after that 
old storage shed is demolished.

103- Affordable 
Housing

Plan&Reg Affordable housing for teachers, healthcare 
professionals

The plan for this item is to budget a 
certain amount of money to 
contribute to an afordable housing 
project. The City will issue an RFP and 
award a proposal.

New - East Bypass 
(Grandi Road)

PW New bypass that starts at El Paso Hwy up Derrick North 
on Grandi Rd, across the Pecos River, Across the Pecos 
River to Shoop Bypass on Hobbs Hwy

Joint City/County project. 
City has budgeted $1 
million for design. The 
road name and River name 
was corrected. 

PW ICIP Update

City of Carlsbad
Infrastructure Capital Improvement Plan (ICIP)

FY 2021-2025
Public Comments



CITY OF CARLSBAD

AGENDA BRIEFING MEMORANDUM

COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 7/23/2019
DEPARTMENT: BY: Jeff Patterson, Director DATE: 7/10/2019

SUBJECT: 

SYNOPSIS, HISTORY and IMPACT   

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION: 

BOARD/COMMISSION/COMMITTEE ACTION:

Digitally signed by Jeff Patterson 
DN: cn=Jeff Patterson, o=City of Carlsbad, NM, 
ou=Director of Planning, Engineering, and Regulation, 
email=jepatterson@cityofcarlsbadnm.com, c=US 
Date: 2019.07.17 10:44:05 -06'00'

oeramirez
Typewritten Text
/s/ Michael A. Hernandez                                         07-18-19



, the City of Carlsbad intended to organize and centralize standard 
specifications for all public infrastructure to guide public infrastructure projects occurring within 
Carlsbad; and

, City staff, including the Public Works, Utilities, Planning and Regulation,
and Projects Administration, with the assistance of Souder Miller and Associates (consultants) 
produced the City of Carlsbad’s Public Infrastructure Specification Document in 2015, 
centralizing City standards for public infrastructure installed in Carlsbad; and 

, in 2015, the City of Carlsbad’s Council approved Resolution 2015-10, a 
Resolution adopting the City of Carlsbad’s Public Infrastructure Specification Document; and

, this document is meant to be reviewed and updated on a regular basis in 
order to keep the information included current; and 

the City’s Public Works, Utilities, Projects, and Planning and Regulation 
departments have reviewed this document and have submitted certain amendments and updates 
to this document for approval. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF 
CARLSBAD, NEW MEXICO, hereby approves and adopts certain amendments and updates to 
the CITY OF CARLSBAD’S PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE SPECIFICATION DOCUMENT. 

this day of                           , 2019. 

             
                                                                  Mayor Dale Janway



ATTEST:

      
City Clerk, Nadine Morales



Summary of Public Infrastructure Specification 
Document Update 2019 

 
Beginning in 2017, City staff began meeting internally to discuss potential changes needed within the 
City’s Public Infrastructure Specification Document. This document is the City’s guide for the installation 
of all public infrastructure including streets, sidewalks, water, and sewer lines for new or existing 
development. This document is designed to be updated periodically, and the attached copy of the Public 
Infrastructure Specification Document illustrates the changes being proposed by City staff. Below are 
some examples of changes being proposed: 

Requirement and specification for the installation of tracing wire for any underground utility lines 
being placed in a development. The tracer wire allows for the easier and more accurate location of 
buried water and sewer lines and equipment. 

Changes and clarification for the template for location of utilities. This template specifies and 
standardizes the preferred locations for all public infrastructure to be installed in a development. 

Updated manhole specifications. The Utilities Department has updated the requirements for new 
manholes being placed within a development.  

Updated fire hydrant specifications. The Utilities Department and the Fire Department have updated 
the model type and specifications for placement of new fire hydrants within a development. This change 
will allow more options for choosing fire hydrant materials. 

Updated water meter specifications. The Utilities Department has proposed updates to the materials 
specifications for water meters and boxes as well as the placement of the meters. This change will aid 
developers in correctly placing water meters within developments.  

Updated backfill specifications. This specification addresses the backfilling and repair of any sort of 
excavation of or within the public right-of-way (ROW) in Carlsbad. City staff has clarified the existing 
standards and removed contradictory language within this specification. 

Clarified and updated process related language information. City staff worked to review processes 
related to infrastructure construction and development contained within this document. The result is a 
clarification of review and approval processes for new development within the City. The proposed 
changes also add clarifications for submittal of documentation from developers to the City regarding 
developments, and better illustrates responsible City staff as to review and approval of development. 



CITY OF CARLSBAD 

NEW MEXICO 
 
 

 
PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE 

SPECIFICATIONS 
Adopted XXXX-XX 

(Res. No. XXXX-XX) 
 
 
 
 

 
Prepared For: 
City of Carlsbad 
101 N. Halagueno St. 
Carlsbad, NM 88220 

Prepared By: 
City of Carlsbad 
114 S. Halagueno St. 
Carlsbad, NM 88220 





Article 1 - General Statement of Policies and Specifications

Article 2 - Standard Specifications for Streets and Street Related Construction

Article 3 - Standard Specification for Excavation Under Paved Streets and Alleys

Article 4 - Standard Specification for Excavation Not Under Paved Streets or Alleys

Article 5 - Standard Specification for the Construction of Alleys



Article 6 - Standard Specifications for Sidewalk, Fillet and Drivepad Construction

Article 7 - Standard Specification for Curb Construction, Cuts and Replacement

Article 8 - Standard Specification for Utilities

Article 9 - Standard Specification for Boring, Drilling and Jacking

Article 10 - Standard Specification for Water Lines

Article 11 - Sanitary Sewer Lines



Article 12 - Standard Specification for Manholes

Article 13 - Policy on Fire Line Systems

Article 14 - Street Lighting

Article 15 - Storm Drainage

Appendix A: City of Carlsbad Contact Information



Article 1 – Page 1

ARTICLE 1

GENERAL STATEMENT OF POLICIES AND SPECIFICATIONS

1. General



Article 1 – Page 2

most current edition



Article 1 – Page 3

2. Definitions

Abut/Abutting/Adjacent/Adjoining/Contiguous. 
.

Agent.

Applicant. 

Block.

City.
City of Carlsbad.

Comprehensive Plan. 

Construction Plan Drawings.

Controlled Access Highway.

Covenant.

Curb Return. 

Detention Pond.

Developer. 

Easement. 
Encroachment permit. 

Engineer.



Article 1 – Page 4

Excavation. 

Financial Guarantee. 
Floodplain.

Frontage. 

Grade.
Improvement.

Lot. 

Lot area, gross. 

Lot area, net. 

Lot, corner.

Lot depth.
Lot, double frontage.

Lot, interior.
Lot lines.
Lot line, front.
Lot line, rear.

Lot line, side.
Lot width.

Mobile home park.

Monument.



Article 1 – Page 5

Off-site.

Owner. 
Plat. 

Public Works Project.

Retention Pond.

Right-of-way. 

Roadway. 
Setbacks. 

Street or front setback. 

Side setback. 

Rear setback

Street. 

Street, alley. 

Street, arterial.

Street, collector.



Article 1 – Page 6

Street, cul-de-sac or dead end.

Street, frontage.

Street jog.

Street, local.

Street, loop.

Street, residential.

Street, rural.
Subdivider.

Subdivision.

Substantial Completion. 

Surveyor. 

Tract.

Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA).

Trustee.

Vacation.



Article 1 – Page 7

3. Engineering Construction, Testing, and Inspection Services



Article 2 – Page 8

4. Permits



Article 2 – Page 9

5. General Technical Provisions



Article 2 – Page 



Article 2 – Page 



Article 2 – Page 

6. Infrastructure Checklist

(DATE FILED) (DATE RECEIVED)

(DATE)

(PASS DATE)

(PASS DATE)

(DATE)

(DATE)

(DATE)

(PASS DATE)

(PASS DATE)

ARTICLE 2 



Article 2 – Page 

STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR
STREETS AND STREET RELATED CONSTRUCTION

1. General

2. Street Classification and Geometric Design Standards

B. Cul-de-sac Geometric Standards



Article 2 – Page 

3. Pavement Design Standards

Design a Pavement Section for an arterial street to be constructed in a soil with R-
Value of 30:



Article 2 – Page 

TABLE II: PAVEMENT DESIGN PARAMETERS



Article 2 – Page 

TABLE III: STRUCTURAL NUMBER (SN) RELATIVE TO R-VALUE
( HOT MIX ASPHALT PAVEMENT)

*

Any soils with an R-
value of less than 16 
must be removed to 
a point two (2) feet 

below top of 
pavement.



Article 2 – Page 

TABLE IV: COEFFICIENTS (C) OF PAVEMENT MATERIALS

Pavement Mix Design 

4. Engineering Data



Article 2 – Page 

5. Roadway Construction Specifications



RIGHT OF WAY

30'
30'

16'
16'

9'
5'

2'
14'

14'
2'

5'
9'

S
ID

E
W

A
L

K
S

ID
E

W
A

L
K

ST
A

N
D

A
R

D
 

C
U

R
B

 &
 G

U
T

T
E

R

2"
H

O
T

 M
IX

 A
S

P
H

A
L

T
 P

A
V

E
M

E
N

T

T
A

C
K

 C
O

A
T

6" B
A

S
E

 C
O

U
R

S
E

* P
R

IM
E

 C
O

A
T

 
S

U
B

G
R

A
D

E
 P

R
E

P
A

R
A

T
IO

N

ST
A

N
D

A
R

D
 

C
U

R
B

 &
 G

U
T

T
E

R

* PR
IM

E
 C

O
A

T
 M

A
Y

 B
E

 O
M

IT
T

E
D

 U
PO

N
 A

PPR
O

V
A

L
 O

F T
H

E
 PR

O
JE

C
T

 M
A

N
A

G
E

R

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y
 T

Y
P

IC
A

L
 S

E
C

T
IO

N
 F

O
R

 L
O

C
A

L
 S

T
R

E
E

T
S

 
32.0' B

A
C

K
 O

F
 C

U
R

B
 T

O
 B

A
C

K
 O

F
 C

U
R

B
60.0' R

IG
H

T
 O

F
 W

A
Y

A
R

T
IC

L
E

 2 RIGHT OF WAY



Article 3 – Page 1

ARTICLE 3
STANDARD SPECIFICATION FOR EXCAVATION 

UNDER PAVED STREETS AND ALLEYS
1. General

paved

2. Provisions for Excavation

3. Specification for Excavation and Backfill



Article 3 – Page 2



Article 3 – Page 3



EXISTINC ' UREACINC 
EXISTIN

G
 BASE

ENG
INEERED BACK W

ILL

HM
A

TO
 M

ATCH EXISTING
 

IN
 TYPE AN

D
 TH

lC
KN

ESS
O

R
 TYPIC

AL
SEC

TIO
N

6’ BASE
C

O
U

PSE IvlIN
 

O
R

 M
ATC

H
 EXISTIN

C

U
TILITY LIN

E
PIPE BED

D
IN

C
 M

ATER
IAL

D
EPTH

 
M

AN
U

FAC
TU

R
ER

’S 
R

EC
O

M
M

EN
D

A TIO
N

 FO
P PIPE SU

E

FIN
ISH

ED
  M

AT  O
F

H
M

A
TO

  H
AVE A

SM
O

O
TH

N
ESS  O

F 1
2

IN
C

H
U

' IN
C

 A
10 FO

O
T ' TR

AIC
H

T 
IN

 AN
Y D

IR
EC

TIO
N



EXISTINC ' UREACINC 
EXISTIN

G
 BASE

C
R

AVEL O
R

 O
TH

ER
 

A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 
M

A
TE

R
IA

L
TO

l2
"

A
B

O
V

E
TO

P
 O

F P
IP

E

HM
A

TO
 M

ATCH EXISTING
 IN

 
TYPE AN

D
 TH

lC
KN

ESS' S 
O

R
TYPIC

AL SEC
TIO

N

6’ B
A

S
E

C
O

U
P

S
E

 M
IN

 
O

R
 M

A
TC

H
 E

X
IS

TIN
C

U
TILITY LIN

E

M
IN

I' H
E

D
 M

A
T O

F
TO

 H
A

V
E

 A
S

M
O

O
TH

N
E

S
S

 O
F IQ

2 IN
C

H
 W

H
E

N
 

U
S

IN
G

 A
10

FO
O

T STR
A

IG
H

T E
D

C
E

 IN
 A

N
Y D

IR
E

C
TIO

N



Article 4 – Page 1

ARTICLE 4
STANDARD SPECIFICATION FOR EXCAVATION 

NOT UNDER PAVED STREETS OR ALLEYS

1. General

not

2. Provisions for Excavation

3. Specification for Excavation and Backfill



Article 4 – Page 2



Article 4 – Page 3





Article 5 – Page 1

ARTICLE 5 
STANDARD SPECIFICATION

FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF ALLEYS
1. General

2. Alley Widths

3. Engineering Data



Article 5 – Page 2

4. Standard Specifications





Article 6 – Page 1

ARTICLE 6 
STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS

FOR SIDEWALK, FILLET AND DRIVEPAD CONSTRUCTION

1. General

2. Policies Regarding Sidewalk and Drivepad Construction

3. Standard Specification for Placement of Sidewalk



4. Standard Specifications for Placement of Drivepads



5. Standard Specification for Placement of Concrete Fillets













TYPICAL CO
NCRETE FILLET DETAIL-PLAN 

SIDEW
ALKS AT THE RIG

HT-O
F-W

AY-LINE



ARTICLE 7
STANDARD SPECIFICATION FOR CURB CONSTRUCTION, CUTS AND 

REPLACEMENT

1. General

2. Engineering Data

3. Standard Specifications for Curb Cuts

Article 7 – Page 1





Article 8 – Page 1

ARTICLE 8
STANDARD SPECIFICATION FOR UTILITIES

1. Interruption of Service and Notice

2. Connection to Existing Infrastructure System(s)



Article 8 – Page 2

3. Public Convenience and Access

4. Source of Supply and Quality of Materials

5. Railroad and State Highway Crossings

6. Utility Stubouts

7. Construction Notes



Article 8 – Page 3

8. Utility Service Line on Replats

9. Tracer  Wire Specifications



Article 8 – Page 4



℄



℄









Per Latest edtion of the City of Carlsbad Spec book (Atricle 10 page 4)

Low Pressure Air Test for Sewer Lines
Rev:  20171019

PROJECT: DATE:

CONTRACTOR: 

LOCATION OF TEST:

PRESSURE TEST: Test duration shall vary based on length and size of line from Table 2. 
Test Pressure shall 3.5 PSIG and drop to 2.5 PSIG within time allowed

Comments: 

Contractor Date Inspector Date



CONTRACTOR:

TEST RESULTS

Deflection Testing of Sewer lines
PROJECT: DATE:

INSPECTOR CONTRACTOR

NO RESTRICTION RESTRICITON FOUND 
STA. TO STA.

DRAWING PAGE # STATION TO STATION APPROX. DEPTH



Hydrostatic Tests (AWWA C600-93)
Rev:  20160801

PROJECT: DATE:

CONTRACTOR: 

LOCATION OF TEST:

PRESSURE TEST: Test shall be of at least a 2-hour duration.  Test Pressure shall not vary 
by more than +/- 5 psi for the duration of the test.(150psi)

LEAKAGE TEST: Allowable leakage = No more than 10.00 gpd/mi/in of pipe diameter at a pressure of 100 psi

Comments: 

Contractor Date Inspector Date

Per Latest edtion of the City of Carlsbad Spec book (Atricle 10 page 4)



Article 9 – Page 1

ARTICLE 9
STANDARD SPECIFICATION FOR BORING, DRILLING AND JACKING

1. General



ARTICLE 10
STANDARD SPECIFICATION FOR WATER LINES

1. Description

2. Materials



3. Construction Requirements









CITY OF CARLSBAD
MEGALUG RESTRAINT CHART

Soil Type: CL

Soil Type: ML



CITY OF CARLSBAD
MEGALUG RESTRAINT CHART

Soil Type: ML

Soil Type: CL







Article 11 – Page 1

ARTICLE 11 
SANITARY SEWER LINES

1. General

2. Materials



Article 11 – Page 2

4 Construction Requirements



Article 11 – Page 3



Article 11 – Page 4



Article 11 – Page 5



SEWER LINE DETAILS







Article 12 – Page 1

ARTICLE 12
STANDARD SPECIFICATION FOR MANHOLES

1. General

2. Construction Requirements



Article 12 – Page 2



Article 12 – Page 3

TABLE

Manhole Diameter 
(feet)

Allowable Leakage 
(gallons)

Allowable Difference in
Water Surface Elevation 

(inches)



Article 12 – Page 4









FRAME & COVER DETAIL





Article 13– Page 1

ARTICLE 13
POLICY ON FIRE LINE SYSTEMS

1. General



Article 14– Page 1

ARTICLE 14 
STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR

EXTERIOR LIGHTING

1. General

2. Night Sky Protection Act



Article 15– Page 1

ARTICLE 15 
STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR

STORM DRAINAGE

1. General

2.
ed

This 
needs to be clarified a little more to match what is stated in the City of 
Carlsbad Subdivision Ordinance.



Article 15 – Page 2

2. Drainage Analysis Criteria



Article 15 – Page 3

TABLE I
Rational Method Runoff Coefficients



Article 15 – Page 4

TABLE II
Rational Method Runoff Coefficients



Article 15 – Page 5

TABLE III
Manning’s Roughness Coefficients



Article 15 – Page 6

3. Hydraulic Criteria



Article 15 – Page 7

4. Detention Facilities



Article 15 – Page 8

EXAMPLE



Article 15 – Page 9

Carlsbad, New Mexico 
Detention Storage Volume Example



Article 15 – Page 10

5. Submittal Requirements - Residential Subdivisions



Article 15 – Page 11



Article 15 – Page 12

6. Submittal Requirements – Commercial and Industrial Developments or 
Subdivisions



Article 15 – Page 13



Article 15 – Page 14



Article 15 – Page 15

Appendix A
City of Carlsbad Contact Information

Mailing Address (for all Departments):

Physical Address:



oeramirez
Typewritten Text
/s/ Michael A. Hernandez                                                      07-18-19



oeramirez
Typewritten Text
30















































CITY OF CARLSBAD
AGENDA BRIEFING MEMORANDUM

                                   Meeting Date: 7/23/2019
DEPARTMENT: Planning, 
Engineering & Regulation

BY: Trysha Carrasco,
Deputy Planning Director

DATE: 7/17/2019

SSUBJECT:    Request for Zone Change from “R-R” Industrial District to “R-1” Residential 1 District for 
approximately 180.88 acres for residential lots located to the west of Callaway Dr., north of the Pecos River, 
(legal description attached) pursuant to Section 3-21-1 et. Seq. NMSA 1978 and Sections 56-150(b) and 56-
140(i), Carlsbad Code of Ordinances. 

Applicant:
Springs Farms Subdivision Inc. 
212 W. Stevens St. 
Carlsbad, NM 88220

 
*The applicant provided the required notification to property owners within 100’ and agreed to post 
the required sign 5-days prior to the public hearing as required by Sec. 56-140(i). The City will notify 
the property owners’ 15-days prior to the City Council hearing and publish notification in the 
newspaper 30-days prior to said hearing.

SYNOPSIS, HISTORY AND IMPACT (SAFETY AND WELFARE/FINANCIAL/PERSONNEL/INFRASTRUCTURE/ETC.):

The applicant has submitted a request for change of zoning at the subject property (map and legal 
description attached) from “R-R” Rural Residential District to “R-1” Residential 1 District. This property is 
approximately 180.88 acres in size and located on the west side of Callaway Dr. and the south side of the 
C.I.D main canal and north of the Pecs River at this location. The applicant is planning to install residential 
lots at this location.

According to Sec. 56-40(a) of the Zoning Ordinance:

(a) Residential 1 (R-1) District.  

The Residential 1 District is intended to accommodate higher density single-family residential 
development and to provide land-use protection for areas that develop in such a manner. There shall 
be a maximum of one primary residence per lot for R-1 Residential 1 District Zoning.

The properties surrounding the subject property are zoned “R-R” Rural Residential District and partially “R-1” 
Residential 1 District. This request would not create a spot zone.

According to Zoning Ordinance Sec. 56-150(b)(4). Amendments, Findings Required, a statement of fact 
regarding each of the following findings is required:

(a) The proposed amendment will or will not adversely impact the public health, safety or general welfare and 
will or will not promote the original purposes of the Zoning Ordinance; and

(b) The proposed amendment responds or does not respond to changed conditions, such as changes in 
public capital investments, road locations or functional classification, population trends, density, use or further 
studies that have been completed since adoption of the Zoning Ordinance; and

(c) The proposed amendment is or is not necessary in order to respond to State and/or Federal legislation; 
and

(d) The proposed amendment provides or does not provide additional flexibility in meeting the objectives of 
this Zoning Ordinance without lowering the standards of the Zoning Ordinance; and

Digitally signed by Trysha Carrasco 
DN: cn=Trysha Carrasco, o=City of Carlsbad, 
ou=Planning and Zoning, 
email=pacarrasco@cityofcarlsbadnm.com, c=US 
Date: 2019.07.17 10:05:34 -06'00'



(e) The proposed amendment is or is not in substantial compliance with the City's Comprehensive Plan or 
other City Master Plan; and

(f) The proposed amendment will or will not adversely affect the implementation of the goals and policies of 
the City's Comprehensive Plan or other City Master Plan; and 

(g) The proposed amendment is justified in order to correct a mistake in the Official Zoning Map or the text of 
the Zoning Ordinance; and  

(h) The proposed amendment is justified in order to respond to changes in the City’s Comprehensive Plan or 
other City Master Plan including, but not limited to, changes in land use assumptions, surrounding uses, 
population forecasts, rates of land consumption, anticipated community needs or other factors. 

According to Zoning Ordinance Sec. 56-150(b)(4)(f): The proposed amendment will or will not adversely affect 
the implementation of the goals and policies of the City's Comprehensive Plan or other City Master Plan.

Comprehensive Plan: Strategy 2030 goals and policies that are applicable to this request are:

Chapter 3: Land Use
Goal 1: The City of Carlsbad will adopt policies to support the Infill/Redevelopment Land Use Scenario.
Goal 2: The City of Carlsbad will make efficient use of government resources through well-planned land use 
decisions.
Goal 4: The City of Carlsbad will strive to create an aesthetically pleasing built environment.
Goal 5: The City of Carlsbad will ensure that land use does not negatively impact the city’s environmental
resources.

Chapter 5: Economic Development
Goal 4: Improve the appearance of Carlsbad.
Goal 6: Support the efforts and expansion of existing major industries, such as potash mining, oil and gas
drilling, and nuclear waste disposal.

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: Based on review of the application and 
staff comments, at their meeting on June 3, 2019, the Planning and Zoning Commission considered this item 
and recommended approval with a vote of five (5) in favor, none (0) against, and none (0) absent.

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION (please check):
Approval Denial n/a Approval Denial n/a

Public Works x Planning, Eng. & Reg. Dept.:
Fire Department x Code Enforcement Division x
Legal Department x Engineering Division x
Police Department x Planning Division x
Utilities Department x Building & Regulation Division x
Culture & Rec. Dept. x Carlsbad Irrigation District x

DEPARTMENT COMMENTS: 

Public Works: No comments.

Utilities Department: No comments.

Building Department: No comments.

Fire Department: No comments.

Code Enforcement: No comments.

Legal Department: No comments.



Planning Department: Recommend approval. 

Police Department: No comments.

Culture & Rec. Dept.: No comments.

Engineering Services: No comments.

Carlsbad Irrigation District:  No comments.

City Administration: No comments.
BOARD/COMMISSION/COMMITTEE ACTION: 

P&Z                         Lodgers Tax Board           Cemetery Board                      APPROVED
Museum Board       San Jose Board                 Water Board                            DISSAPPROVED
Library Board           N. Mesa Board                  __________ Committee

Reviewed by
City Administrator _______________________________________  Date: ____________

ATTACHMENTS: Application materials, Ordinance, P & Z Minutes.

oeramirez
Typewritten Text
/s/ Michael A. Hernandez                                         07-18-19



ORDINANCE NO. 2019-____

AN ORDINANCE REZONING PART OF “R-R” RURAL RESIDENTIAL
DISTRICT TO "R-1" RESIDENTIAL 1 DISTRICT FOR AN APPROXIMATELY 
180.88 ACRE PROPERTY, LOCATED ALONG THE WEST SIDE OF 
CALLAWAY DRIVE, LEGALLY DESCRIBED AS BEGINNING AT A POINT 
THAT LIES S89°20'05"W, 238.90 FEET FROM THE NORTH 1/4 CORNER OF 
SAID SECTION 26; THEN ALONG THE WESTERLY LINE OF THE C.I.D. 
CANAL THROUGH A CURVE TO THE LEFT 609.15 FEET, HAVING A RADIUS 
OF 4284.53 FEET, WITH A CHORD THAT BEARS S28°26'51"E, FOR 608.64 
FEET; THEN S35°07'59"E, CONTINUING ALONG THE WESTERLY LINE OF 
THE C.I.D. MAIN CANAL, FOR 1633.78 FEET; THEN CONTINUING ALONG
THE WESTERLY LINE OF THE C.I.D. CANAL THROUGH A CURVE TO THE 
LEFT 1341.55 FEET, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1550.00 FEET, WITH A CHORD 
THAT BEARS S59°43'10"E, FOR 1300.07 FEET; THEN S00°01'08"E, FOR 17.80 
FEET, TO THE NORTH LINE OF CALLAWAY DRIVE; THEN NN83°41'51"W, 
ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF CALLAWAY DRIVE, FOR 156.18 FEET; THEN 
ALONG THE WESTERLY LINE OF CALLAWAY DRIVE THROUGH A CURVE 
TO THE LEFT 957.98 FEET, HAVING A RADIUS OF 549.07 FEET, WITH A 
CHORD THAT BEARS S45°27'07"E, FOR 841.02 FEET; THEN S05°37'38"E, 
CONTINUING ALONG THE WESTERLY LINE OF CALLAWAY DRIVE, FOR 
698.84 FEET, TO THE NORTH LINE OF TRACT 2, PECOS RIVER/CALLAWAY 
DRIVE LOW WATER CROSSING DEDICATION PLAT NO. 2; THEN 
S85°14'05"W, ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID TRACT 2, FOR 32.64 FEET; 
THEN S04°45'55"E, ALONG THE WEST LINE OF CALLED TRACT 2, FOR 
586.84 FEET; THEN S03°07'26"E, CONTINUING ALONG THE WESTERLY 
LINE OF CALLED TRACT 2, FOR 210.84 FEET TO THE NORTH LINE OF 
SPRING FARMS REPLAT; THEN N58°50'47"W, ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF 
SPRING FARMS REPLAT, FOR 853.36 FEET; THEN S53°16'21"W, 
CONTINUING ALONG THE NORTHERLY LINE OF THE SPRING FARMS 
REPLAT, FOR 150.00 FEET; THEN N50°17'47"W, FOR 357.15 FEET; THEN 
N69°58'00"W, FOR 313.55 FEET; THEN S89°29'00"W, FOR   265.62 FEET, TO 
THE INTERSECTION POINT OF THE NORTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY 
HIGHWAY 285; THEN N37°03'11"W ALONG THE HIGHWAY RIGHT-OF-WAY, 
FOR 1586.93 FEET TO THE INTERSECTION POINT OF THE NORTH LINE OF 
THE SOUTHWEST 1/4; THEN N89°58'30"E, ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF 
THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 26, FOR 208.80 FEET, BACK TO 
THE POINT IN THE CENTER OF THE PECOS RIVER; THEN N23°56'38"W, 
ALONG THE CENTER OF THE PECOS RIVER, FOR 405.25 FEET; THEN 
N01°25'35"W, CONTINUING ALONG THE CENTER OF THE PECOS RIVER, 
FOR 954.14 FEET; THEN N01°31'43"E, CONTINUING ALONG THE CENTER
OF THE PECOS RIVER, FOR 1325.35 FEET, TO THE NORTH LINE OF SAID 
SECTION 26; THEN N89°20'05"E, ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID 
SECTION 26, FOR 891.33 FEET, BACK TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

oeramirez
Typewritten Text
33



CONTAINING ±180.88 ACRES MORE OR LESS PURSUANT TO SECTION 3-
21-1 ET. SEQ. NMSA 1978 AND SECTIONS 56-150(B) AND 56-140(I), 
CARLSBAD CODE OF ORDINANCES.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF CARLSBAD, EDDY
COUNTY, NEW MEXICO, that: 

BEGINNING AT A POINT THAT LIES S89°20'05"W, 238.90 FEET FROM 
THE NORTH 1/4 CORNER OF SAID SECTION 26; THEN ALONG THE 
WESTERLY LINE OF THE C.I.D. CANAL THROUGH A CURVE TO THE 
LEFT 609.15 FEET, HAVING A RADIUS OF 4284.53 FEET, WITH A 
CHORD THAT BEARS S28°26'51"E, FOR 608.64 FEET; THEN S35°07'59"E, 
CONTINUING ALONG THE WESTERLY LINE OF THE C.I.D. MAIN 
CANAL, FOR 1633.78 FEET; THEN CONTINUING ALONG THE 
WESTERLY LINE OF THE C.I.D. CANAL THROUGH A CURVE TO THE 
LEFT 1341.55 FEET, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1550.00 FEET, WITH A 
CHORD THAT BEARS S59°43'10"E, FOR 1300.07 FEET; THEN S00°01'08"E, 
FOR 17.80 FEET, TO THE NORTH LINE OF CALLAWAY DRIVE; THEN 
NN83°41'51"W, ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF CALLAWAY DRIVE, FOR 
156.18 FEET; THEN ALONG THE WESTERLY LINE OF CALLAWAY 
DRIVE THROUGH A CURVE TO THE LEFT 957.98 FEET, HAVING A 
RADIUS OF 549.07 FEET, WITH A CHORD THAT BEARS S45°27'07"E, 
FOR 841.02 FEET; THEN S05°37'38"E, CONTINUING ALONG THE 
WESTERLY LINE OF CALLAWAY DRIVE, FOR 698.84 FEET, TO THE 
NORTH LINE OF TRACT 2, PECOS RIVER/CALLAWAY DRIVE LOW 
WATER CROSSING DEDICATION PLAT NO. 2; THEN S85°14'05"W, 
ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID TRACT 2, FOR 32.64 FEET; THEN 
S04°45'55"E, ALONG THE WEST LINE OF CALLED TRACT 2, FOR 586.84 
FEET; THEN S03°07'26"E, CONTINUING ALONG THE WESTERLY LINE 
OF CALLED TRACT 2, FOR 210.84 FEET TO THE NORTH LINE OF 
SPRING FARMS REPLAT; THEN N58°50'47"W, ALONG THE NORTH LINE 
OF SPRING FARMS REPLAT, FOR 853.36 FEET; THEN S53°16'21"W, 
CONTINUING ALONG THE NORTHERLY LINE OF THE SPRING FARMS 
REPLAT, FOR 150.00 FEET; THEN N50°17'47"W, FOR 357.15 FEET; THEN 
N69°58'00"W, FOR 313.55 FEET; THEN S89°29'00"W, FOR   265.62 FEET, 
TO THE INTERSECTION POINT OF THE NORTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY 
HIGHWAY 285; THEN N37°03'11"W ALONG THE HIGHWAY RIGHT-OF-
WAY, FOR 1586.93 FEET TO THE INTERSECTION POINT OF THE NORTH 
LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4; THEN N89°58'30"E, ALONG THE NORTH 
LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 26, FOR 208.80 FEET, 
BACK TO THE POINT IN THE CENTER OF THE PECOS RIVER; THEN 
N23°56'38"W, ALONG THE CENTER OF THE PECOS RIVER, FOR 405.25 
FEET; THEN N01°25'35"W, CONTINUING ALONG THE CENTER OF THE 
PECOS RIVER, FOR 954.14 FEET; THEN N01°31'43"E, CONTINUING 



ALONG THE CENTER OF THE PECOS RIVER, FOR 1325.35 FEET, TO THE 
NORTH LINE OF SAID SECTION 26; THEN N89°20'05"E, ALONG THE 
NORTH LINE OF SAID SECTION 26, FOR 891.33 FEET, BACK TO THE 
POINT OF BEGINNING. CONTAINING ±180.88 ACRES MORE OR

INTRODUCED, PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED this 23rd day of July, 2019.

____________________________________
DALE JANWAY, MAYOR 

ATTEST:

__________________________________
CITY CLERK



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE

City of Carlsbad
Planning & Zoning Commission

Monday, June 3, 2019, at 5:00 p.m.

Meeting Held in the Annex Planning Room
114 S. Halagueno



CITY OF CARLSBAD
CARLSBAD, NEW MEXICO

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Monday, June 3, 2019 at 5:00 PM
Municipal Annex 114 S. Halagueno Street

Planning Room

1. Roll call of voting members and determination of quorum.

2. Approval of Agenda.

3. Approval of Minutes from the Meeting held May 6, 2019.

4. Remove from Table a Consideration for approval of a Variance request to allow a 6’ 
fence in the front setback at 904 W. Fox St.

5. Consider approval of a Variance request to allow a 6’ fence in the front setback at 904 
W. Fox St.

6. Consider approval of a Conditional Use Permit to allow On-Site Security at 514 
Center Ave.

7. Consider approval of a Conditional Use Permit to allow a Home Occupation-Sales & 
Services (Barbershop) at 3803 Standpipe Rd.

8. Consider approval of a Temporary Use Permit for Temporary Housing at 3221 
National Parks Hwy.

9. Consider a recommendation to Council for a Zone Change request for approximately 
0.34 acres located at 201 S. Guadalupe St., legally described as Lot 1-4, Block 99, 
Stevens Second Addition, from “C-1” Commercial 1 District to “R-2” Residential 2 
District

10. Consider a recommendation to Council for a Zone Change request for approximately 
0.30 acres located at 325 N. Sixth St., legally described as Quarter: NE S: 27, T: 22S,
R: 26E TR: 42 from “R-1” Residential 1 District to “C-1” Commercial 1 District

11. Consider a recommendation to Council for a Zone Change request for approximately 
20.23 acres located west of Callaway Dr., north of the Pecos River (see legal 
description) from “R-R” Rural Residential District to “R-1” Residential 1 District

12. Consider a recommendation to Council for a Zone Change request for approximately 
10.00  acres located east of Callaway Dr., north of the Pecos River (see legal 
description) from “R-R” Rural Residential District to “C-2” Commercial 2 District



13. Consider approval of a Preliminary Plat for Spring Farm Subdivision

14. Consider approval of a Preliminary Plat for Sunwest 8 Subdivision

15. Report regarding Summary Review Subdivisions.

16. Adjourn.

.
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MEETING SCHEDULE

• Regular meeting – Monday, July 1, 2019 at 5:00 p.m.

If you require hearing interpreter, language interpreters or auxiliary aids in order to attend and participate 
in the above meeting, please contact the City Administrator’s office at (575) 887-1191 at least 48 hours 
prior to the scheduled meeting time.



MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY OF CARLSBAD PLANNING & 
ZONING COMMISSION HELD IN THE MUNICIPAL ANNEX PLANNING ROOM, 114 S.

HALAGUENO STREET, JUNE 3, 2019, AT 5:00 P.M.

VOTING MEMBERS PRESENT:
JAMES KNOTT CHAIRPERSON 
BRAD NESSER COMMISSIONER
LASON BARNEY COMMISSIONER
BRIGIDO GARCIA COMMISSIONER
JAMES McCORMICK COMMISSIONER

VOTING MEMBERS ABSENT: NONE

EX-OFFICIO MEMBERS PRESENT:
JEFF PATTERSON PLANNING DIRECTOR
TRYSHA CARRASCO DEPUTY PLANNING DIRECTOR
RON MYERS DIRECTOR OF UTILITIES

SECRETARY PRESENT:
JENNIFER CAMPOS PLANNING AND REGULATION 

DEPARTMENT EXECUTIVE SECRETARY
OTHERS PRESENT:

SEAN DUNAGAN 2112 WESTRIDGE
GEORGE DUNAGAN 212 W. STEVENS
KERRI DUNAGAN 1411 ORCHARD LANE
KAREN SUMERS 1421 DESERT WILLOW
DENISE A. MADRID BOYEA 1906 SENTRY CIRCLE
JAMES GREER 2103 QUAIL HOLLOW
RACHEL HAND 3803 STANDPIPE RD.
DAVID STOREY ROSWELL, NM
RACHAEL BALLARD 314 W. MERMOD
SANDY BALLARD 314 W. MERMOD
JESSICA HASER 314 W. MERMOD
TANYA MOORE 502 CENTER AVE.
TANNER HOOT 502 CENTER AVE.
TARRANT BLAKE 1809 MOUNTAIN SHADOW
WINDY COLE 201 S. GUADALUPE
WESLEY CARTER 1111 N. MESA
GARY WADDELL 4203 BOYD DR.
MATT BYERS 1405 S. COUNTRY CLUB CIRCLE
SHANE CARPENTER 3221 NATIONAL PARKS HWY.
CLAUDIA MARTINEZ 904 W. FOX ST.

Time Stamps and headings below correspond to recording of meeting and the recording is hereby made a 
part of the official record.

0:00:02 Start Recording [5:12:11 PM]

0:00:10 1. Roll call of Voting Members and Determination of Quorum.



Roll was called, confirming the presence of a quorum of commission members. The following members 
were present–Mr. Garcia, Mr. Barney, Mr. McCormick, Mr. Knott, Mr. Nesser. Absent-None.

0:00:33 2. Approval of Agenda.

Mr. Patterson makes a change to Item Number 11; it should read approximately 171 acres, instead of 
20.23 acres.
Mr. McCormick made a motion to approve the Agenda; Mr. Nesser seconded the motion. The vote was 
as follows:  Yes– Mr. Garcia, Mr. Barney, Mr. Knott, Mr. McCormick, Mr. Nesser; No–None; 
Abstained–None; Absent–None. The motion carried.

0:01:14 3. Approval of Minutes from the Meeting held May 6, 2019.

Mr. Nesser made a motion to approve; Mr. Barney seconded the motion. The vote was as follows:  Yes–
Mr. Garcia, Mr. Barney, Mr. Knott, Mr. McCormick, Mr. Nesser; No–None; Abstained–None; 
Absent–None. The motion carried.

0:02:03 4. Remove from Table a Consideration for approval of a Variance request to 
allow a 6’ fence in the front setback at 904 W. Fox St.

The applicant, Claudia Martinez, comes to the podium.

Mr. Nesser made a motion to approve; Mr. Barney seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: Yes–
Mr. Garcia, Mr. Barney, Mr. Knott, Mr. McCormick, Mr. Nesser; No–None; Abstained–None; 
Absent–None.   The motion carried.

0:03:04 5. Consider approval of a Variance request to allow a 6’ fence in the front 
setback at 904 W. Fox St.

The applicant, Claudia Martinez, comes to the podium. Ms. Carrasco explains the request. Ms. 
Martinez is requesting a 6’ fence in her front-setback. Ms.Martinez said she needs the fence higher to 
keep her dogs in the yard. Her current fence is not high enough. She has four Mastiffs. She will apply for 
all permits to put up fence. The new fence will be wrought iron, as wood and other types of fence have 
not worked for her.

Mr. Nesser made a motion to approve; Mr. McCormick seconded the motion. The vote was as follows:  
Yes–Mr. Barney, Mr. McCormick, Mr. Nesser; No– Mr. Garcia, Mr. Knott; Abstained–None; 
Absent–None. The motion carried.
Ms. Carrasco informs the applicant she will have to apply for all appropriate building permits and 
contact Ray Benavides, the Building Official.

0:08:08 6. Consider approval of a Conditional Use Permit to allow On-Site Security at 514 
Center Ave.

The applicant, Tonya Moore, comes to the podium. Ms. Carrasco explains the request for a conditional 
use permit for placement of a single wide trailer for on-site security purposes at 514 Center Avenue. 
Planning Staff recommends approval. Ms. Moore explains they would like to have someone there 24 
hours a day for extra security. Floor opened for Public comment, there was none.



Mr. Garcia made a motion to approve; Mr. Barney seconded the motion. The vote was as follows:
Yes– Mr. Garcia, Mr. Barney, Mr. Knott, Mr. McCormick, Mr. Nesser; No–None; Abstained–None; 
Absent–None. The motion carried.
Ms. Carrasco tells the applicant to work with the Building Department to get the proper permits.

0:10:41 7. Consider approval of a Conditional Use Permit to allow a Home 
Occupation-Sales & Services (Barbershop) at 3803 Standpipe Rd.

The applicant, Rachel Hand, comes to the podium. Ms. Carrasco explains the request. The Planning 
Department recommends approval as long as the applicant works with appropriate staff for any needs for 
water, sewer or solid waste; and any sort of state requirements or licenses. Ms. Hand explains she has 
been operating the barbershop since March 29, having already received a business registration. All her 
state licenses are in place, and her portable building is approved by the state for her purposes. No public 
comment.

Mr. McCormick made a motion to approve; Mr. Garcia seconded the motion. The vote was as follows:
Yes– Mr. Garcia, Mr. Barney, Mr. Knott, Mr. McCormick, Mr. Nesser; No–None; Abstained–None; 
Absent–None. The motion carried.
Ms. Carrasco tells the applicant she will receive a letter of approval, and the conditional use permit will 
stay with the applicant, not the property.

0:14:48 8. Consider approval of a Temporary Use Permit for Temporary Housing at 
3221 National Parks Hwy.

Shane Carpenter comes to the podium. Mr. Carrasco explains the request for a permit for Temporary 
Housing for Megapower Electric’s employees, but recommends that the request be tabled pending a better 
site plan. Mr. Carpenter is aware of that the Planning Department needs a scaled site plan.

Mr. McCormick made a motion to table this item and Mr. Nesser seconded the motion. The vote was as 
follows: Yes– Mr. Garcia, Mr. Barney, Mr. Knott, Mr. McCormick, Mr. Nesser; No–None; 
Abstained–None; Absent– None. The motion carried.

0:16:34 9. Consider a recommendation to Council for a Zone Change request for 
approximately 0.34 acres located at 201 S. Guadalupe St., legally described as Lot 1-4, Block 99, 
Stevens Second Addition, from “C-1” Commercial 1 District to “R-2” Residential 2 District

Windy Cole comes to the podium. Ms. Carrasco explains the request is to change the property from 
Commercial to Residential. The applicant would like the Zone Change approved so she can sell the 
property. There was no public comment.

Mr. Garcia made a motion to approve; Mr. Nesser seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: Yes–
Mr. Garcia, Mr. Barney, Mr. Knott, Mr. McCormick, Mr. Nesser; No–None; Abstained–None; 
Absent–None. The motion carried.
Ms. Carrasco states this item will come before Council on July 9, 2019 and the Ms. Cole will receive a 
letter confirming this.

0:19:30 10. Consider a recommendation to Council for a Zone Change request for 
approximately 0.30 acres located at 325 N. Sixth St., legally described as Quarter: NE S: 27, T: 22S, 
R: 26E TR: 42 from “R-1” Residential 1 District to “C-1” Commercial 1 District



The applicant, Sandy Ballard, attended. Mr. Patterson explained the request; and that this item has been 
brought before Council last fall, with Council being unable to make a determination. The ordinance 
allows for the applicants to bring this request forward again within one year. The Planning Department 
recommends approval of this request, with some conditions; one of which is no on-street parking because 
of the proximity to a school. Ms. Ballard runs a training and drug testing facility at 314 W. Mermod, and 
are trying to move the training facility portion to 325 N. Sixth Street, which has 17 spots for parking; She 
has also spoken to the Superintendent of the school about placing the training facility there, and he will 
speak to the mayor. They will not conduct drug-testing at this facility. The people who will attend the 
training facility have already passed their drug test. This will alleviate some of the traffic problems at 
their location on Mermod Street. Floor opened for public comment. Jessica Haser comes to the podium;
she states she is the training manager for Mobile Safety; and she could be more thorough with a quieter 
area for the training portion.

Mr. McCormick made a motion to approve the zone change and Mr. Nesser seconded the motion.  The 
vote was as follows:  Yes– Mr. Garcia, Mr. Barney, Mr. Knott, Mr. McCormick, Mr. Nesser; No–
None; Abstained–None; Absent– None. The motion carried.
Mr. Patterson states this item will appear before City Council on July 9, 2019, and she will receive a 
letter as a reminder.

0:27:48 11. Consider a recommendation to Council for a Zone Change request for 
approximately 171 acres located west of Callaway Dr., north of the Pecos River (see legal 
description) from “R-R” Rural Residential District to “R-1” Residential 1 District

George Dunagan comes to the podium. Mr. Patterson explains this request and is the same applicant as 
last item. The Planning Dept. recommends approval of this request. Mr. Dunagan explains this is one of 
three items to come before the Commission at this time. The letter he wrote outlines what the plans are for 
the entire property, which is being called the Flumes Subdivision. He is planning on developing 171 
acres, which will have about 354 homes; 145 single family homes in the first phase. The City has a 
planned widening for Callaway Drive from two lanes to three lanes. They will be developing commercial 
C-2 lots on the East side of Callaway Drive on the North portion, about 10 acres; and leaving the South 
portion Rural Residential. As part of the development, a nature park will be dedicated to the city on the
West side of the Callaway Bridge, which will be called Carter Park. They will not allow man camps or 
RV parks in the commercial portion. Mr. Dunagan states his timeline is twelve to eighteen months. Floor 
is opened to public comment. Tarrant Blake comes to the podium. Her concern is the traffic and the 
speed of the drivers. She noted problems with work trucks, blowing dirt, and encroachment on wildlife;
driving it into the neighborhood. She estimates 350 homes would make 600 more drivers on Callaway 
Drive. Her biggest concern is the traffic on Callaway Drive in the residential area, and if sidewalks would 
be built along with the widening of the road. James Greer comes to the podium. He states he is a resident 
of Quail Hollow from the beginning; and all construction creates dust problems. He has been in 
construction all his life and is in favor of the development of both sides of Callaway Road.

Mr. Garcia made a motion to approve the zone change and Mr. Nesser seconded the motion.  The vote 
was as follows:  Yes– Mr. Garcia, Mr. Barney, Mr. Knott, Mr. McCormick Mr. Nesser; No–None; 
Abstained–None; Absent–None.
Ms. Carrasco tells the applicant that this item will be scheduled to appear before Council on July 23, 
2019.

0:45:07 12. Consider a recommendation to Council for a Zone Change request for 
approximately 10.00  acres located east of Callaway Dr., north of the Pecos River (see legal 
description) from “R-R” Rural Residential District to “C-2” Commercial 2 District



Mr. Patterson explained this request. The applicant would like to develop the property in a commercial 
nature, primarily to serve the surrounding residential properties. The Planning Department recommends 
approval of this request. Mr. Dunagan explains they are going to control what goes into the C-2 and have 
deed restrictions. He says there is a lot of need for limited commercial in this area. No public comment.
Mr. Barney asks what is considered limited commercial. Mr. Dunagan states convenience stores and 
small retail.

Mr. Garcia made a motion to approve and Mr. Barney seconded the motion.  The vote was as follows:  
Yes– Mr. Garcia, Mr. Barney, Mr. Knott, Mr. McCormick, Mr. Nesser; No–None; Abstained–None;
Absent– None. The motion carried.
Mr. Patterson tells the applicant this item is scheduled to appear before Council on July 9, 2019.

0:49:36 13. Consider approval of a Preliminary Plat for Spring Farm Subdivision

Ms. Patterson explained this request, potentially creating 354 new single family residential lots on 171
acres, and commercially developing about 10 acres. The City has already initiated meetings with the 
applicant and engineer to make sure the City’s needs are met. Planning Staff would recommend approval, 
with the conditions: the developer and engineer shall submit final construction plans for approval by City 
staff, a master drainage and draining plan, a traffic study and analysis on Callaway Drive and submit 
results to City’s Planning Department, and continue to work with the City’s staff on infrastructure
installed and its design, and monitor installation. Mr. Dunagan wants to get the plans and development 
going, so he took the preliminary plat approach. He stated it would probably be around 18 months before 
the plans are finally developed. No public comment.

Mr. Garcia made a motion to approve and Mr. Barney seconded the motion.  The vote was as follows:  
Yes– Mr. Garcia, Mr. Barney, Mr. Knott, Mr. McCormick, Mr. Nesser; No–None; Abstained–None;
Absent–None. The motion carried.

1:00:35 14. Consider approval of a Preliminary Plat for Sunwest 8 Subdivision

Mr. Knott recuses himself. Mr. Patterson explains the request, which would create 150 single family 
residential lots. The City has already had preliminary meetings to go over the plans with the applicant.
The applicant, Mr. Knott comes to the podium. Planning Staff would recommend approval of this 
request, with conditions that the engineer and developer work with the City staff as to the infrastructure 
and the City’s infrastructure inspector monitor the installation of the infrastructure, and the City approve 
the infrastructure once installed. David Storey from Souder Miller & Associates from Roswell, comes to 
the podium. They are the engineering firm for Mr. Knott. Mr. Knott explains he has been in the
manufactured home business for all of his life, and believes this development will be very competitive in 
the market. Mr. Storey states they are always working on and upgrading the plans, and has submitted an 
updated plat to the City recently. Floor opened for public comment. Gary Waddell comes forward to 
express his support.

Mr. Garcia made a motion to approve and Mr. Barney seconded the motion.  The vote was as follows:  
Yes– Mr. Garcia, Mr. Barney, Mr. McCormick, Mr. Nesser; No–None; Abstained–Mr. Knott;
Absent–None. The motion carried.

1:06:30 15. Report regarding Summary Review Subdivisions.

Ms. Carrasco presented the Summary Review plats. Nothing unusual was noted.



1:09:59 16. Adjourn.

There being no other business, the meeting was adjourned.

1:10:06 Stop Recording [6:22:17 PM]

_____________________________________ ______________
Chairman                  Date



























Zone Change
Spring Farm

Map # 1840_ed01

IMPORTANT: Maps, products and 
data are NOT surveyor quality and 
are only to be used as a reference.

W
 P IERCE  ST

SK YL IN E  RD

W
 C

A
LLA

W
A

Y
 D

R

CA L L AWAY DR

Q
UAIL  H

O
LLO

W
 RU

N

SE
N

TR
Y 

C
IR

JE
D

 H
O

W
A

R
D

 L
O

O
P

1:7,200

Roads

Parcel

Pecos River

Water Lines

Sewer Lines

0 600 1,200300

Feet

1 inch = 600 feet Date: 5/16/2019

N

S



Zone Change
Spring Farm

Map # 1840_ed02

IMPORTANT: Maps, products and 
data are NOT surveyor quality and 
are only to be used as a reference.

W
 P

IER
C

E  S
T

SK YL IN E  RD

WESTR IDGE RD

W
 C

A
LLA

W
A

Y
 D

R

H
A

Y
S

 D
R

CA L L AWAY DR

T
R

O
Y

 D
R

A
M

B
E

R
 D

R

D
EN

IS
E  

D
R

Q
UA I L  H

O
LLO

W
 RU

N

LA
N

E
T

T
E

 D
R

CA P TA I N WI L L I A MS  LN

SE
N

TR
Y 

C
IR

1:12,000

Roads

Parcel

Pecos River

Water Lines

Sewer Lines

Zoning

C-2

PUD

R-1

R-2

R-R

0 1,000 2,000500

Feet

1 inch = 1,000 feet Date: 5/16/2019

N

S



Committee Reports



ADJOURN



 
 

 ECONOMIC INDICATORS 
Planning, Engineering, & Regulation Department 

June 2019 
NEW BUSINESS REGISTRATIONS 

MONTH 17-18 FISCAL YEAR 18-19 FISCAL YEAR % CHANGE 
July 16  26 +63%  
August 22  35 +59% 
September 24  28 +17%  
October 24  34 +42%  
November 18  29 +61%  
December 19  21  +11% 
January 47  36  -23% 
February 44  34 -22%  
March 25  43  +72% 
April 47  46 -2%   
May 33  43 +30%  
June 45  38  -16% 
Year to Date 364 413    

 
 

 

 

NUMBER OF BUILDING PERMITS 
MONTH 17-18 FISCAL YEAR 18-19 FISCAL YEAR % CHANGE 

July 187  291  +56% 
August 213  153 -28% 
September 138  191  +38% 
October 211  203  -38% 
November 191  138  -28% 
December 155  110 -29%  
January 311  178  -43% 
February 149  149  0% 
March 138  261 +89%  
April 283  373  +32% 
May 221  347 +57%  
June 182  238 +31%  
Year to Date  2,379 2,632   

VALUATION OF BUILDING PERMITS 
MONTH 17-18 FISCAL YEAR 18-19 FISCAL YEAR % CHANGE 

July $5,984,202   $12,828,389 +114% 
August 5,738,135  4,311,175 -25% 
September 1,761,713  3,302,166 +87%  
October 4,168,024  12, 470,866 +199% 
November 6,451,531  5,094,448  -21% 
December 3,187,442  9,763,510 206%  
January 6,887,870  12,200,539 +77%  
February 2,869,319  5,557,041 +93%  
March 14,146,454  20,628,305  +46% 
April 5,075,195  13,706,727 +170%  
May 18,734,225  12,757, 216  -32% 
June 7,849,854  12,630,770 +61%  
Year to Date  $82,853,964 $86,156,439   








	7-23-19 City Council Agenda 2
	2.A.Minutes 7-9-19 Council  Regular
	2.B.Personnel Report
	2.C.1.Agreement Creative Carlsbad
	2.C.2.Agreement All City Management - Crossing Guards
	2.D.1.Award CES Contract - Engie Services Museum HVAC project
	2.E.1.Mthly Rpt Com Dev June
	2.E.2.Mthly Rpt Muni Services June
	2.E.3.Mthly Rpt PERD - June
	2.E.4Mthly Rpt Utilities - June
	2.F.Board Appointments
	2.G.1.Set Date Ord 2019-__ - 701 W Greene Zone Change - C-2 to C-1
	2.G.2.Set Date Ord  2019-__ - 308 W Rose Zone Change - C-2 to R-2
	2.G.3.Set Date Ord 2019-__ - 301 W Chapman Zone Change - R-R to C-1
	2.G.4.Set Date Ord 2019-__ - Fox & Guadalupe  Zone Change - C-2 to C-1
	3.Award RFP 2019-13, OGarza Cemetery grounds keeping
	4.ICIP 2021-2025 Prelim Plan
	City of Carlsbad Recommended List.pdf
	City of Carlsbad
	Infrastructure Capital Improvement Plan (ICIP) FY2021-2025
	Recommended Priority List

	ICIP Project List_2021-2025Version_7.12.2019.pdf
	Complete ICIP LIST

	Risk Matrix.pdf
	Sheet1

	ICIP_Evaluation_ScoreSheet.pdf
	Rank & Stack Method MH

	ICIP 2021-25 Public Comments.pdf
	Department Assignments


	5.Res No 2019-29, Public Infrastructure Spec Doc Amendments
	6.Res No 2019-30, Weed n Debris 612 S Sixth
	7.Ord No 2019-33, Rezone W Callaway Drive
	8.Council Committee Reports
	9.Adjourn
	Misc
	Econ Indicator 2018-2019 for 6-19.pdf
	November
	December
	January
	February
	March
	April
	May
	June
	Year to Date
	NUMBER OF BUILDING PERMITS
	MONTH

	VALUATION OF BUILDING PERMITS
	MONTH




	Name: 
	Mailing Address: 
	Phone Number: 
	Email Address: 
	Text1: 


